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Important notice
This Registration Document has been approved by the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (the
“Norwegian FSA”) (Finanstilsynet), as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. The Norwegian FSA only approves this Registration Document as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the issuer that is the subject of this Registration Document.
This Registration Document prepared according to Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, is valid for a period of up
to 12 months following its approval by Norwegian FSA. This Registration Document was approved by the
Norwegian FSA on 9th September 2019. The prospectus for issuance of new bonds or other securities may
for a period of up to 12 months from the date of the approval consist of this Registration Document and a
securities note to each issue and subject to a separate approval.
The Registration Document is based on sources such as annual reports and publicly available information
and forward looking information based on current expectations, estimates and projections about global
economic conditions, the economic conditions of the regions and industries that are major markets for the
Company and Guarantor’s lines of business.
A prospective investor should consider carefully the factors set forth in chapter 1 Risk factors, and elsewhere in the Prospectus, and should consult his or her own expert advisers as to the suitability of an
investment in bonds, including any legal requirements, exchange control regulations and tax consequences
within the country of residence and domicile for the acquisition, holding and disposal of bonds relevant to
such prospective investor.
The manager and/or affiliated companies and/or officers, directors and employees may be a market maker
or hold a position in any instrument or related instrument discussed in this Registration Document and
may perform or seek to perform financial advisory or banking services related to such instruments. The
managers corporate finance department may act as manager or co-manager for this Company and/or
Guarantor in private and/or public placement and/or resale not publicly available or commonly known.
Copies of this Registration Document are not being mailed or otherwise distributed or sent in or into or
made available in the United States. Persons receiving this document (including custodians, nominees and
trustees) must not distribute or send such documents or any related documents in or into the United
States.
Other than in compliance with applicable United States securities laws, no solicitations are being made or
will be made, directly or indirectly, in the United States. Securities will not be registered under the United
States Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an
applicable exemption from registration requirements.
The distribution of the Registration Document may be limited by law also in other jurisdictions, for example
in Canada, Japan, Australia and in the United Kingdom. Verification and approval of the Registration Document by the Norwegian FSA implies that the Registration Document may be used in any EEA country. No
other measures have been taken to obtain authorisation to distribute the Registration Document in any
jurisdiction where such action is required, and any information contained herein or in any other sales
document relating to bonds does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in
which such offer or solicitation is not lawful or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not
qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.
The content of the Prospectus does not constitute legal, financial or tax advice and potential investors
should seek legal, financial and/or tax advice.
Unless otherwise stated, the Prospectus is subject to Norwegian law. In the event of any dispute regarding
the Prospectus, Norwegian law will apply.
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1. Risk factors
Investing in bonds involves inherent risks. Prospective investors should carefully consider, among
other things, the risk factors set out in the Registration Document before making an investment
decision.
A prospective investor should carefully consider all the risks related to the Company and should
consult his or her own expert advisors as to the suitability of an investment in securities of the
Company. An investment in securities of the Company entails significant risks and is suitable only
for investors who understand the risk factors associated with this type of investment and who can
afford a loss of all or part of the investment. Against this background, an investor should thus make
a careful assessment of the Company and its prospects before deciding to invest, including but not
limited to the cost structure for both the Company and the investors, as well as the investors' current
and future tax position. The risk factors for the Company and the Group (including all Guarantors)
are deemed to be equivalent for the purpose of this Registration Document unless otherwise stated.
The below risk factors are outlined below considering and assessing the negative impact and probability. It applies for all the risk factors that if materialized it will have an adverse effect to the Company and the Group that may reduce the revenue and profitability, which could ultimately result in a
insolvency situation.

COMPANY AND MARKET SPECIFIC RISKS
The economy's influence on the demand of the Company's services
The Company is present in a large number of geographic markets, meaning that the Company is
being subject to external risks, such as political risks in individual countries and regions. In particular,
the Company's business is exposed to fluctuations in the oil, gas, maritime, and offshore renewables
industries since the Company's customers operate in these industries and such fluctuations could
have consequential effects on the Company's business. The demand for the Company's products and
services depends on, inter alia, the level of new capital investment and operating expenditures by
the customers. The level of capital and operating expenditures by the customers depends, in turn,
on general economic conditions, availability of credit, economic conditions within their respective
industries and expectations of future market behavior. In addition, the Company has a degree of
concentration risk with certain geographic markets, i.e. the US, Norway, Malaysia etc. accounting for
a large degree of sales in its respective markets. Adverse changes in the economy or in the customers' investment patterns, due to an economic or political situation in a country, industry or region,
and in the above mentioned countries in particular, may have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings and financial position.
The Company’s business is dependent on the price of oil and gas
In 2018, 68% of the Company’s revenue derived from customers operating in the oil and gas sector
and hence the Company’s operations, profitability and cash flow is dependent on the level of oil and
gas capital spending by such companies which, in turn, is dependent upon the market price of oil
and gas. The price of oil and gas is known to fluctuate. If the price of oil and gas products should
drop significantly, or oil and gas exploration or development activity should otherwise be reduced,
the Company may be adversely affected.
New legislation and changes of industry standards
The Company is affected by various legislations, regulations and standards, including, inter alia, tax
regulations, employment legislation, environmental regulations, service liability regulations and
global international industry standards with regards to safety and security. Amendments or restatements of laws, regulations and standards, leading to stricter requirements and changed conditions
regarding safety and health or environment, or a development to a stricter implementation and
application by the authorities of existing laws and regulations may have several negative implications
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for the Company. In addition, customers may demand the Company to comply with new standards
in the future. Such changes may require that the Company makes further investments, with increased costs and other commitments for the Company as a result. Such changes may also imply
that certain of the Company's services may become obsolete and could also limit or obstruct the
Company's business.
There is a risk that new interpretations and changes in the application of existing laws and regulations
in combination with new laws and regulations will have an adverse effect on the Company, and that
it will become more burdensome and costly for the Company to monitor legal aspects, which would
have an adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings or financial position.
Risk of technological development / increased automation that could result in less offshore personnel
Technical innovation and increased automation within the industries the Company operates within
could result in a decreased need for personnel on, inter alia, drilling platforms, shipyards, offshore
wind locations etc. The traditional training market is subject to innovations in e-learning, advanced
virtual and augmented reality technology and exposure to digital disruptions. Should such innovation
and automation lead to lay-offs and/or a decrease in required personnel or business disruptions, the
demand for the Company’s services may be negatively impacted and impact the Company’s business,
earnings and financial position.
Dependency on key employees
The Company's future development and success is dependent on its ability to recruit and keep qualified management and other key personnel. Inability to keep, replace and recruit key employees and
a qualified management may have a material negative effect on the Company's business, earnings
and financial position. Further, as a substantial amount of the Company's value is within the knowhow of certain key employees, the Company may be exposed to the risk that key employees leave
the Company for a competitor exposing the Company's firm secrets. There is a risk that this will have
an adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings and financial position.
Competition
The Company's competitors compete by price, location, quality and range of services, and service
offering availability in a generally commoditized market, with small differences between the service
providers. There is a risk that an increase in competition will lead to pricing pressure within the
industry as a whole and by individual customers with regards to seeking out new customers, as well
as retaining current customers.
The Company's ability to compete also depends upon the Company's ability to have global relations
with its customers, anticipate future market changes and trends and to rapidly react on existing and
future market needs. If the Company fails to meet the competition from new and existing companies
or fails to react to market changes or trends, there is a risk that this will have an adverse effect on
the Company's business, earnings and financial position.
Safety incidents
Incident occurs where a student is severely injured or even killed, however such incidents are fortunately rare. The financial impact will be covered by insurance and any effect on customer relations
will be addressed and mitigated.
Customer risks
The Company’s top 20 customers accounted for ~25% of total revenues in 2018 with no single client
accounting for more than 3%. Even though the Company serves a wide and diversified customer
base and with seemingly low customer dependency, a customer loss of a significant customer contract could result in an adverse effect on the Company’s operations, financial position and results.
Furthermore, the Company is exposed to the risk of not being able to collect all its trade credits with
its customers. Although parts of the Company's income is based on advance payment by customers,
there is always a risk that customers will not have the financial ability or willingness to meet their
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obligations. As the services of the Company is often being provided by small business entities of the
Company, whereas the customers are large global corporations, the negotiating power of the Company may sometimes be low and there can be no assurances that losses will not occur in the future
and impact the Company's earnings and cash balance. Customer bankruptcies or other elements that
may delay or complicate collection of receivables will impact the Company's cash flow and liquidity.
Claims and litigation
The Company may in the future become involved in different disputes in connection with its operations. Disputes may relate to inter alia agreements, intellectual property and failure to deliver stipulated services. Such disputes may be costly, time consuming, relate to large amounts and may disrupt the normal business of the Company. Furthermore, the outcome of complicated disputes may
be hard to predict. The company nor the guarantors are not currently involved in any material disputes.
Employment related matters
As the Company employs employees in different countries, there are demanding requirements for
the Company to comply with many different labour regulations and requirements from the employees
regarding pensions, salaries, work hours, etc. In addition, the Company will also need to cooperate
with labour unions on a local level for the different geographical areas. Should the Company not
comply with demands from employees and labour unions there is a risk that strikes and other actions
are arranged, which may negatively affect the Company and its activities. A breach of the labour
regulations or requirements set out by the trade unions could also result in sanctions, additional
costs and negative publicity. Further, the Company and its advisors may have made erroneous estimates of the requirements, interpretation and application of laws, provisions and judicial practice. In
addition, such laws, provisions and practice may be changed, potentially with retroactive effect.
The Company could be adversely affected if it fails to keep pace with technological changes
There is a risk that new technologies will be developed, and that the Company will be unable to
implement these technologies or adapt its service range and business model in time to exploit the
benefits of new or existing technologies. There is also a risk of future new technologies making the
Company’s services less competitive and more difficult to sell. Every such failure may have a negative
impact on the Company’s position on the market and in turn have a negative impact on the Company’s operations, financial position and earnings, and the performance of the Issuer under the
Bonds.
The expenses associated with keeping up with technological developments may be high and subject
to factors that are fully or partly beyond the Company’s control. The amount of future operating
expenses and requirements for capital and the time at which they are needed may also differ considerably from current estimates. Inability to finance these expenses and requirements for capital
may have a negative impact on the Company’s operations, financial position and earnings, and the
performance of the Issuer under the Bonds.
Risks relating to IT infrastructure
The Company depends on information technology to manage critical business processes, including
administrative and financial functions. The Company mainly uses IT systems for internal purposes.
Extensive downtime of network servers, attacks by IT-viruses or other disruptions or failures of
information technology systems are possible and could have a negative effect on the Company's
operations. Failure of the Company's information technology systems could cause transaction errors
and loss of customers, and could have an adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings, and
financial position as well as future prospects.
Insurance risks
The Company is exposed to various types of risks, such as liability, environmental risk, property
damage, third party liability and business interruption, including events caused by natural disasters
and other events beyond the Company's control. The Company may in such case be required to pay
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for losses, damages and liabilities out of own funds, which could materially and adversely affect its
business, earnings and financial position. Even if the insurance coverage would be adequate to cover
direct losses, the Company may not be able to take remedial actions or other appropriate measures.
Furthermore, the Company's claim records may affect the premiums which insurance companies may
charge in the future. In addition, the Company's current insurance coverage could be cancelled or
become unavailable on reasonable economic terms in the future. There is a risk that materialization
of these risks may have an adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings, and financial position
as well as future prospects.
Taxes and charges
The Company conducts its business in accordance with its interpretation of applicable tax regulations,
including the applicable tax rates, and applicable requirements and decisions. However, the Company's and its advisors' interpretation of applicable laws, provisions and judicial practice could prove to
be incorrect. Further, such laws, provisions and practice may be changed, potentially with retroactive
effect. There is a risk that changes in legislation or practice or a tax authorities challenge of the
Company's interpretation of applicable laws will lead to an increase in the Company's tax liabilities
and/or lead to sanctions by the tax authorities, resulting in adverse effects on the Company's business, earnings and financial position.
Currency risk
The Company reports in DKK but has other currencies as functional currencies, and conduct its purchases and sales in, inter alia SEK, NOK, EUR, USD, BRL etc. As the exchange rates fluctuates, these
fluctuations lead to a transaction exposure as the transactions made in other currencies than the
reporting currency needs to be recalculated into the reporting currency. There is a risk that this could
result in a reduced value of the Company’s local monetary assets and generate local currency losses.
Further, in the case where the DKK appreciate in value against, inter alia, the USD, then that may
lead to an adverse effect on the Company's earnings and financial position as well as future prospects
and earnings. Although the Company is contemplating FX hedging arrangements for the Company
to mitigate the currency and exchange risk, there is a risk that currency fluctuations will have an
adverse effect on the Company's business, earnings and financial position.
POLITICAL AND JURISDICTIONAL RISKS
Risk of deterioration of economic conditions
The business, results of operations, financial condition and/or prospects of the Issuer may be materially adversely affected by changes in national or global economic conditions and local economic
conditions in the countries in, and markets on, which it operates, including growth in the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP), inflation, interest rates, availability of and access to capital markets, consumer spending rates, energy availability and costs (including fuel surcharges) and the effects of
governmental initiatives to manage economic conditions. Any such changes could materially adversely affect the demand for the services of the Issuer thereby negatively affecting the business,
results of operations, financial condition and/or prospects of the Issuer.
•
Disruptions and instability in credit and other financial markets and deterioration of global
and local economic conditions, could, among other things:
•
make it more difficult or costly to obtain financing for the operations or investments of the
Issuer or to refinance its debt;
•
cause lenders to depart from prior credit industry practice and make the granting of any
technical or other waivers under the credit agreements of the Issuer more difficult or expensive;
•
impair the financial condition of some of the customers or suppliers, thereby increasing customer bad debts or non-performance by suppliers, negatively impacting the treasury operations of the Issuer; and
•
negatively impact global demand for the Issuer’s services, which could result in a reduction
of sales, operating income and cash flows.
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Risk of increased protectionism
In recent years, the political agenda has for various reasons been characterised by increased protectionism and calls for restrictions on the free movement of goods and labour, both internally within
the European Union (particularly France, Holland, Poland and the United Kingdom) and globally (e.g.
the United States of America). If this trend continues, the business, results of operations, financial
condition and/or prospects of the Issuer may be materially adversely affected.
Risks related to corrupt practices
The Group operates in 21 countries as described under 6. Business Overview. One of the countries
are Nigeria, ranked in 148th position out of 180 countries in the Transparency International Corruptions Perceptions Index 2017. Certain other jurisdictions in which the Company has operations also
have a low score on the Transparency International Corruption Perception Index which implies that
these markets are perceived as jurisdictions where there is a higher risk of corruption. The risk is
mitigated by ensuring that appropriate policies and procedures are duly implemented and a continuous effort to avoid any corrupt practices.
The Group operates in areas where there is a risk of war, armed conflicts, piracy or terrorist attacks
War, conflicts, military tension and terrorist attacks may cause instability in the areas the Company
is operating, or may cause instability in the world’s financial and commercial markets. Political and
economic instability may occur in some of the geographic areas (such as Nigeria) in which the Company operates (or may operate in the future) and may contribute to disruptions of operations, kidnapping of marine crew or onshore employees, piracy and other adverse effects including increased
operating costs. In addition, acts of terrorism, occurrence of deliberate sabotage and threats of
armed conflicts in or around various areas in which the Company operates (or may operate in the
future) could limit or disrupt the Company’s operations, including disruptions from evacuation of
personnel, cancellation of contracts or the loss or injury of personnel or loss or damage to its assets.
Armed conflicts, terrorism and their effects on the Company or its markets may have a significant
adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations in the future.
Catastrophes, natural disasters and operational disruptions
Severe weather phenomena such as strong wind, hail storms, snow and lightening or other weather
phenomena may cause instability in the areas the Company is operating and disrupt the functionality
of the Company's facilities and assets, cause damage and may also increase cost or operation as well
as reduce the revenues. The Company's involvement in countries which have been, are or may be,
subject to catastrophes or natural disasters, may have implications of a detrimental nature not currently foreseeable to the Company.
The Company operates in a market which is governed by regulatory regimes which may
be subject to change
The Company is subject to various laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption and anti-bribery
and with international sanctions regimes, failure to comply with which may have material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial condition, operating results and/or cash flow, as well as
the Company's reputation.
The Issuer is dependent on its subsidiaries
A significant part of the Company's assets and revenues relate to the Issuers' subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Issuers are dependent upon receipt of sufficient income related to the operation of and the
ownership in the subsidiaries to enable it to make payments under the Bonds. The Issuers' subsidiaries are legally separate and distinct from the Issuers and have no obligation to pay amounts due
with respect to the Issuer's obligations and commitments, including the Bonds, or to make funds
available for such payments. The ability of the Issuers' subsidiaries to make such payments to the
Issuers is subject to, among other things, the availability of funds. Should the Issuers not receive
sufficient income from their subsidiaries, the investor's ability to receive payment under the Bond
Terms for the Bonds may be adversely affected.
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2. Persons responsible
Persons responsible for the information
Persons responsible for the information given in the Registration Document are as follows:
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S, Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3, 1560 København V, Denmark.

Declaration by persons responsible
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S confirms that, to the best of their knowledge, the information contained in
the Registration Document is in accordance with the facts and that the Registration Document makes
no omission likely to affect its import.

09.09.2019

Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S
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3. Definitions
"Company" / "Issuer"

-

Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S - with registration number
39467836

"DKK"

-

Danish Kroner – the official currency of Denmark

"DMA"

-

Danish Maritime Authority

"EUR"

-

Euro – the official currency of the European Monetary Union

"GBP"

-

British Pound – the official currency of the United Kingdom

"Group /RelyOn / RelyOn Nutec"

-

The Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

"Guarantors"

-

At the date of this Registration Document:
Registration number
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S
19951383
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S
27460828
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
33292839
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd
02786348
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.
28102589
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.
502823-K
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd.
631761-U
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd
900073-M
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
592413-U
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA
BE0543401225
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC
4515417
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc.
34531108D
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC
35005427K
Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd
SC077855

"GWO"

-

Global Wind Organisation

"IADC"

-

International Association of Drilling Contractors

"IWCF"

-

International Well Control Forum

"MCA"

-

Maritime and Coastguard Agency

"NMD"

-

Norwegian Maritime Authority

"NOK"

-

Norwegian Kroner – the official currency of Norway

"NSI"

-

Netherlands Shipping Inspectorate

"NOROG"

-

Norsk Olje and Gas.

"OIM"

-

Offshore Installation Manager

"OPITO"

-

Offshore Petroleum Industry Training Organisation
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"Prospectus"

-

The Registration Document together with the Securities
Note

"Registration Document"

-

This registration document dated 09.09.2019

"RM"

-

Malaysian Ringgit - the official currency of Malaysia

"RYA"

-

Royal Yachting Association (UK)

"Securities Note"

-

Document to be prepared for each new issue of bonds
under the Prospectus

"STCW"

-

Standards of Training, Certification and Watchkeeping for
Seafareres

"USCG"

-

United States Coast Guard
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4. Statutory auditors
ISSUER:
The Company's independent auditor for the period which has covered the historical information in
this Registration Document is PricewaterhouseCoopers Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab,
with CVR No 33 77 12 31, and business address at Strandvejen 44, 2900 Hellerup, Denmark.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab is a member of the Institute of
Public Accountants in Denmark (FSR – Danske revisorer.)
GUARANTORS:
After establishing RelyOn Nutec Group in 2018, PricewaterhouseCoopers has been chosen as the
independent auditor for most group companies. However, due to the late change in 2018 Deloitte
were in som cases also responsible for the audit for 2018 financial statements.
The Guarantors independent auditor for 2017 and 2018 historical financial information in this Registration Document has been following:
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5. Information about the Issuer and the Guarantors
ISSUER:
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S
The Company, formerly named BidCo nr. 2 af 15. marts 2018, is a private limited liability company
pursuant to the Danish Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Danish laws and
regulations domiciled in Denmark. The legal name of the Company is Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S and
the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The Company was incorporated in Denmark on 30th March
2018 and registered in the Danish Business Authority with the registered number CVR-NR 39 46 78
36 and LEI-code 549300H0D90B41QTW740. The Company's registered business address is Kalvebod
Brygge 45, 3, 1560 Copenhagen V, Denmark, and the Company's telephone number is +45 76 12
13 14.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S is the parent company of the Group. The activity of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
consists of holding shares in subsidiaries and through the subsidiaries operate in the business of
safety training services to the oil and gas, wind and maritime industry globally, and other related
business. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S. Control means that the
BidCo RelyOn Nutec Group controls the company, i.e. that the RelyOn Nutec Group is exposed or has
rights to variable returns from the company and has the ability to affect the size of those returns
through its power over the company. With reference to this, the Company is dependent on other
entities within the Group. The Executive Management is responsible for RelyOn Nutec’s day-to-day
management of the Company in accordance with the directions provided by the Board of Directors.
The Company has 2 employees.
On 20 September 2018, the Company acquired the entire share capital of RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S,
former known as Falck Safety Services Holding A/S, which operates in the business of safety training
services to the oil and gas, wind and maritime industry globally, and other related business.

GUARANTORS:
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S, formerly named Falck Safety Services Holding A/S, is a private limited
liability company pursuant to the Danish Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing
Danish laws and regulations domiciled in Denmark. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec
Holding A/S and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in Denmark
on 2nd April 1997 and registered in the Danish Business Authority with the registered number CVRNR 19 95 13 83 and LEI-code 54930047IPZO8OTC8Y98. The company's registered business address
is Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3, 1560 Copenhagen V, Denmark, and the company's telephone number is
+45 76 12 13 14.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S is owned 100% by Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S. The purpose of the company
is directly - or indirectly through the holding of shares or other kinds of participating interests in
domestic or foreign undertakings- to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within
the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or
indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board
of directors finds is related to the above objects. The company has 29 employees.

1 Disclaimer - the information on the website does not form part of this Registration Document unless information is incorporated

by reference into the Registration Document
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RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S, formerly named Falck Safety Services A/S, is a private limited liability
company pursuant to the Danish Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Danish
laws and regulations domiciled in Denmark. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec Denmark
A/S and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in Denmark on 27th
November 2003 and registered in the Danish Business Authority with the registered number CVR-NR
27460828 and LEI-code 549300C491NFHOBCGV77. The company's registered business address is
Uglviggårdsvej 3, 6705 Esbjerg Ø, Denmark, and the company's telephone number is +45 76 12 13
14.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S. The purpose of the company is to through direct or indirect ownership of shares or other equity holdings, in domestic or
foreign companies, to do business within the field of theoretical and practical training in fire, rescue,
safety, offshore and related topics and directly or indirectly through domestic or international business partners to participate in other activities, which are deemed associated with the abovementioned purposes by the company’s board of directors. The company has 37 employees.
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V., formerly named Falck Global Safety B.V., is a private limited liability
company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) pursuant to the Dutch Private
Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Dutch laws and regulations domiciled in The
Netherlands. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. and the commercial name
is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in The Netherlands on 1st November 1983 and
registered in the Netherlands Chamber of Commerce Business Register with the registered number
33292839 and LEI-code 5493008GYTO5YF6T3N46. The company's registered business address is
Beerweg 71, 3199 LM, Maasvlakte Rotterdam, The Netherlands, and the company's telephone number is +31-181376666
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S. The purpose of the company
is directly - or indirectly through the holding of shares or other kinds of participating interests in
domestic or foreign undertakings- to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within
the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or
indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties domesti-cally and abroad that the board
of directors finds is related to the above objects.The company has no employees.
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd, formerly named Falck Nutec Ltd., is a private limited liability company pursuant
to the UK Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing UK laws and regulations domiciled in United Kingdom. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd and the commercial
name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in United Kingdom on 3rd February 1993 and
registered in the UK Companies Registry with the registered number 2786348 and LEI-code
549300Q5IY137JC6WJ21. The company's registered business address is Haverton Hill Industrial Estate, Billingham, Cleveland, TS23 1PZ, United Kingdom and the company's telephone number is +
44-1642566656.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.. The purpose of the company is
to directly - or indirectly through the holding of shares or other kinds of participating interests in
domestic or foreign undertakings- to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within
the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or
indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board
of directors finds is related to the above objects. The company has 100 employees.
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RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V., formerly named Falck Nutec B.V., is a private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) pursuant to the Dutch Private Limited
Liability Companies Act and supplementing Dutch laws and regulations domiciled in The Netherlands.
The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. and the commercial name is RelyOn
Nutec. The company was incorporated in The Netherlands on 20th December 2004 and registered in
the Netherlands Chamber of Commerce Business Register with the registered number 28102589 and
LEI-code 549300LCNW4AB54CYM19. The company's registered business address is Beerweg 71,
3199 LM, Maasvlakte Rotterdam, The Netherlands, and the company's telephone number is +31 181
376 600.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. The purpose of the
company is to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire,
rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any
other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds
is related to the above objects. The company has 85 employees.
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd is a private limited liability company (Sendirian Berhad) pursuant to the Malaysian Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Malaysian laws and regulations domiciled in Malaysia. The legal name of the company is MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd and the commercial name
is MSTS. The company was incorporated in Malaysia on 5th January 2000 and registered in the Malaysian Chamber of Commerce Commercial with the registered number 502823-K and LEI-code
549300N4NA3G47GH8390. The company's registered business address is Lot 6.05, Level 6 KPMG
Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama Petaling Jaya 47800, Selangor Malaysia, and the company's
telephone number is +60 6-292 2069.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd is owned 95% by RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S. The purpose of the company is to
provide maritime safety and consultancy services for the oil and gas industry. The company has 83
employees.
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. is a private limited liability company (Sendirian Berhad) pursuant to the Malaysian Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Malaysian laws and regulations
domiciled in Malaysia. The legal name of the company is Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. and the commercial
name is Risktec. The company was incorporated in Malaysia on 20th October 2003 and registered in
the Malaysian Chamber of Commerce Commercial with the registered number 631761-U and LEIcode 549300ELTSY19VFZW363. The company's registered business address is 48 Jalan Kota Laksamana 2/15, Taman Kota Laksamana, Seksyen 2, 75200 Melaka, Malaysia and company number is
+60-6-2836620.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. is owned 100% by MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd. The purpose of the company is to The
purpose of the company is to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within the
areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or
indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board
of directors finds is related to the above objects. Currently Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. is carrying out the
above purpose indirectly as holding company. The company has no employees.
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd., formerly named Falck Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd, is a private
limited liability company (Sendirian Berhad) pursuant to the Malaysian Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Malaysian laws and regulations domiciled in Malaysia. The legal name
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of the company is RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd. and the commercial name is RelyOn Bestari.
The company was incorporated in Malaysia on 6 May 2010 and registered in the Malaysian Chamber
of
Commerce
Commercial
with
the
registered
number
900073-M
and
LEI-code
54930074OHF5PP3BR895. The company's registered business address is 48, Jalan Kota Laksamana
2/15, Taman Kota Laksamana, Seksyen 2, 75200, Melaka, Malaysia, and the company's telephone
number is +60-6-2836620.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd. is owned 82% by MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd. The purpose of the
company is to The purpose of the company is to The purpose of the company is to carry on business
within theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related
areas as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any other business by cooperating with
parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds is related to the above objects. The
company has 9 employees.
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., formerly named Falck Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., is a private limited liability company (Sendirian Berhad) pursuant to the Malaysian Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Malaysian laws and regulations domiciled in Malaysia. The legal name of
the company is RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The
company was incorporated in Malaysia on 13th September 2002 and registered in the Malaysian
Chamber of Commerce Commercial with the registered number 592413-U and LEI-code
549300L6R1D0E83LQI66. The company's registered business address is Lot 6.05, Level 6 KPMG
Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama Petaling Jaya 47800, Selangor Malaysia, and the company's
telephone number is +60-6-2836620.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. is owned 95% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. The purpose of the
company is to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire,
rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any
other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds
is related to the above objects. The company has 4 employees.
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA, formerly named Falck Safety Services Belgium BVBA., is a private
limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) pursuant to the
Belgium Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing Belgium laws and regulations
domiciled in Belgium. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in Belgium on 13th December 2013
and registered in the Belgium Companies Registry with the registered number BE0543401225 and
LEI-code 5493000Z52PE6385SH78. The company's registered business address is Esplanadestraat
1, 8400 Oostende, Belgium and the company's telephone number is +32 059295910.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V, however with RelyOn
Nutec Holding A/S owning one share. The purpose of the company is to carry on business within
theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas
as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties
domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds is related to the above objects.The company
has 9 employees.
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC, formerly named Falck USA Holdings, LLC., is a Delaware limited
liability company pursuant to the US Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing US
laws and regulations domiciled at Houma, Louisiana. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec
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USA Holdings, LLC and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in the
State of Delaware on March 7, 2008 and registered with the registered number 4515417 and LEIcode 549300XEKA6ZK8SC7720. The company's registered business address is 209 Clendenning
Road, Houma, La 70363, United States and the company's telephone number is +1 866-404-9564.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S. The purpose of the
company is directly - or indirectly through the holding of shares or other kinds of participating interests in domestic or foreign undertakings- to carry on business within theoretical and practical training
within the areas of fire, rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly
and/or indirectly in any other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the
board of directors finds is related to the above objects. The company has no employees.
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc.
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc., formerly named Alford Services, Inc., is a legal corporation pursuant to
the US Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing US laws and regulations domiciled
at Houma, Louisiana. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in the State of Louisiana on 26th June
1996 with the registered number 34531108D and LEI-code 5493005YKW11YUL1Z007. The company's registered business address is 209 Clendenning Road, Houma, La 70363, United States and the
company's telephone number is +1 866-404-9564.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc. is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC. The purpose of the
company is to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire,
rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any
other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds
is related to the above objects. Currently RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc is carrying out the above purpose
indirectly as holding company. The company has no employees.
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC, formerly named Alford Safety Services, LLC., is a Louisiana limited liability
company pursuant to the US Private Limited Liability Companies Act and supplementing US laws and
regulations domiciled at Houma, Louisiana. The legal name of the company is RelyOn Nutec USA,
LLC and the commercial name is RelyOn Nutec. The company was incorporated in the state of Louisiana on 14th November 2000 with the registered number 35005427K and LEI-code
549300BUOUT85VYBQK10. The company's registered business address is 209 Clendenning Road,
Houma, La 70363, United States and the company's telephone number is +1 866-404-9564.
Website: www.relyonnutec.com 1
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC. The purpose of the
company is to carry on business within theoretical and practical training within the areas of fire,
rescue, safety, offshore and related areas as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any
other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds
is related to the above objects. The company has 125 employees.
Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd
Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd is a private limited liability company pursuant to the UK Private Limited
Liability Companies Act and supplementing UK laws and regulations domiciled in United Kingdom.
The legal name of the company is Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd and the commercial name is Aberdeen
Drilling School. The company was incorporated in United Kingdom on 11th March 1982 and registered
in the UK Companies Registry with the registered number SC077855 and LEI-code
5493003NW0YLBH8FE682. The company's registered business address is 50 Union Glen, Aberdeen,
AB11 6ER, Scotland and the company's telephone number is +44 (0) 1224 572709.
Website: www.aberdeendrilling.com 1
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Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S. The purpose of the company is directly - or indirectly through the holding of shares or other kinds of participating interests
in domestic or foreign undertakings- to carry on business within theoretical and practical training
within the areas of drilling and well control as well as to participate directly and/or indirectly in any
other business by cooperating with parties domestically and abroad that the board of directors finds
is related to the above objects. The company has 19 employees.
Operations of the Group
The org chart, attached to the Registration Document, shows the subsidiaries of the Company and
the legal structure of the Group as of the date of this Registration Document.
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6. Business overview
RelyOn Nutec is a global provider of safety training services to the oil and gas, wind and maritime
industry globally, and other related business. RelyOn Nutec’s mission is to manage and deliver training for the customers, so that they can focus on their core business. They want to ensure that their
customers are competent and compliant at the right time to the right level. RelyOn Nutec offers
training and compliance services according to international and national standards in the key sectors:
Oil & gas, maritime, industrial and renewables. RelyOn Nutec offers OPITO accredited, basic and
refresher training. Course offering includes Basic Offshore Safety (BOSIET), Helicopter Underwater
Escape (HUET), Emergency Breathing Systems (EBS), GWO courses (wind) and maritime training
according to OPITO, NOROG or STCW. Training services includes well control, scaffolding, rigging
and slinging, crane operator and lifting equipment handling. Other related training services includes
crisis management and emergency response training, health & safety training and training/compliance management solutions.
RelyOn has 34 active training facilities with international presence in most major oil and gas hubs
with the majority of the facilities located in Europe, Asia and the US. RelyOn has a local maritime
presence in Europe, US and Southeast Asia, and the wind presence is only in Europe. The training
centres serving more than 250,000 delegates in 21 countries on six different continents annually.

For more information on each training locations, please see https://relyonnutec.com/
RelyOn Nutec works with a wide range of organisations to help build competence through the delivery
of professional training. Over the years, RelyOn Nutec has diversified course offering to meet the
needs of a wide range of industrial sectors. Across all sectors, we provide accredited training via
dedicated facilities worldwide.
Safety training
RelyOn Nutec’s health & safety training is designed to deliver the core skills and knowledge required
to keep people safe and well at all times. All training is delivered through a combination of regular
open courses and specific courses designed to meet the requirements of individual customers.
Courses range from basic offshore health & safety and fire awareness to industrial and commercial
health & safety training, covering both legislative and operational topics.
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Maritime training
RelyOn Nutec has trained maritime personnel for over three decades and ensure that all maritime
training meets the most stringent of standards like STCW. Many of the courses are accredited by
organisations such as USCG, MCA, DMA, NSI, RYA, NMD. The courses cover a wide range of basic,
refresher and advanced maritime safety training, including sea survival, fast rescue boat and survival
craft STCW courses.
Renewables training
RelyOn Nutec provides dedicated safety training for the wind power and renewables sectors. The
experience and knowledge of safety training for the offshore energy sector has proven invaluable in
the development and delivery of practical, realistic safety training fully aligned to the needs of RelyOn
Nutec’s customers in this sector. The facilities cater for the training needs of employees working at
all stages of wind farm development from onshore construction to offshore decommissioning. RelyOn
Nutec are accredited to deliver the GWO training package covering five core modules: Working at
Height, Survival, Fire Fighting, Manual Handling and First Aid, Advanced Rescue Training and Enhanced First Aid.
Fire training
Fire training should be as practical and realistic as possible. RelyOn Nutec’s instructors are all exfirefighters with the practical knowledge of dealing with emergency situations. Courses are delivered
in a variety of training simulators where realistic fire scenarios are created to simulate emergency
situations. The advanced and basic training programs use the latest techniques and technologies in
a safe, controlled environment to ensure that all trainees receive maximum benefit from the course
experience.
Crisis management
Options for training programmes range for full-scale scenario-based exercises onboard or onsite
through to simulation-based training in RelyOn Nutec’s crisis management facilities around the world.
During the training, participants will be confronted with incidents that can occur while they are executing their normal daily activities. Various realistic scenarios, matched to work processes and procedures, train the participants on how to act and communicate in crisis situations. The scenarios can
include both senior and operational staff.
Well control training
Drilling crews play an essential role in running a safe and successful drilling operation. RelyOn Nutec
offer well control services and well control training on an international basis. Courses are offered at
various role-specific levels for drill crew, well engineers, drilling supervisors, OIMs and individuals
with a requirement to hold an IWCF or IADC Well Control certificate.
Lifting & crane training
RelyOn Nutec offer technical training across all aspects of rigging and mechanical lifting. RelyOn
Nutec’s training facilities are designed to reflect the complex, often difficult working environments
that arise on a daily basis in many industries. The instructors have proven 'on the job' experience.
Online courses
Technology has made it possible to ensure competences are maintained over time via e-learning.
RelyOn Nutec tailor online training to the costumers needs and continually explore the possibilities
in e-learning to create the most effective and enjoyable training experience.
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7. Administrative, management and supervisory bodies
ISSUER:
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S
Board of Directors:

Executive Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Jakob Thomasen

Chairman

Torben Harring

Chief Executive Officer

Jesper Teddy Lok

Board member

Henrik Bonnerup

Board member

Jan Damsgaard

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the Company's business address.

GUARANTORS:
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Jakob Thomasen

Chairman

Torben Harring

Chief Executive Officer

Jesper Teddy Lok

Board member

Henrik Bonnerup

Board member

Jan Damsgaard

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Torben Korsgaard

Chairman

Claus Nexø Hansen

Managing Director

Søren Strøm

Board member

Torben Harring

Board member

Jesper Rene Daubjerg

Employee elected

René Kjer Petersen

Employee elected

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Torben Harring

Chairman

Søren Strøm

Board member

The company has no own management.

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
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RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Colin Leyden

Chairman

Duncan Bonner

Uk Managing Director

Torben Harring

Board member

Søren Strøm

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.
Board of Directors:
Name

Management:
Position

The company has no own management.

RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V
The board of directors can be reached at the company's business address.
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Wan Shukry

Chairman

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Managing Director

Torben Harring

Board member

Roslee Bin Abdul RahimT

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Wan Shukry

Chairman

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Managing Director

Roslee Bin Abdul RahimT

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Wan Shukry

Chairman

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Managing Director

Dr. Muzaffar Bin Salim

Board member

Dr. Muzaffar Bin Salim

Head of medical service

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
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RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Name

Position

Wan Shukry

Chairman

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Managing Director

Torben Harring

Board member

Roslee Bin Abdul Rahim

Board member

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA
Board of Directors:

Management:

The company has no board of directors.

Name

Position

Peter Van Cauwenberghe
The person referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Torben Harring

Chairman

Søren Strøm

Board member

The company has no own management.

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc.
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Jennifer Lewis

Chairman

Jarod Richard

Board member

The company has no own management.

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

Jennifer Lewis

Chairman

Jarod Richard

Board member

The company has no own management.

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.
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Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd
Board of Directors:

Management:

Name

Position

James Sutherland

Chairman

Torben Harring

Board member

Colin Leyden

Board member

The company has no own management.

The persons referred to above can be reached at the company's business address.

Set out below are brief biographies of the members of the Board of Directors and Management of
the Issuer and Guarantors in alphabetical order:
Claus Nexø Hansen
Claus Nexø Hansen has a B. Sc. Management & Leadership and a Master of Business Administration.
Mr. Hansen joined RelyOn Nutec in 2008 and has previous experience from PP Mester Maling.
Colin Leyden
Mr. Leyden has a Graduate Diploma from Glasgow College of Technology in 1989. He has previous
experience from among others Norgren, MD UK & Ireland, Novar Systems UK and Polaroid (UK) Ltd.
Dr. Muzaffar Bin Salim
Dr. Muzaffar holds a degree in Medicine from University of Adelaide, South Australia. He joined
MSTS/RelyOn Nutec in 2010 as Head of Medical Service, responsible in Clinical management and
operation apart from being a general practitioner.
Duncan Bonner
Mr. Bonner has a Diploma in Safety Management an joined RelyOn Nutec in 2016. Mr. Bonner has
previous experience from Randi Smith Training Solutions, MSIS, Maersk Training and NSL.
Henrik Bonnerup
Mr. Bonnerup has experience with management, M&A, financial and strategy. He also holds directorship in Allianceplus Holding A/S, Jetpak Top Holding AB and RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S.
Jakob Thomasen
Mr. Thomasen has experience with management of global, listed shipping and oil companies, strategy, investment, sale and purchase, financial issues and risk management. He also holds directorship
in DHI A/S, ESVAGT A/S and RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S.
James Sutherland
Mr James Sutherland joined RelyOn Nutec in 2017. He has a ba ckground in finance and carried out
Financial Director roles in the oil and gas industry before joining Aberdeen Drilling School.
Jan Damsgaard
Mr Damsgaard is a Professor at Copenhagen Business School, Department of Digitalization. Mr Damsgaard joined RelyOn Nutec as board member in August 2019.
Jarod Richard
Mr. Richard is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) authorized in the State of Louisiana, USA, an MBA
from the Nicholls State University and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Louisiana State University. He has previous experience from previous financial management positions at
Gulf Island Fabrication, Inc. and International Offshore Services, LLC, as well as in telecommunications and public accounting.
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Jennifer Lewis
Mrs. Lewis has a Bachelors in Science, Business Management. She has previous experience from
among others Petrofac Training Services, VP Business Solutions.
Jesper Teddy Lok
Mr. Lok has experience with general management, shipping, financial and business insight. He also
holds directorship in Allianceplus Holding A/S, Dagrofa ApS, Global Maritime Forum Fonden, Newsec
Datea A/S, RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S, Santa Fe Group A/S and Vestergaard Company A/S.
Jesper Rene Daubjerg
Mr. Daubjerg is finance assistant and joined RelyOn Nutec in 2008. He has previous experience from
i.a. DSV Road.
Peter van Cauwenberghe
Mr. Peter van Cauwenberghe joined RelyOn Nutec in 2014. Mr. Peter van Cauwenberghe has a master
in Industrial Psychology and a post bachelor in marketing. He has previously held positions in Matexpo NV, Expo Advice and Expo Support.
René Kjer Petersen
Mr. Kjer Petersen is Operational Team Leader and joined RelyOn Nutec in 2008.
Roslee Bin Abdul RahimT
Mr. Roslee graduated with a degree in Electrical and Computer Science from Institute University of
Technology Angouleme, University of Poitier, France. He was attached to various companies responsible in oil and gas business development.
Søren Strøm
Mr. Strøm is a State Authorized Public Accountant (CPA), Cand. Merc. Aud (M.Sc. Econ) and a HD(R)
(B.Sc. Econ). He has previous experience from among others SimCorp A/S, DT Group A/S, Maersk
Line, Clipper Group Ltd and EY as State Authorized Public Accountant and Partner.
Torben Harring
Mr. Harring has an Executive MBA from Copenhagen Business School in 2007 and a M.Sc. from
KVL/University of Copenhagen in 1997. He joined Falck Safety Services in 2014. Mr. Harring has
previously held positions in Dong Energy, DLG Group and Rockwool Group.
Torben Korsgaard
Mr. Korsgaard holds a BA Honors Business Studies. Mr. Korsgaard joined RelyOn Nutec (formerly
Falck Safety Services) in 1998 and held prior to joining positions in J. Lauritzen Shipping and Maersk
Drilling.
Wan Shukry
Mr. Wan Shukry holds a Master of Science degree from World Maritime University in Sweden. He
joined MSTS as Managing Director in 2000. Prior to this, he was the Principal/Chief Executive Officer
of Maritime Academy Malaysia responsible for the overall management, operation and development
of the academy.
Potential conflict of interest
There are currently no potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the
persons referred to in this section and their private interests or other duties.
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8. Major shareholders
ISSUER:
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S share capital is DKK 2,321,925 divided into 2,321,925 shares with each
share having a nominal value of DKK 1. There is only one class of shares and there are no differences
in voting rights between the shares.
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S is indirectly owned and controlled by Polaris Private Equity IV K/S (CVRnumber 36486597). The structure is the following: Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S s owned 100% by PHolding RelyOn Nutec A/S. P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S is owned and controlled by P-RelyOn Nutec
2018 A/S (CVR-number 38826658), however a small minority shareholding is held by selected members of management. Polaris Private Equity IV K/S owns 98.5 % of P-RelyOn Nutec 2018 A/S. The
remaining 1.5% is owned by CIV af December 2014 K/S (CVR-number 36550856).
Polaris is a private equity company investing in mid-sized companies. There are no measures in place
to ensure that such control is not abused.
There are no arrangements known to the Issuer nor Guarantors, the operation of which may at a
subsequent date result in a change in control of the Issuer or any Guarantors.
GUARANTORS:
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S share capital is DKK 50,142,100 divided into 50,142,100 shares with each
share having a nominal value of DKK 1. RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S is owned 100% by the Issuer.
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S share capital is DKK 2,010,000 divided into 20,100 shares with each
share having a nominal value of DKK 100. RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S is owned 100% by RelyOn
Nutec Holding A/S.
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. share capital is EUR 102,666.65 divided into 102,666,650 shares with
each share having a nominal value of EUR 0.01. RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V is owned 100% by RelyOn
Nutec Holding A/S.
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd share capital is GBP 100,000 divided into 100,000 shares with each share
having a nominal value of GBP 1. RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. share capital is EUR 18,000 divided into 18,000 shares with each
share having a nominal value of EUR 1. RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. is owned 100% by RelyOn
Nutec Holding B.V.
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd. share capital is RM 100,000 divided into 100,000 shares with each share having
a nominal value of RM 1. MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd. is owned 40% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. share capital is RM 500,000 divided into 500,000 shares with each share
having a nominal value of RM 1. Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. is owned 100% by MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd issued share capital is RM 580,000 divided into 580,000 shares
with each share having a nominal value of RM 1. RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd is owned 82%
by MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. share capital is RM 1,000 divided into 1,000 shares with each share
having a nominal value of RM1. RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. is owned 60% by RelyOn Nutec
Holding B.V.
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RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA share capital is EUR 2,100,000 divided into 3,382,000 shares without
nominal value. RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V, however
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S owning 1 share.
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC share capital has no shares issued and is owned 100% by RelyOn
Nutec Holding A/S.
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc. with 90 issued shares. RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc. is owned 100% by
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC.
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC has no shares issued and is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings,
LLC.
Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd share capital is GBP 141,711 divided into 141,711 shares with each
share having a nominal value of GBP 1. Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd is owned 100% by RelyOn Nutec
Holding A/S.
For the Guarantors where the Group holds an ownership share of less than 50%, the Group has
determined that it has control of these Guarantors due to rights arising from the shareholders’ agreements. The Guarantors are thus also classified as subsidiaries and fully consolidated.
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9. Financial information
ISSUER:
The consolidated financial statements for BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the European Union as well as additional Danish disclosure requirements applying to entities of reporting class C for large enterprise. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the annual financial statements which are
attached to this Registration Document.
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S
* 30.03 - 31.12.2018

Parent
2018*
audited

Group
2018*
audited

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

Page 44
Page 45
Page 46 - 49
Page 49
Page 51 - 52

Page 18
Page 19
Page 21
Page 23 - 42
Page 40 - 42
Page 51 - 52

GUARANTORS:
The financial statements for the Danish Guarantors have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.

RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 7
Page 8-9
Page N/A
Page 11-16
Page 17-21
Page 2-4

Page 7
Page 8-9
Page N/A
Page 11-13
Page 14-17
Page 3-5

Page 8
Page 9-10
Page N/A
Page 12-16
Page 17-20
Page 2-4

Page 8
Page 9-10
Page N/A
Page 12-15
Page 16-19
Page 3-5

The financial statements for the Dutch Guarantors have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.

RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10
Page 10-11
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10
Page 10-11
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-9
Page N/A
Page 10-16
Page 10
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 5
Page N/A
Page 7-22
Page 7
Separate report
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The financial statements for the British Guarantors have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.

RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 9
Page 10
N/A
Page 12-21
Page 12-14

Page 9
Page 10
N/A
Page 12-21
Page 12-14

Page 6
Page 7-8
N/A
Page 10-18
Page 10-14

Page 4
Page 5-6
N/A
Page 8-16
Page 8-12

Page 6-8

Page 6-8

Page 3-5

accountant report
page 3

The financial statements for the Malaysian Guarantors have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.
Please note that the design of the statement of financial position and the balance sheet have been
changed in format in some of the financial statements between 2017 and 2018 due to change of
auditor.

MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 5
Page 6-7
Page 11-12
Page 37-56
Page 13-37
Page 58-61

Page 10-11
Page 12-13
Page 17-18
Page 37-65
Page 19-36
Page 6-9

Page 5
Page 6
Page 8
Page 19 to 24
Page 9-18
Page 26-29

Page 10
Page 11
Page 13
Page 22-27
Page 14-22
Page 6-9

RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd.

RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 5
Page 6
Page 8
Page 23-33
Page 9-23
Page 35-38

Page 10
Page 11
Page 13
Page 26-36
Page 14-26
Page 6-9

Page 5
Page 6
Page 8
Page 13-17
Page 9-13
Page 19-22

Page 10
Page 11
Page 13
Page 20-24
Page 14-19
Page 6-9
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The financial statements for the Belgium Guarantor have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.

RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 7
Page 4
Page 4
Page 23
Page 20
Separate report

Page 7
Page 4
Page 4
Page 23
Page 20
Separate report

The financial statements for the American Guarantors have been audited and prepared in accordance
with local GAAP. The financial information included herein should be read in connection with the
annual financial statements which are attached to this Registration Document.

RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc.

2018
audited

2017
audited

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page10-13
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10-13
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10-15
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10-15
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC

Income statement
Balance sheet
Cash flow statement
Notes
Accounting principles
Auditors report

2018
audited

2017
audited

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10-18
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

Page 6
Page 7-8
Page N/A
Page 10-18
Page 3-5
Page 3-5

Other statements for the Group
There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which
are pending or threatened of which the Issuer or Guarantors are aware), during a period covering at
least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past significant effects on
the Issuer and/or Group's financial position or profitability.
There is no significant change in the financial performance of the Group since the end of the last
financial period for which financial information has been published. Furthermore, there has been no
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material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer or Guarantors since the date of their last
published audited financial statements.
There are no recent events in particular to the Issuer or Guarantors which are to a material extent
relevant to the evaluation of the Issuer or Guarantors solvency.
There are no material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary course of the Issuer's or
Guarantors business, which could result in any group member being under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the Issuer’s or Guarantors ability to meet its obligation to security holders
in respect of the securities being issued.
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10. Documents on display
For the term of the Registration Document the following documents, where applicable, can be inspected:
•
•

the up to date memorandum and articles of association of the Issuer and the Guarantors;
all reports, letters, and other documents, valuations and statements prepared by any expert at the Issuer’s or any Guarantors request any part of which is included or referred to
in the registration document.

The documents may be inspected at www.relyonnutec.com.
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11. Attachments
According to section 9 of the Registration Document, the 2018 financial information regarding the
Issuer and the Guarantors financial statements for 2017 and 2018 are attached to this Registration
Document as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S – Org. chart
Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S - Annual report 2018 (30.03 - 31.12.2018)
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec UK Ltd - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc. - Annual report 2018 and 2017
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC - Annual report 2018 and 2017
Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd - Annual report 2018 and 2017
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Management review
“A solid start for us as an
independent company”

For 2018 our full year (unaudited) proforma revenue
increased from DKK 756 million in 2017 to DKK 831
million in 2018, while EBITDA increased from DKK 69
million in 2017 to DKK 97 million in 2018.

Preparation
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU and with the recommendation
outlined by Danish Venture Capital Association.

RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S (formerly Falck
Safety Service Holding A/S) were successfully
carved out of the Falck Group on 20 September
2018 and acquired by Polaris Private Equity via
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S.

Outlook
We have a real opportunity to leverage our leading
international position by driving commercial
excellence, service expansions and global alignment.

Operation
The Annual Report for the group consist of the
consolidated numbers from closing, i.e. 20 September – 31
December 2018.
In 2018 the primary source of revenue derives from safety
training. Revenue and EBITDA for the period amounts to
DKK 248 million and DKK 35 million respectively.

The Annual Report covers the period from 30
March 2018, where the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
was formed to acquire Falck Safety Services
Holding A/S (Now RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S).
However, the Annual Report only includes
consolidated numbers for the RelyOn Nutec
Group from closing, i.e. 20 September to 31
December 2018.
Following the effect of the downturn in the oil
and gas sector, we have in recent years
conducted a thorough and necessary global
cost adjustment and carved out more than one
third of the cost base. In parallel we initiated a
process of streamlining and commercialising
our business. This has now started to pay off,
and we are well on track with our plan as a
stand alone business.
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We see signs of recovery of the Oil & Gas sector
within the next one to three years, and long term
supportive growth in the offshore wind and the
maritime sectors.

Furthermore there are interesting acquisition
opportunities that can further strengthen our
position both in terms geographic expansion, service
portfolio expansions and digitalisation.
Safety
We have instructed and guided in safety training for
decades. Safety is our DNA and is of outmost
importance to us. We continuously strive to provide a
safe environment for our employees and delegates
and we encourage them to think about safety in their
daily work.

The result for the year amounts to DKK -20 million and
includes one cost of DKK 27 million related to the
acquisition.
The result for the year is deemed as satisfactory.
Cash flow
Operating activities in the period generated a net outflow
of DKK -11 million. There was a net cash outflow from
investing activities of DKK 482 million, where of DKK 413
million is related to the acquisition of Falck Safety Services
Holding A/S. Cash inflow from Financing activities was DKK
599 million. The vast majority, DKK 624 million, related to
the financing of the acquisition mentioned before.
Acquisition
RelyOn Nutec has acquired the remaining 75% of the
shares in Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd. as of October 2018.

“Changing our name
signals an acceleration
of our transformation
and expansion”
Torben Harring
Group CEO

Søren Strøm
Group CFO

Key figures
Financial highlights
Profit and loss accounts

DKKm
248
35

Revenue
Operating profit before depreciation, amortization,
and impairment losses (EBITDA)
Operating profit before other items (EBITA)
Net financials
Profit/loss for the year

DKKm
(11)

Investing activities

(482)

24

Hereof investments in intangible and tangible fixed assets

(21)

(6)

Financing activities

599

Net cash flow for the year

106

(19)

Balance sheet
Total assets

Cash flows
Operating activities

1,001

Investments

369

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company

277

Employees
Average number of employees

1,043

Key Ratios
Solvency ratio (%) (Equity / Assets)

28%

The financial ratios have been calculated in accordance with the recommendations of the Association of Danish
Financial Analysts (2015).

Locations and sectors (% of revenue 2018)

4

5

20

+30

+250K

Continents

Countries

training
centres

trained
annually

Offshore Oil & Gas

~65%

Renewables

~4%

Maritime

~3%

Industrial

~28%

Our legacy
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RelyOn Nutec evolved from a Danish fire training
provider to an international multi-service safety,
survival and skills training provider
RelyOn Nutec has grown steadily to be the
world’s leading international training provider.
With operations in key locations worldwide, we
continue to build on the foundations of the past,
as we look to future.
Focused on our mission
Our mission is to manage and deliver training for
our customers, so that they can focus on their
core business. We want to ensure that your
people are competent and compliant at the right
time to the right level. We ensure they have the
skills to deliver your business goals.
True to our foundation
Our business was founded on the belief that real
life, practical training is the key to acquiring the
competences needed to execute complex and
dangerous tasks. Whether the challenge is
focused on fire or water, we will train your
people to better understand their own
emotional reactions in stressful situations. By
ensuring people are familiar with these
emotions under expertly managed conditions,
we give them the skills to respond under any
crisis situation.
Responding to customer needs
Our extensive experience has given us an
unrivalled insight into the ever-changing needs
of our customers in the market. As more and
more customers look to outsource their training
management needs, we have developed
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Training Management Services as a core part of
our business today. Indeed, our expertise in
navigating and administering the complex
landscape of training regulations, and turning it
into a seamless, structured training process has
proven to be the most cost effective and
efficient way to ensure personnel are compliant.
Embracing new technologies
Technological advances are driving our industry
to new levels of effectiveness. New tools and
approaches such as 3D digital platforms,
elearning and blended training are making the
training experience increasingly realistic – and
increasingly efficient. We have formed a series
of partnerships with technology partners to help
our customers embrace the many benefits of
these exciting new training techniques.
Driving our expertise forward
Many of the sectors in which we operate have
experienced major changes and challenges in
recent years. Increasingly we have seen shortterm global economic pressures impact on our
customers’ long-term business forecasts. Many
businesses worldwide have had to rationalise
and reinvent themselves. To ensure that we
continue to help our customers to navigate this
landscape, we look to drive continuous
improvement in our own business. Our ambition
is to always be at the forefront of innovation in
training and skills development to ensure our
customers are among the first to benefit from
the new solutions of the future.

Global Safety Group (NUTEC)
acquired

Falck acquires shares in Esbjerg
Brandstation

2006

Establishes training as a
separate division

2009

Establishes new facilities in
Thailand, Vietnam, Singapore
and Abu Dhabi

2012

Acquires Caspian Safe in
Azerbaijan

2014

Acquires Sørlandets Sikkerhet
in Norway & OST in Houston.
Opens new facilities in
Belgium, Netherlands & Dubai

2017

Acquires Aberdeen Drilling
School

2019

Changed name to RelyOn
Nutec

2004

Acquires Alford Group in
Louisiana, Onsite in United
Kingdom and a facility in
Nigeria

2008

Acquires shares in P.T. Samson
Tiara in Indonesia. Opens new
facilities in Texas and New
Orleans

2010

Opens new facilities in
Germany, Mexico &
Netherlands. Acquiring Survival
System Training in Canada

2013

Establishes training center in
Qatar

2016

Acquired by Polaris

1997

2018

Our business
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WE SEE SAFETY FROM A COMPLETE 360° PERSPECTIVE
OUR VALUE PROPOSITION
WE ARE THE GLOBAL PARTNER IN SAFETY
SOLUTIONS THAT PUTS PEOPLE FIRST

The 360º safety cycle enables us to uncover all elements of risk to our
customers' safety.
By taking the 360° perspective we help consider risks that people may not
even be aware of, especially those beyond regulatory compliance.

8

Corporate governance
& risk
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Corporate governance
Board of Directors
The general Meeting elects the members of
the Board of Directors.

Shareholders

The Board of Directors shall annually revise and
oversee the overall strategy, business and action
plan for RelyOn Nutec and approve the annual
budget for the next financial year.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has decided not to
establish an Audit Committee, however the
Board of Directors handles the tasked related to
such an committee.

Executive Management
CEO & CFO
Portf.mgmt and
Development

Commercial

Legal & Compliance

Denmark

United Kingdom

Asia

Middle East

Gulf of Mexico

Nigeria

Brazil

Canada

Group Management Team
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The board of Directors will convene at least four
times per year.

Norway

Central Europe

Outline of responsibility:
• Lay down general business and management
principles of the Company
• Decide on strategy and risk policies for the
Company
• Supervise the performance of the Company,
the Executive Management and secure the
proper organization of the Company
• Review the Company’s financial position,
capital resources and reporting on financials
and performance
• Appoint members of the Executive
Management

Aberdeen Drilling School

Global Management Team

Executive Management

•

The Executive Management is appointed by
the Board of Directors and consist of Chief
Executive Officer ( Group CEO) and Chief
Financial Officer (Group CFO).

•

The Executive Management is responsible for
RelyOn Nutec’s day-to-day management of the
Company in accordance with the directions
provided by the Board of Directors, among
others comprising:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop the business and provide strategies
for the Company to be approved by the
Board of Directors
Implement the strategy for the Company and
execute on investments and divestments
Develop the organizational structure of the
Company and allocate resources
Drive and monitor the performance of the
Company
Prepare internal and external financial
reporting
Establish internal policies and procedures for
relevant topics such as accounting, finance,
IT, etc.
Oversee Enterprice Risk Management
Report to the Board of Directors

Risk management
RelyOn Nutec is required to consistently identify,
manage and monitor risks globally and rapidly
share risk mitigation solutions against critical
risks.
RelyOn Nutec maintains a reporting and review
process to create an overview of risks and full
transparency into mitigating controls for the
entire Group and its constituent entities, divisions
and business streams.
The objective is to demonstrate that RelyOn
Nutec is aware of risks and is actively managing
top risks in order to deliver the best possible
service to customers, protect the value of the
business, safeguard future earnings and reduce
costs associated with risk events.
Risk is defined as “all threats to the current value
of the business and its future cash flows".
Identification
Identification is made in a joint effort between HQ
and the local teams. Evaluation and control are
performed through the global risk management
platform.
Evaluation
All identified risks are evaluated through the
global risk management platform. Risk
assessment is rated for impact and likelihood.
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Control
Risk response actions depend on the evaluation.
Response actions have the nature of control,
awareness, communication and/or other
preventing actions.
Report
Communication and monitoring are made through
the global risk management platform.

Report

Identification

Control

Evaluation

An overall report is presented to the Executive
Management, which includes risk assessment and
risk response for the following risks:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Safety incidents
Material slowdown in exploration or industry
Change in industry standards
Competition
Technology disruption
Claims and litigations
Taxes and charges
Employment related matters
IT breakdown
Loss of certificates and accreditation

Definition and mitigation of risk are outlined on
page 12 and 13. Financial risk are outlined in note
3.1

Risk management principles
The Board of Directors assist the
Executive Management in overviewing the
Company’s overall risk-taking while the
Executive Management is responsible for
identifying and analyzing material risks and
developing the Company’s risk management.
Exposures and the utilization of the framework
are reported to the Board of Directors on a
monthly basis.

Risk Management
Safety incidents
Risk
Incident occurs where student is severely injured or
even killed.

Material slowdown in exploration or industry
Mitigation
Safety instructions prior to the start of any
training sessions. Documentation of incidents and
close communication with customers about any
incidents.

Change in industry standards
Risk
The Group is affected by various legislation,
regulations and standards, including, global industry
standards, environmental regulations and service
liability regulations with regards to safety and security.
Amendments or restatements of laws, regulations and
standards, leading to stricter requirements and
changed conditions regarding safety, health and
environment, or a development to a stricter
implementation and application by the authorities of
existing laws and regulations may have several
negative implications for the Group.
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Risk
The majority of activities is related to the Oil and
Gas market, ref. note 4. Profitability and cash flow
are dependent on the level of oil and gas capital
spending by such companies who are dependent
on the market price of oil and gas.

Mitigation
Roll-out of Compliance Management Systems are
ongoing, which ensures volume, stickiness and
market intelligence.
Product development and entry into new
industries are ongoing, however, with a decreased
focus towards the oil and gas market.

Competition
Mitigation
The QHSE departments are responsible for
ensuring compliance with existing standards and
for implementing new standards.
The QHSE departments ensure test of new
standards prior to enforcing the change in the
training sessions. After the change in standards,
the regulator is to approve the change in industry
standards before they are reflected in practice.

Risk
The Group's competitors compete on price,
location, quality and range of services, and service
offering availability in a generally commoditized
market, with small differences between the
service providers. There is a risk that an increase in
competition will lead to price pressure within the
industry as a whole and for individual customers
with regards to seeking out new customers, as
well as retaining current customers.

Mitigation
Roll-out of Complimentary Management Systems
are ongoing, which ensures volume, stickiness and
market intelligence.

Risk Management
Technology disruption
Risk
There is a risk that new technologies will be
developed, and that the Group will be unable to
implement these technologies or adapt its service
range and business model in time to exploit the
benefits of new or existing technologies. There is also
a risk of future new technologies making the Group’s
services less competitive and more difficult to sell.

Claims and litigation
Mitigation
The Group monitors the demand for training
through market intelligence and requests from the
market. The Group invests in the areas needed to
keep up with market developments and
technology requirements.

Taxes and charges
Risk
The Group conducts its business in accordance with its
interpretation of applicable tax regulations, including
the applicable tax rates, and applicable requirements
and decisions. There is a risk that changes in legislation
or practice or any challenge by the tax authorities of
the Group's interpretation of applicable laws will lead
to an increase in the Group's tax liabilities and/or lead
to sanctions by the tax authorities, resulting in adverse
effects on the Group's business, earnings and financial
position.
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Mitigation
The exposure is mitigated through two elements:
- The Legal Counsel has approved the possibility
for larger contracts with customers to lower
potential new exposures.
- Insurance is used as mitigation.

Employment related matters
Mitigation
The Group acknowledges its responsibility to pay
accurate taxes and/or charges which are related to
the operation.
The Group is cooperating with local advisors to
ensure compliance with local legislation.

IT breakdown
Risk
The Group depends on information technology to
manage critical business processes, including
administrative and financial functions. Failure of the
Group's information technology systems could cause
transaction errors and loss of customers, and could
have an adverse effect on the Group's business,
earnings, and financial position as well as future
prospects.

Risk
The Group is and may in the future become
involved in different disputes in connection with
its operations. Disputes may relate to inter alia
agreements, intellectual property and failure to
deliver stipulated services. Such disputes may be
costly, time consuming, relate to large amounts
and may disrupt the normal business of the Group.

Risk
As the Group employs staff in different countries,
there are demanding requirements for the Group
to comply with many different labour regulations
and requirements regarding pension schemes,
salaries, working hours, etc.

Mitigation
The Group employs staff according to local
legislation. The Group aims at avoiding crossborder employment to lower the risk for incorrect
employment.

Loss of certificates and accreditation
Mitigation
The Group has a dedicated IT Department to
monitor business critical application.
The Group aims at using standard systems,
whenever possible. The purpose is to lower
exposure and increase the ability to receive
assistance from external resources.

Risk
Several certificates and accreditation are business
critical for the operation.

Mitigation
The Group has enforced a QHSE department to
ensure compliance with standards. The
department is responsible for internal and
external quality audits.

Corporate Social Responsibility
RelyOn Nutec was carved-out from Falck in 2018
and is undergoing a significant transformation.
Corporate Social Responsibility is one of the key
areas of focus and in 2018 the focus was on
preparing and establishing an appropriate
governance and framework around CSR. This work
will continue and be developed in 2019, which will
also entail improved and more detailed reporting
for 2019.
Business model
For a description of our business model please
refer to page 8.
Approach to CSR
RelyOn Nutec does not have a separate CSR policy
as elements that may be included in a CSR policy
are already an integral part of RelyOn Nutec’s
business behavior, including the company’s Code
of Conduct and other relevant specific policies and
procedures.
However, RelyOn Nutec is committed to respect
human rights, to manage environmental impacts
and manage anti-corruption. RelyOn Nutec
adheres to all applicable laws as well as internal
policies and procedures.
Therefore, RelyOn Nutec is in the process of
introducing an improved culture on compliance
and complete a review of the existing framework
and governance. This also entails that new targets
and objectives for the corporate social
responsibility area will be defined during 2019.
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Governance documents and procedures have been
prepared and implemented to support and ensure
that the above vision is complied with. Further, a
management system is in place in order to
support and ensure due implementation,
improving performance and ensure an appropriate
culture with respect to the policies and
procedures in place.
Code of Conduct and UN Global Compact
RelyOn Nutec has a Code of Conduct, outlining
the expectations to and reflecting the principles
on how we conduct our business, and how our
providers and employees are expected and
required to act.
It has been decided that the RelyOn Nutec Group
will work towards signing up to the UN Global
Compact, hence initiatives will be initiated to
ensure that this will be achieved in due course.
This will also entail that the Code of Conduct will
be reviewed and updated during 2019.
Primary CSR Related Risks and Policies
Labour
RelyOn Nutec believes that an engaged and
motivated workforce that is offered development
opportunities will produce better quality work and
be more satisfied. RelyOn Nutec invests in the
development of employee skills, knowledge and
competencies as this is essential for the success of
the group and continued satisfaction of the
employees.

RelyOn Nutec has numerous policies in place to
ensure the well-being, health, safety and security
of our employees, including policy on health and
safety, on safe driving and on human rights. With
respect to health, safety and security we have in
2018 continued to work systematically to
implement improvements across the Group.
The RelyOn Nutec Group wishes to contribute to
the society and to the people that we engage with
when conducting our business. Our commitment
to respect and protect human rights is among
other things following the UN Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights and inspired by ILO
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights
at Work.
Human Rights and Data Protection
Further, RelyOn Nutec has great focus on ensuring
that the employees and customers’ personal data
is not misused. This is ensured by compliance
initiatives and ongoing projects with respect to
processing and protecting personal data to
continuously ensure the highest standard of data
protection. All such data protection projects and
initiatives continued throughout 2018 and are
anchored with the Group General Counsel.
Environment and climate
RelyOn Nutec does not have a separate policy on
environment and climate as this is not deemed
appropriate. However, some environmental
elements are already an integral part of RelyOn
Nutec’s business behavior, including the
company’s Code of Conduct and other relevant
specific policies and procedures.

Anti-corruption
RelyOn Nutec conducts business in accordance
with all relevant laws and regulations in all
counties including the FCPA and the UK Bribery
Act and adheres to all policies and procedures.
The RelyOn Nutec Group operates in areas of the
world where corruption is not an uncommon
practice. Therefore, it is crucial that appropriate
policies and procedures are duly implemented and
that measures are taken to mitigate this risk and
to prevent non-compliant practices. One initiative
implemented in 2018 to mitigate the risk in this
area is a roll-out of business ethics through elearning sessions across the RelyOn Nutec Group.
Continuous focus will remain on anti-corruption
and additional initiatives will be implemented in
order to mitigate and prevent non-compliant
practices.
Activities and Results in 2018
It is assessed by Group Management that the
continued work with and focus on human rights
and corporate social responsibility contributes
positively to the Group’s reputation and
performance.
Due to the transformation RelyOn Nutec has
undergone in 2018, and due to that our CSR
related activities in 2018 were all about creating
the proper set up and governance around CSR, we
do not have results to report area by area. It is our
ambition that this will be possible in 2019.

Diversity
RelyOn Nutec’s core principle for diversity is to
ensure equal conditions and opportunities for
every individual, including gender diversity.
Following this principle, RelyOn Nutec’s approach
to gender diversity is that the composition of the
management levels, over a number of years,
should reflect the composition of the wider group
of employees.
The core principle for diversity is that there must
be equal conditions for all, this applies e.g. both
with respect to external candidates applying for
leadership positions within the RelyOn Nutec
Group and regarding internal promotions.

Europe
Female

40%

Male

60%

Americans
Female

39%

Male

61%

The composition of employees of the RelyOn
Nutec Group consists of 34% women and 66%
men. The management level below Group
Management consists of 21% women and 79%
men. The Board of Directors consist of three men,
while Group Management in 2018 consisted of 3
men and one woman. The target in relation to
gender composition of Group Management is that
at least 20% of Group Management
underrepresented gender. It is the target within
five years, that the Board of Directors must
consider at least 1/3 of the underrepresented
gender.
RelyOn Nutec has continuous focus on diversity
including gender composition across the Group.
Further assessments will be initiated to monitor
diversity within the Group and RelyOn Nutec will
in 2019 define a more detailed policy for this area.
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Asia

Middle East & Africa
Female

13%

Male

87%

Female

39%

Male

61%
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Consolidated financial statements
Statement of comprehensive income

Income statement

Revenue
Other income
Cost of sales and external assistance
Employee costs
Other operating costs

Note
1.1

1.2

Operating profit before depreciation, amortization,
impairment losses and other items (EBITDA)
Depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment

1.3

1.4
1.3

(36)
(2)

1.5
1.6

4
(10)
(20)

1.7

1

Profit/loss for the period

(19)

Profit/loss for the year is attributable to:
Owners of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Non-controlling interests
Total

(22)
3
(19)

18

(19)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange rate adjustments of foreign entities

(2)

Total comprehensive income for the period

(21)

Total comprehensive income for the period is attributable to:
Owners of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Non-controlling interests
Total

(14)

Profit/loss before tax
Income tax

Profit for the period

(11)
24

Operating profit (EBIT)
Financial income
Financial expenses

30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm

35

Operating profit before other items (EBITA)
Special items
Amortization of intangible assets

30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm
248
3
(59)
(113)
(44)

Supplementary information
The consolidated financial statements include
consolidated figures from 20 September 2018
to year-end.

(24)
3
(21)

Consolidated financial statements
Balance sheet

Notes
Goodwill

2.1

31 December
2018
DKKm
136

Notes
Share capital

31 December
2018
DKKm
2

Brands

2.1

55

Foreign currency translation reserve

Customer contracts
Knowhow
Other intangible assets

2.1
2.1

60
27

277
277

2.1

8

Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Property and plant

2.2

205

Total equity

2.5

304

Equipment

2.2

117

Leasehold improvement

2.2

30

Bond

3.6

326

Asset under construction

2.2

17

Provisions

4.3

92

Deferred tax asset

2.3

13

Financial lease

4.4

35

Other non-current assets

4

Total non-current assets

672

Trade receivables

2.4

162

Contract assets

2.4

Prepayments
Other receivables

Other non-current debt

469

Provisions

4.3

12

Credit facility

3.4

12

Trade payables

93

19

Deferred consideration

50

18

Financial lease

24

Other liabilities

106

Total current liabilities

Total current assets

329

Total liabilities

19

27

16

Total non-current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

(2)

1,001

Total equity and liabilities

4.4

4
57
228
697
1,001

Consolidated financial statements
Statement of changes in equity
Share capital

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total equity
attributable
to owners of
Bidco RelyOn
Nutec A/S

Noncontrolling
interests

Total

DKKm
Equity at 30.03.2018

0

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

0

(22)

(22)
(2)

3

(19)
(2)

(22)

(24)

3

(21)

274

276
29

25

0
25

29
25

0

(5)

(5)

(2)

Total comprehensive income for the period

0

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Capital increase

2

(2)

Non-controlling interests on acquisition of subsidiary
Group contribution

0

Dividend

276

Total transactions with shareholders

2

0

299

301

24

325

Equity at 31.12.2018

2

(2)

277

277

27

304
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Consolidated financial statements
Cash flow statement

Notes
Operating profit before depreciation, amortization,
impairment losses and other items (EBITDA)
Changes in net working capital
Interests paid
Income taxes paid
Special items paid

35
4.5
1.6

Net cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of shares from minority shareholders
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash
Change in other investment activities

12
(10)
(2)
(46)
(11)

2.2
2.1

4.2

Net cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Capital increase
Dividend paid, non-controlling interest
Change in other financing activities

30.03 - 31.12.2018
DKKm

(19)
(2)
3
(42)
(413)
(9)
(482)

3.7

348
276
(5)
(20)

Cash flow from financing activities

599

Net cash flow for the period

106

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

21

0
0
4.5

106

Notes

Section 1
Income statement
Note 1.1 Revenue
Note 1.2 Staff costs
Note 1.3 Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses
Note 1.4 Special items
Note 1.5 Financial income
Note 1.6 Financial expenses
Note 1.6 Tax

23
24
24
24
25
25
26

Section 2
Balance
Note 2.1
Note 2.2
Note 2.3
Note 2.4
Note 2.5

27
29
30
30
31

Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Deferred tax
Trade receivable
Share capital

Section 3
Capital structure
Note 3.1 Financial Risk Management
Note 3.2 Market risk
Note 3.3 Credit risk
Note 3.4 Liquidity risk
Note 3.5 Measurement and fair value hierarchy
Note 3.6 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Note 3.7 Capital management
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32
32
33
33
34
34
34

Section 4
Other notes
Note 4.1 Fee to auditors
Note 4.2 Business combination
Note 4.3 Provisions
Note 4.4 Lease
Note 4.5 Cash flow specification
Note 4.6 Related parties
Note 4.7 Commitments and contigent liabilities
Note 4.8 Events after the balance sheet date
Note 4.9 Group companies

35
35
36
37
38
38
38
38
39

Section 5
Basis of preparation
Note 5.1 Basis of preparation
Note 5.2 Accounting policy
Note 5.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

40
40
42

Notes
Note 1.1 - Revenue
Offshore
Oil and gas

Renewable

Maritime

Industrial

30.03 31.12.2018

DKKm
Americas
Asia

51

0

5

4

60

22

0

2

6

30

Europe

59

9

1

53

122

Middle East & Africa

31

0

0

5

36

163

9

8

68

248

Total

Accounting policy
The Group generates revenue from delivering of
safety training services to its customers within
the oil and gas, wind and maritime industry
globally.
Revenue from providing services is recognized in
the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
The activity is pay-per-use, and the payment
terms for customers are 30-60 days, and
invoicing is shortly after completion of courses.
If the services rendered exceed the payment, a
contract asset is recognized. If the payments
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability
is recognized. A receivable is recognized when
the receipt of payment is conditional on passage
of time only.
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Where another party is involved in providing the
services to the customer, the Group assesses on
a contract by contract basis, whether the Group
is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group
is acting as a principal when the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified services itself. On the contrary the
Group is acting as an agent when it is arranging
for the services to be provided by the other
party.
When the Group obtains control over the
specified service before it is transferred to the
customer, it is a principal and thus recognizes
revenue on a gross basis. When the Group is
acting as an agent, the commission rather than
the gross income is recognized as revenue.

Offshore Oil & Gas
Everything from basic safety courses to high-level crisis management
and contingency plans for entire organisations. The ideal combination of
global consistency and local flexibility.

Maritime
We have trained personnel from the maritime industry for over 30 years.
Including the management of passenger safety in the cruise sector.

Industrial
A wide range of training and competency solutions for construction,
engineering, manufacturing, aerospace and aviation, food and drink, and
defence.

Renewables
Practical and realistic safety training designed specifically for the
renewables sector. Dedicated facilities including wind turbine training
towers and boat transfer simulators.

Notes
30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm
Note 1.2 – Staff costs
Wages and salaries

88

Pensions, defined contribution plans
Other social security costs
Other staff costs
Total
Average number of full-time employees

4
8

Note 1.3 - Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, cf. note 2.2
Amortisation, cf. note 2.1
Total

(11)
(2)
(13)

13
113
1,043

Key Management Compensation
Key Management consists of Board of Directors and Group Management Team. The
compensation paid or payable is shown below:
Executive Board and Board of Directors
Other key management personnel

1
1

Total

2

Wages and salaries

2

Pensions

0
2

Total
Accounting policy
Employee costs comprise wages and salaries as well as expenses for payroll and pensions.

Supplementary information
Pursuant to § 98B.3 of the Danish Financial Statements Act the remuneration to the Executive Board
has not been disclosed separately
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30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm

Note 1.4 - Special items
Transactions costs
Restructuring costs
Total

(27)
(9)
(36)

Accounting policy
Special items consist of non-recurring income and expenses that the Group does not consider to be
part of its ordinary operations such as restructuring projects. The use of special items entails
Management judgement in the separation from the ordinary operations of the Group. When using
special items, it is essential that these constitute items that cannot be attributed directly to the
Group's ordinary operating activities.

Notes
30.03 - 31.12.2018
DKKm
Note 1.5 - Financial income
Exchange rate gain
Total
Note 1.6 - Financial expenses
Bond interest (amortized cost)
Other financial expenses
Total

4
4

(7)
(3)
(10)

Accounting policy
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense, realized and
unrealized exchange rate gains and losses and amortization related to financial assets and liabilities.
Dividends to capital holders who have received put options in connection with business
combinations are recognized as a financial expense in cases where the option price is independent of
dividend payments. Financials are recognized at the amounts related to the year.
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Notes
30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm
Note 1.7 - Tax on profit for the period
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the period
Deferred tax on profit for the period
Total
Tax for the period has been recognized as follows:
Tax on profit for the period

(1)
2
1

Corporation tax payables include corporation taxes made up on the basis of estimated taxable
income for the financial year and prior-year adjustments.

Total

1
1

Calculated 22.0% tax on profit for the period before income tax

4

Tax effects of:
Non-taxable income
Non-deductible expenses
Deferred tax adjustment
Difference in foreign tax rates
Total
Effective tax rate

26

Accounting policy
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and the Group’s Danish subsidiaries are jointly taxed. Danish corporation
tax is allocated among the jointly taxed companies according to the taxable income of these
companies. Income tax for the year, consisting of current tax for the year and changes in deferred
tax, is recognized in profit for the year with respect to the part that can be attributed to profit for
the year and in other comprehensive income with respect to the part that can be attributed to other
comprehensive income or directly to equity.

5
(7)
(3)
2
1
5%

Deferred tax is calculated according to the balance sheet liability method and is based on all timing
differences between the carrying amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
not recognized on goodwill that is not tax deductible, and deferred tax is not recognized on
undistributed profits in subsidiaries and timing differences that arose at the time of recognition in
the balance sheet other than for acquisitions, if such differences will not affect profit or taxable
income. When alternative tax rules can be applied to determine the tax base, deferred tax is
measured based on planned use of the asset or settlement of the liability respectively.
Deferred tax assets, including the tax base of tax losses carried forward, are recognized under other
non-current assets at the expected value of their utilization, either as a set-off against tax on future
income or as a set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same legal tax entity and jurisdiction.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset within the same legal tax entity or jurisdiction. Deferred
tax assets are measured at the value at which they are expected to be realized. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rate expected to apply when timing differences are reversed. Changes in
deferred tax as a result of changes in tax rates are recognized in the income statement.

Notes
Note 2.1 - Intangible assets
Goodwill

Brands

Customer
contracts

Knowhow

Other
intangible
assets

Total

DKKm
Cost:
At 30.03.2018
Acquisition of business, cf. note 4.2
Additions
At 31.12.2018

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment:
At 30.03.2018
Amortisation for the period
Exchange rates
At 31.12.2018
Carrying amount 31.12.2018
Remaining expected economic
lifetime

0

0

0

0

0

0

136
0

55
0

63
0

27
0

6
2

287
2

136

55

63

27

8

289

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

(2)
(1)

(0)
(0)

0
0

(2)
(1)

0

0

(3)

(0)

0

(3)

136

55

60

27

8

286

Indefinite

Indefinite

10 years

10 years

3 -5 years

Supplementary information
Brand includes active brands within RelyOn Nutec Group; RelyOn Nutec, Aberdeen Drilling School and MSTS. Nutec is our
heritage. Nutec is dated back to 2004 and it is a symbol for safety training in multiple parts of the world. Aberdeen
Drilling School is a world known-brand to deliver well-control training. MSTS is the local brand in the Asian region, which
is associated with high quality safety training. Nutec is the only material brand, which carrying amount is DKKm 38.

Knowhow includes the knowledge for obtaining business critical certificates, such as OPITO, GWO, ISO etc.
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Accounting policy
Goodwill
Goodwill is recognized in the balance sheet at cost on initial recognition as described under
“Business combinations”, note 4.2. Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment at
least once a year.
On initial recognition, goodwill is allocated to those of the Group’s activities that generate
separate cash flows (cash-generating units). The determination of cash-generating units is
based on the Group’s management structure and internal financial management and
reporting.
Brands
Brands acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. They have an indefinite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
Customer contracts and knowhow
Customer contracts and knowhow acquired in a business combination are recognized at
fair value at the acquisition date. Knowhow are based on obtaining business required
certificates to perform the operation. They have an finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Intangible assets
acquired on acquisitions are amortized over the expected economic life, estimated to be 10
years.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets include software etc. Other intangible assets are measured at cost
including costs which can be directly or indirectly attributed to the assets in question less
accumulated impairment and amortization are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
expected economic life, estimated to be 3 to 5 years.

Notes
Accounting policy
Each year, the assets are reviewed in order to
assess whether there are indications of
impairment. If such indications exist, the
recoverable amount, determined as the higher
amount of the fair value of the asset adjusted
for expected costs to sell and the value in use of
the asset, is calculated. The value in use is
calculated based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted by using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or its cashgenerating unit is lower than the carrying
amount, an impairment charge is recognized in
respect of the asset. The impairment loss is
recognized in the income statement. In addition,
for goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, impairment tests are
performed at each balance sheet date,
regardless of whether there are any indications
of impairment. For acquisitions, the first
impairment test is performed before the end of
the year of acquisition.

In addition, for goodwill and brands with
indefinite useful lives, impairment tests are
performed at each balance sheet date,
regardless of whether there are any indications
of impairment. For acquisitions, the first
impairment test is performed before the end of
the year of acquisition.

Due to the short period between the acquisition
date and the balance sheet date, management
has determined the recoverable amount as fair
value less costs to sell by considering the key
assumptions underlying the transaction price
and changes, if any changes to these
assumptions during the ownership period.

Impairment losses are reversed if the
recoverable amount increases. Impairment
losses will only be reversed to the extent that
the value in use does not exceed the carrying
amount of the asset if the impairment loss had
never been charged. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed.

Fair value less costs to sell is determined on the
basis of a discounted cash flow model. In the
calculation future free net cash flow is
estimated based on budgets and financial
forecasts reflecting expectations as of the
acquisition date adjusted for changes, if any,
during the ownership period. Cash flows
comprise a four year forecast period and a
terminal value. The key parameters in
determining expected cash flows costs to sell
are revenue, EBITDA margin and, capital
expenditure. The revenue growth rate in the
forecast period is between 5% and 9%, and the
EBITDA margin is expected to be constant over
the period. Annual Investments are expected to
amount to 3-7% of revenue.

Impairment test
Goodwill and Brands are monitored by
management at the CGU level. As of 31
December 2018, allocation of goodwill by CGU is
preliminary. Goodwill and brands are
preliminarily allocated to CGU’s, as per below.

Carrying amount
CGU

Goodwill

Brand

Total

Asia

43

24

67

Americans

44

12

58

Europe

40

17

57

Middle East & Africa
Total

28

9

2

11

136

55

191

The post tax discount rate applied is 11.9% and
the growth rate in the terminal period is 1.5%
Fair value is determined on the basis of
unobservable input (level 3)
Critical accounting estimates
Goodwill and Brands have a indefinite lifetime
since there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which Goodwill and Brands are expected to
generate net cash inflows. The group tests
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
on an annual basis. For the 2018 reporting
period, the recoverable amount of the cash
generating units (CGUs) was determined based
on fair value less costs to sell which require the
use of assumptions. The calculations use cash
flow projections for multiple years with
extrapolation beyond the forecast period using
the estimated growth rates.
Factors that played a significant role in the
determining that brands have an indefinite
useful lifetime; 1) brands have existed in
decades, 2) the strategy is based on the brands,
and 3) the brands have a low maintenance costs
attached.

Notes
Accounting policy
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Note 2.2 - Property, plant and
equipment
Land and
buildings

Equipment

Leasehold
improvement

Assets under
construction

Total

0
163

0
123

0
32

0
51

0
369

Transferred

12
38

5
0

1
0

2
(38)

20
0

Disposals

(5)

(8)

0

0

(13)

0
208

(2)
118

(1)
32

2
17

(1)
375

DKKm
Cost:
At 30.03.2018
Acquisition of business
Additions

Exchange difference
At 31.12.2018
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 30.03.2018
Depreciation for the period
Impairment for the period
Reversals regarding disposals
Exchange difference
At 31.12.2018
Carrying amount 31.12.2018
Of which relates to finance
leases, cf. note 4.4

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items.
Depreciations are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Land and buildings
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Land

0

0

0

0

0

(3)
0

(7)
0

(1)
0

0
0

(11)
0

0

8

0

0

8

0
(3)

(2)
(1)

(1)
(2)

0
0

(3)
(6)

205

117

30

17

369

12

15

4

0
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Supplementary information
Committed CAPEX on December 31, 2018 are related to completion of the new facility in
Asia, total DKKm 2
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Cost includes direct costs related to the asset and the initial estimate of the costs related to
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if the costs meet
the definition of a liability. Cost further includes borrowing costs from specific and general
borrowings directly relating to the acquisition, construction or development of the individual
qualifying asset during the period that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use.

25 - 30 years
3 - 10 years
Term of lease
Not depreciated

The residual value and useful life is determined at the date of acquisition and revalued each
year. Where the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, the asset ceases to be depreciated.

Gains and losses on the disposal or scrapping of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the sales price less dismantling, selling and re-establishing costs and
the carrying amount. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement as other
operating income and external expenses, respectively.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s
useful life, as described above, or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if
there is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term.
Each year, the assets are reviews in order to assess, whether there are any indicators of
impairment, cf. note 2.1

Notes
Note 2.4 - Trade receivable and contract assets
2018
DKKm
Note 2.3 – Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax at 30.03.2018
Acquisition of business, cf. note 4.2
Deferred tax reccognised in the income statement
Deferred tax at 31.12.2018
Deferred tax relates to:
Intangible assets
Tax loss carry forward
Total

0
14
(1)
13

The Group has recognized the following assets
related to contracts with customers
Balance as of
30.03.2018
Balance as of
31.12.2018

Contracts
assets
0

0

162

19

164
(2)

20
(1)

162

19

Supplementary information
The increase in balances of receivables and contracts assets are primarily
related to business combinations, which increased trade receivables with
DKKm 143 and contracts assets DKKm 24. Please refer to note 4.2 for
further information.

8
5
13
Total at 31 December
Expected credit loss
Total net

Supplement information
The Group has unrecognized tax losses to carry forward, total DKKm 46. The Group is of the opinion,
that utilization within 3-5 years is not possible. There is no expire on the tax losses to carry forward.
Further, there are unrecognized deferred tax assets related to property, plant and equipment, and
trade receivable, total DKKm 12.

Trade
receivable

Accounting policy
On initial recognition, receivables are measured at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortized cost.
Trade receivables and contract assets are written down for expected credit losses. The Group applies
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets. The Group's impairment policies are further
described in note 3.3. A write-down is recognized in other external costs.
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Notes
Critical Accounting Estimate
To measure the expected credit losses trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a 12 month period and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Expected
loss rate

DKKm
Contracts assets
Not due
More than 1 day past due
More than 30 days past due

Gross
Expected
carrying
credit loss
amount,
trade
receivables

Net

5%
1%

20
71

(1)
(1)

19
70

2%

45

(1)

44

More than 60 days past due

0%
0%

23
9

(0)
0

23
9

More than 90 days past due

0%

Total
Opening balances of loss allowance
Expected credit loss during the year
Expected credit loss allowance at 31 December 2018

16

0

16

184

(3)

181
0
(3)
(3)

Supplementary information
As described in note 4.2, the trade receivables acquired as part of the business combination were
recognized by the Group at their fair value of DKKm 167, net of an amount of DKKm 26 which were
expected to be uncollectible. Accordingly, the remaining balances of the trade receivables originating
from the acquisition of business are included in the gross carrying amount in the table above by their
acquisition date fair value.
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Note 2.5 - Share capital
Number of
shares

Nominal
value
DKKm

500,000
1,651,925
170,000
2,321,925

0
2

The share capital comprise:
Share capital 30.03.2018
Capital increase 19.09.2018
Capital increase 09.10.2018
Share capital 31.12.2018

Supplementary information
All shares have nominal value of DKK 1.
All shares have the same rights, preferences and restrictions.
All shares are fully paid up.

0
2

Notes
Note 3.1 - Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
As part of a global operation, the Group is exposed to cash flow in multiple different currencies.
The Group has adopted an expected credit loss model to calculate credit exposure relating to
trade receivable. Liquidity risk arises from the financing facility for the Group. Financing
facilities are in EUR, which are based on 3M Euribor rate.
Note 3.2 - Market risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk. Changes in currency exchange rates result from
various factors such as macro-economic factors, speculative transactions and interventions by
central banks and governments. In addition, government and monetary authorities may impose
exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable currency exchange rate. The risk
arises as per change in exchange rates.
The objective is to minimize impact from change in exchange rates:
•
•
•

Natural hedges (income and expenses in same currency) minimize the impact in the profit
and loss.
The majority of the current cash position is within low risk foreign currency; GBP, MYR, EUR,
TTD and USD.
The Bond and credit facility are in EURO.

Sensitivity
As describe above, the Group is primarily exposed to changes in GBP, MYR, NOK, TTD and USD
exchange rates. The sensitivity – as per below - to reasonably possible changes in the exchange
rates and impact in profit and loss and equity. Impact on profit after tax, trade receivable, cash
and trade payables are based on change to exchange rates applied in the Group. The following
rates have been applied:
- 10 %
Year-end rates
+ 10 %
DKK / GBP
744.5
827.2
909.9
DKK / MYR

141.3

157.0

172.7

DKK / NOK

67.4

74.9

82.4

DKK / USD

586.7

651.9

717.1

DKK / TTD

86.3

95.9

105.4
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Impact on
Equity
DKKm
DKK / GBP

Impact on total assets or total liabilities

Profit after tax
-10%
10%

Trade receivable
-10%
10%

Cash
-10%
10%

Trade payable
-10%
10%

0

1

-2

2

-1

1

-1

1

DKK / MYR
DKK / NOK

-1
1

2
0

-2
-1

2
1

-2
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

DKK / USD
DKK / TTD

1
0

0
3

-2

2
1

0

0

0

0

-3

3

0

0

-1

Interest rate risk
Interest rates on Bonds and credit facility depends on several factors, one of the most
significant over time being the level of market interest. The interest rate on the Bonds is based
on the 3M Euribor rate.
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss is based on changes in in the interest rates.
Profit after tax / Equity
DKKm
Change in 3M Euribor
Senisitivity analysis are based on annual interest expenses.
The Group is not using hedging instrument to mitigate the risk.

- 0.5%

+ 0.5%

2

-2

Notes

Less than
1 year

Note 3.3 - Credit risk
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group is to recognize a loss allowance for expected credit loss
("ECL") on its trade receivables.

Between
1 and 5
year

The ECL for the Groups "private and commercial" customers and "major oil companies or public
companies" customers is estimated separately in the model due to differences in the credit
characteristics of these customer segments. Expected credit losses are estimated on customers
categoried as "private and commercial". Based on experience, actual credit losses for customers
categorized as "major oil companies or public companies" are limited.
The impairment model is based on a roll rate method. The roll rate method is derived from the
provision matrix described in IFRS 9 as a historical credit loss matrix based on number of days a
trade receivable is overdue.

Financial assets and liabilities per measurement category

Loss Given Default is estimated using a loss ratio calculated as the incurred loss divided by the
outstanding balance of trade receivables.
The risk in monitored local, and global follow-up as per development in outstanding.

For further information about the Group's credit loss allowance, refer to note 2.4.
Note 3.4 - Liquidity risk
The Group has Bond facility available with a maximum of DKKm 745. The Bond is expected to be
listed on the Norwegian Stock Exchange during 2019. The interest is based on 3M Euribor rate
plus a margin. The bond facility expire in 2023.
The Group has credit facility facility available with a maximum of DKKm 42 for financing of
working capital. The interest is based on 3M Euribor rate plus a margin. Drawings on the credit
facility expire less than one year.
Maturity analysis
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows incl. interest
payments calculated under current conditions.
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Total

Net book
value

DKKm
As at 31.12.2018
Bond
Credit facility
Deferred consideration
Trade payables
Finance lease liabilities
Total

Probability of default (“PD”) is based on historical roll rate for each category and based on
Moody's' country-specific PDs.

More
than 5
years

24
12
50
93
5
184

94
0
0
0
19
113

354
0
0
0
25
379

472
12
50
93
49
676

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Trade receivables
Contract assets
Prepayments
Other receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

162
19
18
24
106
329

Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost:
Bond
Trade payables
Bank loans
Deferred consideration
Finance lease liabilities
Total

326
93
12
50
39
520

Liabilities at fair value
Contingent consideration, non-controlling interest
(part of other liabilities in the balance sheet)
Total

8
528

326
12
50
93
39
515

Notes
Note 3.6 - Measurement and fair value hierarchy

Note 3.7 - Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Non-cash changes

Financial instruments measured at fair value are shown in accordance with the following
accounting hierarchy:
• Level 1; Observable market prices of identical instruments.
• Level 2; Valuation models primarily based on observable prices or trading prices of
comparable instruments.
• Level 3; Valuation models primarily based on non-observable prices.

Fair value:
Contingent consideration
Amortised cost:
Finance lease
Bond
Total

DKKm

Carrying
Amount

Fair value
Level 1

Fair value
Level 2

Fair value
Level 3

8

0

0

8

39
326
373

0
0
0

49
0
49

0
336
344

Current interest bearing debt
Non-current interest bearing
debt
Finance lease liabilities
Total liabilities from
financing activities

30.03.2018

Cash

Acquisitions

Other

31.12.2018

0

12

0

0

12

0
0

336
0

0
39

(10)
0

326
39

0

348

39

(10)

377

Other includes amortized loans cost and accrued interest.

Supplementary information
The fair value of contingent considerations to non-controlling interests amounts to DKKm 8 at
31 December 2018. The fair value of the contingent consideration is determined as the present
value of the EBITDA multiple less net debt. Significant unobservable inputs include assumptions
about the expected development in EBITDA and the discount rate. The estimated fair value will
increase, if the expected EBITDA increases or if the present value is based on a lower discount
rate. Contingent consideration is based on current EBITDA and expected EBITDA until date of
utilization. Management does not expect a reasonable possible change in one or more of the
significant unobservable inputs will have a material impact of the estimated fair value.

Note 3.8 - Capital management

As the bond was recently issued in September 2018 and carries a variable interest rate, the fair
value of the bond has been assessed to approximate the principal amount of DKKm 336. The
bond is classified as level 3 fair value in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable
inputs, including own credit risk, which has been reassessed at year-end.

As part of the bond, the Group have to comply with the following covenants:

Finance lease is calculated according to minimum lease payment and interest rates. Changes in
the interest rates will not have a significant impact.

One lease contract have change from operational lease liability to finance lease liability as part the
purchase price allocation. The contract origin back to 2014 and were present at the time of
completion of the term of condition. Beside it, the Group are in compliance with the covenants.

The fair value of other financial instruments is approximately equal to the carrying amounts due
to short maturity.
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The Group's objectives when managing capital are to;
•

•
•
•

•
•

Safeguarding the ability to continue as a going concern, so entities can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
Maintain an optimal capital structure on a global scale,
Cash pool is used within some areas to optimize cash position,
Cash flow forecasting on a bi-weekly frequency.

LTM EBITDA / NIDB < 4,5
Finance lease < DKKm 11

Notes
Note 4.1 - Fee to auditors appointed at the general
meeting

Purchase consideration:
30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm

Audit fee to PwC
Other assurance engagements

2
0

Tax advisory services

0
4

Non-audit services
Total

Cash paid for shares and deferred consideration including group contribution

116

Settlement of acquires debt to seller

448
50

Deferred consideration
Total purchase consideration

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

614
Fair value
DKKm

6

Note 4.2 - Business combination
On 20 September 2018, the parent company acquired the entire share capital of RelyOn Nutec
Holding A/S, former known as Falck Safety Services Holding A/S, which operates in the business
of safety training services to the oil and gas, wind and maritime industry globally, and other
related business.
Details of the purchase consideration, the net asset acquired and goodwill are described below.
Purchase price allocations are preliminary, however the Management does not expect any
changes.

Cash

126

Trade receivables
Contracts assets

143
24

Tangible assets: Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets: customer contracts

369
63

Intangible assets: brand

55

Intangible assets: knowhow
Intangible assets: other

27
6

Deferred tax assets
Other assets

14
52

Trade payables
Onerous contracts
Finance lease
Other liabilities
Net identifiable assets acquired
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DKKm

(118)
(83)
(40)
(131)
507

Non-controlling interests
Goodwill

(29)
136

Net assets acquired

614

Notes
Note 4.3 - Provisions
The Group has elected to measure non-controlling interests in the RelyOn Nutec Group at its
proportionate share of the net assets acquired. The goodwill amounting to DKKm 136 is
attributable to workforce etc. It will not be deducted for tax purposes. The fair value of
acquired trade receivables is DKKm 167. The gross contractual amount for trade receivables
due is DKKm 193, of which DKKm 26 is expected to be uncollectable.

The movement in each class of provision during the year is set out below:
Onerous Refurbishment
contracts
provision

The acquired RelyOn Nutec business contributed revenues of DKKm 248 and net profit of DKKm
(19). If the acquisition had occurred on 30 March 2018, consolidated pro-forma revenue and
profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been DKKm 620 and DKKm (12),
respectively.
Cash flow on acquisition
Outflow of cash to acquire RelyOn Nutec

DKKm

Cash consideration
Settlement of acquires debt to seller
Less cash acquired
Net outflow of cash - investing activities
Acquisition-related costs of DKKm 27 have been recognized in the income statement within
special items.

91
448
-126
413

Other
provisions

Total

DKKm
At 30.03.2018
Acqusition of business
Change during the period

0
83
(3)

0
20
0

0
5
(1)

0
108
(4)

At 31.12.2018

80

20

4

104

Accounting policy
Provisions are recognized when, as a consequence of an event occurring before or on the
balance sheet date, the Group has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a
provision is Management’s best estimate of the present value of expenses required to settle
the obligation.
Provisions for restructuring are recognized when a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring
has been made before or on the balance sheet date and has been announced to the parties
involved.
Provisions for retained risks related to occupational injuries are recognized at the time of the
claim and include an estimate of claims incurred but not reported based on actuarial
calculations.
A provision for onerous contracts is made when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract.
Supplementary information
Provision for refurbishment obligation are related to clean up on the facilities within the Group.
Refurbishment provision will be an obligation prior relocation. Relocation is not highly likely,
hence all provisions are non-current. Onerous contracts expire within 0 - 15 years.
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Notes
Note 4.4 - Leases
Commitments related to finance leases as of 31
December 2018 are payable as follows:
The fair value of lease liabilities are determined by
discounting the future cash flows using a current
borrowing rate.

Minimum lease
payment

Present value of
minimum lease
payments

Less than 1 year

DKKm
Within one year

5

3

Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

19
25

15
21

Total

49

39

Future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

(10)
39

Accounting policy
For financial reporting purposes, lease liabilities are classified as either finance or operating
lease liabilities.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the leased assets are transferred to the Group. Other leases are classified as operating leases.
The accounting treatment of assets held under finance leases and the related liability is
described in the sections on property, plant and equipment and financial liabilities respectively.
Assets held under operating leases are not recognized in the balance sheet. Lease liabilities
under operating leases are disclosed as contingent liabilities. Lease payments concerning
operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.
Supplement information
The Group leases some equipment globally and a facility in Norway, which are classified as
finance leases.
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Minimum lease payments on the Group's operating lease obligations amount to:

30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm
66

1 to 5 years
More than 5 years

119
151

Total

330

Supplementary information
The Group leases property, plant and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 to 25 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.
During the period, the Group has recognized operating lease expenses amounting to DKKm 21 in
the income statement within other external costs.

Notes
Note 4.5 - Cash flow specification
31.12.2018
DKKm

The following transactions occurred with the immediate other related parties:
- Capital increase, DKKm 276

Change in trade receivables

(26)

Change in contract assets
Change in prepaid expenses

12
1

Change in trade payables

20

Change in other receivables
Change in other operating liabilities

6
(1)

Total

12

Accounting policy
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand.
Supplementary information
Some of the cash and cash equivalents are not available for general use to other Group entities
within the Group, total DKKm 26 on Trinidad & Tobago.

Note 4.6 - Related parties

- Group contribution, DKKm 25

The ultimate parent entity, Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, have paid for some of the transactions
cost, total DKKm 1. There are no balance on 31 December 2018.
Note 4.7 - Commitments and contingent liabilities
Joint taxation scheme
The Danish Group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed income
etc. of the Group. The total amount of corporation tax payable by the Group is disclosed in the
financial statements of P-RelyOn Nutec 2018 A/S, which is the management company of the joint
taxation. The Danish companies are jointly and severally liable for the joint taxation liability. The
joint taxation liability covers income taxes and withholding taxes on dividends, royalties and
interest.
Contingent liabilities and guaranties
As part of the bond agreement, share pledges have been issued.
The Group has guaranties related to the operation, of which non of the guaranties are material.

The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:

P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S

Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

Polaris Private Equity IV K/S

Note 4.9 includes information about the Group's structure and the Group's related parties.
Information about management's remuneration has been disclosed in note 1.2.

Claims have been made against the Group, primarily concerning construction of a facility, etc. The
Group and its legal advisors consider the claims unjustified and do not perceive that the Group
will incur any losses as a result of the actions for damages.
Note 4.8 - Events after the balance sheet date
No events materially affecting the assessment of the annual report have occurred after the
balance sheet date.
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Notes
Note 4.9 – Group companies
Country

Legal name

Azerbaijan

Falck Caspian Safe LLC

Belgium

Equity interest

Country

Legal name

100%

Norway

RelyOn Nutec Norway AS

RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA

100%

Oman

Aberdeen Drilling International Co. LLC

70%

Brazil

Falck Nutec Brasil Participacoes Ltda

100%

Qatar

Falck Safety Services LLC *

49%

Brazil

RelyOn Nutec Brasil Participacoes Ltda

100%

Singapore

MSTS Asia (S'pore) Pte. Ltd.

100%

Canada

Falck Safety Services Canada Incorporated

68%

Thailand

Southfield Ltd *

49%

Canada

Falck Safety Services Canada (NL) Incorporated

68%

Thailand

Falck Nutec (Thailand) Ltd

65%

Canada

Falck Safety Services Canada (LA) Incorporated

68%

The Netherlands

Falck Global Safety B.V.

100%

Denmark

Bidco RelyOn Nutec A/S

100%

The Netherlands

Falck B.V.

100%

Denmark

RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

100%

The Netherlands

RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.

100%

Denmark

RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S

100%

Trinidad & Tobago Falck Safety Services Limited

100%

Malaysia

MSTS Asia Sdn. Bhd.

60%

Trinidad & Tobago Haztec Services Trinidad, Ltd.

100%

Malaysia

Risktec (M) Sdn. Bhd.

60%

UAE

Falck Safety Services LLC *

Malaysia

Falck Bestari Healthcare Sdn Bhd

60%

UAE

Aberdeen Drilling International Limited

100%

Malaysia

Falck Nutec Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

60%

United Kingdom

Falck Nutec Ltd.

100%

Malaysia

Aberdeen Drilling International (Malaysia) SDN BHD

100%

United Kingdom

Aberdeen Drilling School Ltd

100%

Mexico

Falck Holding de México, S.A. de C.V.

100%

USA

RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC

100%

Mexico

Falck Safety Services de México, S.A.P.I. de C.V.

60%

USA

RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc.

100%

Nigeria

Falck Safety Services Nigeria Limited *

49%

USA

RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC

100%

Nigeria

Falck Prime Atlantic Limited *

49%

Vietnam

Falck Nutec Vietnam Limited

* For these companies, the group holds an equity interest of less than 50%. However, due to rights arising from shareholders' agreements, the Group has
determined that it has control of those companies, which are thus classified as subsidiaries and fully consolidated.
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Equity interest
100%

49%

88%

Notes
Note 5.1 – Basis of preparation
The activity of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and
group companies (the Group), consists of
holding shares in subsidiaries and through the
subsidiaries operate in the business of safety
training services to the oil and gas, wind and
maritime industry globally, and other related
business.

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result
in almost all leases being recognized on the
balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The annual report has been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except that
derivatives and financial instruments are
measured at fair value. The financial statements
are presented in Danish Kroner (DKK), as this is
the Company's functional currency. The financial
statements have been rounded to the nearest
million.

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
is required to recognize a liability to make lease
payments over the lease term (i.e. the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right-touse the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e. the right-of-use asset). Interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset will be separately
recognized.

The annual report comprises the first financial
year, ie 30 March – 31 December 2018.
Note 5.2 - Accounting policies
The consolidated financial statements for BidCo
RelyOn Nutec A/S have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and as adopted by the European Union as well as
additional Danish disclosure requirements
applying to entities of reporting class C for large
enterprises.
Adoption of new and amended standards
The IASB has issued a number of new or
amended standards and interpretations
effective for financial years beginning after 31
December 2018. Some of these have not yet
been endorsed by the EU. Most relevant to the
Group is the following:
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Adopting IFRS 16
The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).
Impact
The Group has reviewed its leasing
arrangements in light of the new lease
accounting rules in IFRS 16. The standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases.

The Group leases include properties and various
equipment, such as office equipment and cars.
The portfolio of rental contracts are made for
varying periods of years but may have extension
options, which will be included in the lease term
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options.
As at the reporting date, the Group has noncancellable operating lease commitments of
DKK 330. The balance will be affected by “rights
of use assets”, total DKKm 330, and “rights of use
liabilities”, DKKm 330. Of these commitments,
DKK 0 relate to short-term leases and low value
leases which will be recognized on a straight-line
basis as expense in profit or loss. Adjusted
EBITDA is expected to increase by
approximately by DKKm 66.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the parent company, BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities that
are controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

On consolidation, investments in subsidiaries,
intra-group income and expenses, intra-group
balances and dividends and realized and
unrealized gains and losses on transactions
between Group entities are eliminated. The line
items of the financial statements of subsidiaries
are fully consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the group.

Business combination
Companies acquired or established during the
financial year are recognized as from the date of
acquisition or inception. The comparative figures
are not restated to reflect companies acquired.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries apply the acquisition
method. Identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of acquires are recognized
at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Identifiable intangible assets are recognized if
they are separable or derive from a contractual
right. Deferred tax on fair value adjustments is
recognized.
The acquisition date is the date on which the
Group obtains control of the acquire.

Notes
Any positive difference between the
consideration and the value of non-controlling
interests in the acquirer and the fair value of any
previously held interests in the acquirer, on the
one hand, and the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, on
the other hand, is recognized in the balance
sheet as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
is tested for impairment at least once a year. On
acquisition, goodwill is allocated to the cashgenerating units which will subsequently form
the basis for future impairment tests.
Any negative difference is recognized in the
income statement on the date of acquisition.
The consideration for an entity consists of the
fair value of the agreed purchase price. For
business combinations in which the agreement
includes a provision on adjustment of the
consideration conditional on future events, the
fair value of this part of the consideration is
recognized at the date of acquisition. Any
changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration after initial recognition are
recognized in the income statement. Put options
issued to minority shareholders in connection
with acquisitions for them to sell their remaining
shares to the Group, the value of which is
contingent on future events, will be recognized
as part of the consideration at the date of
acquisition. The put options issued are
subsequently measured at the present value of
the expected exercise price. Any changes in the
value of the issued put options after initial
recognition are recognized in equity. Acquisition
costs and the interest element of discounting
are recognized in the income statement.
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If uncertainties regarding the measurement of
acquired identifiable assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities or the consideration for the
business combination exist at the acquisition
date, initial recognition takes place on the basis
of preliminary fair values. If identifiable assets,
liabilities, contingent liabilities and the
consideration for the business combination are
subsequently determined to have had a
different fair value at the acquisition date than
first assumed, goodwill is adjusted until 12
months after the acquisition date. The effect of
the adjustments is recognized in the opening
equity, and the comparative figures are restated
accordingly. Goodwill is not adjusted
subsequently except in the event of material
errors.
Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
On initial recognition, non-controlling interests
are measured either at fair value (including the
fair value of goodwill related to non-controlling
interests in the acquiree) or as non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities measured at fair value (excluding the
fair value of goodwill related to non-controlling
interests’ share of the acquiree). The
measurement basis for non-controlling interests
is selected for each individual transaction.

When the Group assumes an obligation from a
put option to acquire shares from a noncontrolling interest a financial liability is
recognized, which is measured at the present
value of the expected redemption amount.
Where the significant risks and rewards of the
shares related to the put option have not
transferred to the Group, the non-controlling
interest remains being recognized. Otherwise, a
corresponding entry is made against the Group's
share of equity.

Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’).
Transactions and balances
On initial recognition, transactions denominated
in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rates at the
transaction date. Exchange differences arising
between the exchange rate at the transaction
date and the exchange rate at the date of actual
payment are recognized in the income
statement under financial income or financial
expenses.
Receivables, payables and other monetary items
in foreign currency are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The difference between the
exchange rate at the balance sheet date and the
exchange rate at the date when the receivable
or payable arose or the exchange rate applied in
the most recent financial statements is
recognized in the income statement under
financial income or financial expenses.

On recognition in the consolidated financial
statements of entities with a functional currency
other than DKK, income and expenses for the
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at the exchange rates at the
transaction date. Average exchange rates for
the month are used as the exchange rate at the
transaction date to the extent that this does not
significantly change the presentation of the
underlying transactions. Assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rates at the closing
rate of the balance sheet date. All resulting
exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income, and classified in equity
in a separate currency translation reserve.
Income Statement
Cost of sales and external assistance
Cost of sales and external assistance comprise
expenses for related to course material and
subcontractors.
Other external costs
Other external costs comprise marketing,
external consultancy, facilities etc.
Other operating income and expenses
Other operating income and other expenses
comprise items of a secondary nature to the
main activities of the Company, including gains
and losses on the sale of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment.

Notes
Balance
Fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received
when asset is sold or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using generally accepted valuation technics
based on observable inputs from active markets.
For financial liabilities where the fair value is
disclosed, the fair value is estimated by
discounting future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate.

Cash flows from operating activities are
calculated as the operating profit before other
items (EBITA) adjusted for changes in working
capital and non-cash operating items such as
depreciation, amortization and impairment
losses, and provisions. Working capital
comprises current assets less short-term debt
excluding items included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities primarily comprise of bonds,
banks loans, trade payables and deferred
considerations are initially recognised at fair
value less transaction costs. In subsequent
periods, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost.

Cash flows from financing activities comprise
cash flows from the raising and repayment of
long term debt as well as payments to and from
shareholders.

Residual lease commitments from finance leases
and other financial liabilities are recognised and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Cashflow statement
The cash flow statement shows the Group's cash
flows for the year broken down by operating,
investing and financing activities, changes for
the year in cash and cash equivalents as well as
the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning and end of the year.
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Cash flows from investing activities comprise
cash flows from acquisitions and disposals of
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
as well as fixed asset investments.

Key figures
The financial ratios have been computed in
accordance with the latest Guidelines issued by
the Danish Finance Society.
Note 5.3 - Critical accounting estimates and
judgements
In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements according to IFRS, Management is
required to make certain estimates. Many
financial statement items cannot be reliably
measured, but must be based on estimations as
the value of assets and liabilities often depends
on future events that are somewhat uncertain.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions
made are based on historical experience and
other factors that Management considers to be
reliable, but which by their very nature are
associated with uncertainty and unpredictability.
These assumptions may prove incomplete or
incorrect, and unexpected events or
circumstances may arise. The most critical
judgments, estimates and assumptions for the
individual items are described below.
Critical accounting estimates
In connection with acquisitions, the identifiable
net assets acquired from the seller are
recognized at fair value. This includes an
assessment of the value of e.g. customer
relations and customer contracts. The valuation
thereof is based on the ”Multi-Period Excess
Earnings Method (MEEM method)” in which the
value is calculated on the basis of an expected
future cash flow. The principal assumptions are
expected lives of the existing agreements and
portfolios, earnings and contribution for using
associated assets and employees.
Critical accounting estimes related to;
-

Goodwill, cf. Note 2.1
Business combination, cf. note 4.2

Parent Company
Financial Statements
2018

43

Parent Company Financial Statements
Changes in equity

Income statement

Note
Revenue
Employee costs
Operating profit (EBIT)

30.03 31.12.2018
DKKm

1.1

0
(9)

Profit/loss before tax

(9)

Profit/loss for the year
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2
(7)

Retained
earnings

Note
Equity at 30.03.2018

1
(1)

Finance expenses

Income tax

Share
capital

Total

DKKm
0

0

Profit for the period

(7)

(7)

Group contribution

25

25

2

274

276

2

292

294

Capital increase

Equity at 31.12.2018

2.2

Parent Company Financial Statements
Balance sheet
31 December
2018
Notes
Investment in subsidiaries
Receivables from subsidiaries
Deferred tax asset
Total non-current assets

2.1

31 December
2018

DKKm
155
464
2

Notes
Share capital

Total assets
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2
292
294

621
Bond
Total non-current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

2.2

Retained earnings
Total equity

DKKm

0
0
621

Trade payables
Debt to subsidiaries
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

2.3

325
325
1
1
2
327
621

Section 1
Income statement
Note 1.1
Staff costs

Notes

47

Section 2
Balance
Note 2.1

Investment in subsidiaries

47

Note 2.2
Note 2.3

Share capital
Bond

48
48

Note 3.1
Note 3.2

Related parties
Commitments and contingent liabilities

48
48

Note 3.3

Events after the balance sheet date

48

Section 3
Other notes

Section 4
Basis of preparation
Note 4.1
Note 4.2

46

Basis of preparation
Accounting policy

49
49

Notes
30.03 - 31.12.2018
Note 1.1 - Staff costs

Note 2.1 - Investment in subsidiaries

DKKm

Wages and salaries

30.03 - 31.12.2018
DKKm

(1)
(0)

Cost:

Pensions

Total

(1)

Additions

140
15

At 31.12.2018

155

Average number of employees

2

Accounting policy
Employee costs comprise wages and salaries as well as expenses for payroll and pensions.
Supplementary information
Pursuant to § 98B.3 of the Danish Financial Statements Act the remuneration to the Executive
Board has not been disclosed separately

At 30.03.2018
Acquisition of business

0

Accumulated impairment:
At 30.03.2018
Impairment for the period

0
0

At 31.12.2018

0

Carrying amount 31.12.2018

155

Subsidiaries comprise:
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

100%

Accounting policy
Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost or at a lower recoverable amount. If
indications of impairments are identified, an impairment test as described in the accounting
policies for the consolidated financial statements is prepared. If the recoverable amount is
lower than the carrying amount, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
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Notes
Note 2.2 - Share capital

Note 3.1 - Related parties
Nominal value
Number of shares
(DKK'000)

The share capital comprise:

Share capital 30.03.2018
Capital increase 19.09.2018
Capital increase 09.10.2018
Share capital 31.12.2018

Between 1
and 5 years

P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S

Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

Polaris Private Equity IV K/S

500,000

0

1,651,925

2

170,000

0

Note 4.9 in consolidated financial statement includes information about the Group's structure
and the Group's related parties. Information about management's remuneration has been
disclosed in note 1.2 in consolidated financial statement.

2,321,925

2

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of P-RelyOn Nutec 2018 A/S.
The Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Malmøgade 3, 2100 København Ø

Note 2.3 – Bond

Less than 1
year

The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:

More than 5
years

Total
Note 3.2 - Commitments and contingent liabilities

DKKm

Bond

0

0

325

325

Total

0

0

325

325

Accounting policy
Financial liabilities primarily comprise bonds that are initially recognized at fair value less
transaction costs. In subsequent periods, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

Joint taxation scheme
The Danish Group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed income
etc. of the Group. The total amount of corporation tax payable by the Group is disclosed in the
financial statements of P-RelyOn Nutec 2018 A/S, which is the management company of the
joint taxation. The Danish companies are jointly and severally liable for the joint taxation
liability. The joint taxation liability covers income taxes and withholding taxes on dividends,
royalties and interest.
Contingent liabilities and guaranties
As part of the bond agreement, share pledges have been issued.
Note 3.3 - Events after the balance sheet date

No events materially affecting the assessment of the annual report have occurred after the
balance sheet date.
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Notes
Note 4.1 – Basis of preparation
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S prepares the parent
company financial statements in accordance
with the Danish Financial Statements Act
applying to enterprises of reporting class C.
The annual report has been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except that
derivatives and financial instruments are
measured at fair value. The financial statements
are presented in Danish Kroner (DKK), as this is
the Company's functional currency. The financial
statements have been rounded up/down to the
nearest million.
The annual report comprises the first financial
year, ie 30 March – 31 December 2018.

Note 4.2 - Accounting policies
Other accounting policies
With reference to the provisions of the Danish
Financial Statements Act, the Company has
refrained from both preparing a cash flow
statement and presenting segment information
in the parent company financial statements. For
this information, see the consolidated financial
statements for BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S. Please
see note 1 “Basis of preparation” in the
consolidated financial statements for other
accounting policies.
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Income statement
Revenue
Income from the sale of services is recognized in
the income statement if delivery has taken place
and the risk has passed to the buyer before the
end of the financial year and where the selling
price can be determined reliably and is expected
to be paid. Revenue is measured at fair value
and is determined exclusive of VAT and other
taxes collected on behalf of third parties and
less discounts.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent
interest income and interest expense, realized
and unrealized capital gains and losses and
amortization related to financial assets and
liabilities.
Furthermore, realized and unrealized gains and
losses on derivative financial instruments which
cannot be classified as hedging arrangements
are included.

Income tax and deferred tax
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and the Group’s Danish
subsidiaries are jointly taxed. Danish corporation
tax is allocated among the jointly taxed
companies according to the taxable income of
these companies. Income tax for the year,
consisting of current tax for the year and
changes in deferred tax, is recognized in profit
for the year with respect to the part that can be
attributed to profit for the year and in other
comprehensive income with respect to the part
that can be attributed to other comprehensive
income or directly to equity.
Corporation tax payables include corporation
taxes made up on the basis of estimated taxable
income for the financial year and prior-year
adjustments.
Deferred tax is calculated according to the
balance sheet liability method and is based on
all timing differences between the carrying
amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is not recognized on goodwill that
is not tax deductible, and deferred tax is not
recognized on undistributed profits in
subsidiaries and timing differences that arose at
the time of recognition in the balance sheet
other than for acquisitions, if such differences
will not affect profit or taxable income. When
alternative tax rules can be applied to determine
the tax base, deferred tax is measured based on
planned use of the asset or settlement of the
liability respectively.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax base of
tax losses carried forward, are recognized under
other non-current assets at the expected value
of their utilization, either as a set-off against tax
on future income or as a set-off against deferred
tax liabilities within the same legal tax entity
and jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset within the same legal tax
entity or jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets are
measured at the value at which they are
expected to be realized. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rate expected to apply
when timing differences are reversed. Changes
in deferred tax as a result of changes in tax rates
are recognized in the income statement.
Balance
Receivables
Receivables are measured in the balance sheet
at the lower of amortized cost and net realizable
value, which corresponds to nominal value less
provisions for bad debts. Provisions for bad
debts are determined on the basis of an
individual assessment of each receivable.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand.

Statement of the Board of Directors and Executive Management

The Board of Directors and the Executive
Management have today considered and
adopted the Annual Report of BidCo RelyOn
Nutec A/S for the financial year 30 March – 31
December 2018.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU and further requirements in the Danish
Financial Statements Act. The Parent Company
Financial Statements and Management Review
have been prepared in accordance with the
Danish Financial Statements Act.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Parent Company Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position as of 31 December 2018 of the
Group and the Parent Company and of the
results of the Group and Parent Company
operations and consolidated cash flows for the
financial year 30 March - 31 December 2018.
In our opinion, the Management Review includes
a true and fair account of the development in
the operations and financial circumstances of
the Group and the Parent Company, of the
results for the year and of the financial position
of the Group and the Parent Company as well as
a description of the most significant risks and
elements of uncertainty facing the Group and
the Parent Company.

Executive Management

Torben Harring
Group CEO

Board of Directors

Jakob Thomasen
Chairman

Copenhagen, 20 March 2019
Henrik Bonnerup
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Søren Strøm
Group CFO

Jesper Lok

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholder of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Opinion
In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position as of 31 December
2018 and of the results of the Group’s
operations and cash flows for the financial year
30 March to 31 December 2018 in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU and further
requirements in the Danish Financial Statements
Act.
Moreover, in our opinion, the Parent Company
Financial Statements give a true and fair view of
the Parent Company’s financial position at 31
December 2018 and of the results of the Parent
Company’s operations for the financial year 30
March to 31 December 2018 in accordance with
the Danish Financial Statements Act.
We have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Parent Company Financial
Statements of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S for the
financial year 30 March - 31 December 2018,
which comprise income statement, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity and notes,
including a summary of significant accounting
policies, for both the Group and the Parent
Company, as well as statement of
comprehensive income and cash flow statement
for the Group (“financial statements”).
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Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and
the additional requirements applicable in
Denmark. Our responsibilities under those
standards and requirements are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and
the additional requirements applicable in
Denmark, and we have fulfilled any other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Statement of Management Review
Management is responsible for the Management
Review.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does
not cover Management’s Review, and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read
Management’s Review and, in doing so, consider
whether the Management Review is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider
whether the Management Review provides the
information required under the Danish
Financials Statements Act.
Based on the work we have performed, in our
view, the Management Review is in accordance
with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the Parent Company Financial Statements and
has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Danish Financial Statement
Act. We did not identify any material
misstatement in Management Review.
Management Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU and further requirements in
the Danish Financial Statements Act and for the
preparation of Parent Company Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Danish Financial
Statements Act, and for such internal control as
Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing of the Financial Statements,
Management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements unless
Management either intends to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs and the
additional requirements applicable in Denmark
will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Independent Auditors Report
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
•

•

•
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Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by Management.

•

•

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of
Management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
and the Parent Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and the Parent
Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and contents of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that gives a true and fair view.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
Copenhagen, 20 March 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 77 12 31

Bo Schou-Jacobsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne28703

Thomas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne30141

Additional information
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Company information

The company
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3rd floor
DK-1560 Copenhagen
Phone +45 76 12 13 14
CVR no. 39 46 78 36
Financial year 30.03.2018 - 31.12.2018
Established 30 March 2018
Municipality of headquarter; Copenhagen
Website: www.relyonnutec.com
E-mail: contact@relyonnutec.com
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Board of directors
Jakob Thomasen, Chairman
Jesper Teddy Lok
Henrik Bonnerup

Executive Management
Torben Harring
Søren Strøm

Auditor
PriceWaterhouseCoopers
Statusautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
Strandvejen 44
DK-2900 Hellerup
Denmark

Board of directors
Jakob Bo Thomasen

Jesper Teddy Lok

Henrik Bonnerup

Position

Position

Position

Other
directorsships

Relevans skils

Chairman

DHI A/S
ESVAGT A/S
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

Experience with management of global,
listed shipping and oil companies,
strategy, investment, sale and purchase,
financial issues and risk management

Relevans skils

ALLIANCEPLUS HOLDING A/S
Dagrofa ApS
Global Maritime Forum Fonden
Newsec Datea A/S
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S
Santa Fe Group A/S
Vestergaard Company A/S
Experience with general management,
shipping, financial and business insight

Other
directorsships

Relevans skils

Board member

Allianceplus Holding A/S
Jetpak Top Holding AB
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

Experience with management, M&A,
financial and strategy

Board member 2018
since

Board member 2018
since

Board member 2018
since

Gender

Male

Gender

Male

Gender

Male

Nationality

Danish

Nationality

Danish

Nationality

Danish

Independence Is regarded as independent
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Other
directorsships

Board member

Independence Is regarded as independent

Independence Represents Polaris A/S and is not
regarded as independent

Technical terms and abbreviations
A Americas Comprise Brazil, Canada,
Mexico, Trinidad & Tobago and USA
Asia Comprises Malaysia, Thailand and
Singapore

I

IAS International Accounting Standards
IFRS International Financial Reporting
Standards
ILO International Labour Organization

C CAPEX Investments in intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment
CGU Cash Generating Units
CSR Corporate social responsibility
E EBIT Earnings before interest and tax
EBITA Earnings before interest, tax and
amortization
EBITDA Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization
Europe Comprises Belgium, Denmark,
Germany, Netherlands, Norway and United
Kingdom
F

FCPA Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

G GWO The global industry standard in wind
organization for safety, skills, and
competence.
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ISO The International Organization for
Standardization is an international standardsetting body composed of representatives
from various national standards
organizations.
M Middle East & Africa Comprises Azerbaijan,
Nigeria, UAE and Qatar
MSTS Malaysia Safety Training &
Competence Services
N NUTEC Norwegian Underwater Training
Emergency Center
O OPITO The global industry standard in oil
and gas safety, skills, and competence.
Setting industry standards for oil and gas
training providers and courses.
R Return on assets Ratio that shows the
percentage of profit a company earns in
relation to its overall resources

S

Solvency ratio Ratios used to measure the
ability of a company to meet its long term
debt

U UK Bribery Act The UK Bribery Act 2010
establishes company liability for corrupt acts
committed by persons acting on behalf of
the company.
UN Global Compact The UN's social charter
for enterprises, etc.

www.relyonnutec.com
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
CVR-nr. 39 46 78 36
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1560 Copenhagen
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Management's Statement
The Executive Board and Board of Directors have today considered and adopted the Annual Report of
RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S for the financial year i January - 31 December 2018.
The Annual Report is prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
In our opinion the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position at 31 December
2018 of the Company and of the results of the Company operations for 2018.
In our opinion, Management's Review includes a true and fair account of the matters addressed in the
Review.
We recommend that the Annual Report be adopted at the Annual General Meeting.

Copenhagen, 20 March 2019

Executive Board

Søren Strøm
Executive Officer

CEO

of Directors

Ja b Bo Thomasen
Ch man

pwc
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholder of RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S

Opinion
In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2018 and of the results of the Company's operations for the financial year i January
- 31 December 2018 in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
We have audited the Financial Statements of RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S for the financial year i January 31 December 2018, which comprise income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies ("the Financial Statements").

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements
are further described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Statement on Management's Review
Management is responsible for Management's Review.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover Management's Review, and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read Management's
Review and, in doing so, consider whether Management's Review is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether Management's Review provides the information required under the Danish Financials Statements Act.
Based on the work we have performed, in our view, Management's Review is in accordance with the
Financial Statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish Financial
Statements Act. We did not identify any material misstatement in Management's Review.

Management's responsibilities for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstate-
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Independent Auditor's Report
ment, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in
Denmark, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
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Independent Auditor's Report
in a manner that gives a true and fair view.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup, 20 March 2019

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 7712 31

Bo
acobsen
State thorised Public Accountant
mne28703
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nas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne3o1.41
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Company Information
The Company

RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S
Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3
DK-1560 København V
CVR No: 19 95 13 83
Financial period: i January - 31 December
Municipality of reg. office:

Board of Directors

Jakob Bo Thomasen , Chairman
Henrik Bonnerup
Jesper Teddy Lok

Executive Board

Torben Harring
Søren Strøm

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
Strandvejen 44
DK-2900 Hellerup

_a_
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Management's Review
Key activities
The purpose of the Company is directly - or indirectly by holding shares or other forms of equity
investments in domestic and foreign companies - to engage in theoretical training and practical training
in fire, rescue, security, offshore and related areas, as well as directly and / or indirectly through partners
in Denmark and abroad to participate in another company which, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, is in connection with the above-mentioned purpose.
The Company has changed its name to RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S from Falck Safety Services Holding
A/S after the separation from the Falck Group.

Development in the year
The income statement of the Company for 2018 shows a loss of TDKK 266,712, and at 31 December 2018
the balance sheet of the Company shows equity of TDKK 149,390.
The result is negatively effected by an impairment write-down of DKK 300 million on investment in
subsidiaries.

Subsequent events
No events materially affecting the assessment of the Annual Report have occurred after the balance sheet
date.

II
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Income Statement i January -31 December
Note

Gross profit/loss
Staff expenses

1

2018

2017

TDKK

TDKK

-4.458

1.679

-15.433

-16.515

-1.955

-4.283

-21.846

-19.119

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment
Profit/loss before financial income and expenses
Income from investments in subsidiaries

2

-274.676

6.212

Financial income

3

40.790

1.630

Financial expenses

4

-8.116

-157.063

-263.848

-168.340

-2.864

5.052

-266.712

-163.288

-266.712

-163.288

-266.712

-163.288

Profit/loss before tax
Tax on profit/loss for the year
Net profit/loss for the year

5

Distribution of profit
Proposed distribution of profit
Retained earnings
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Balance Sheet 31 December
Assets
Note

Acquired licenses

2018

2017

TDKK

TDKK

4.018

1.683

730

0

4.748

1.683

2.914

3.929

239

0

7

3.153

3.929

Investments in subsidiaries

8

273.116

529.867

Receivables from group enterprises

9

94.583

83.018

Other investments

9

0

1.866

Fixed asset investments

367.699

614.751

Fixed assets

375.600

620.363

0

17

Prepayment
Intangible assets

6

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment

Trade receivables
Receivables from group enterprises

409.061

39.611

Other receivables

5.364

1.198

Deferred tax asset

1.689

3.020

0

903

Prepayments

3.226

187

Receivables

419.340

44.936

6.769

17

Currents assets

426.109

44.953

Assets

801.709

665.316

Tax receivables

Cash at bank and in hand
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Balance Sheet 31 December
Liabilities and equity
Note

2018

2017

TDKK

TDKK

Share capital

50.142

50.000

Retained earnings

99.248

351.902

149.390

401.902

0

2.233

Equity

10

Other provisions

2.233

Provisions
Credit institutions
Trade payables
Payables to group enterprises

11.749

8

5.560

618

580.372

252.941

Corporation tax

360

0

Other payables

54.278

7.614

Short-term debt

652.319

261.181

Debt

652.319

261.181

Liabilities and equity

801.709

665.316

Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial obligations

11

Related parties

12

Accounting Policies

13
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Retained

Equity at 1 January
Cash capital increase
Net profit/loss for the year
Equity at 31 December

pwc

Share capital

earnings

Total

TDKK

TDKK

TDKK

50.000

351.902

401.902

142

14.058

14.200

0

-266.712

-266.712

50.142

99.248

149.390

10

Notes to the Financial Statements
Staff expenses
Wages and salaries

13.751

15.456

1.492

981

Other social security expenses

98

78

Other staff expenses

92

0

15.433

16.515

9

10

-300.000

0

25.324

6.212

-274.676

6.212

Pensions

Average number of employees

2

Income from investments in subsidiaries
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
Dividend

The Company hs performed an impairment test based on the recoverable amount. This has resultet in a writedown of DKK 300 million.

3

4

Financial income
Other financial income

14.355

14

Exchange rate adjustments

26.435

1.616

40.790

1.630

719

600

7.397

149.605

0

6.858

8.116

157.063

Financial expenses
Interest paid to group enterprises
Other financial expenses
Exchange rate adjustments, expenses

pwc
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Notes to the Financial Statements
5

Tax on profit/loss for the year
Current tax for the year

1.663

-4.053

Deferred tax for the year

1.332

-1.004

-131

5

2.864

-5.052

Adjustment of tax concerning previous years

6

Intangible assets

Cost at 1 January

Acquired
licenses

Prepayment

TDKK

TDKK

17.739

0

Additions for the year

3.344

730

Cost at 31 December

21.083

730

lmpairment losses and amortisation at 1 January

16.057

0

1.008

0

17.065

0

4.018

730

Amortisation for the year
lmpairment losses and amortisation at 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December

7

Property, plant and equipment

Cost at 1 January

pwc

Other fixtures
and fittings,
tools and
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

TDKK

TDKK

17.760

0

Additions for the year

0

239

Disposals for the year

-8.239

0

Cost at 31 December

9.521

239

12

Notes to the Financial Statements
7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Other fixtures
and fittings,
tools and
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

TDKK

TDKK

13.832

0

947

0

-8.172

0

Impairment losses and depreciation at 31 December

6.607

0

Carrying amount at 31 December

2.914

239

Impairment losses and depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation for the year
Reversal of impairment and depreciation of sold assets

8

Investments in subsidiaries
529.867

529.867

Additions for the year

39.500

0

Transfers for the year

3.749

0

Cost at 31 December

573.116

529.867

Impairments for the year, net

-300.000

0

Value adjustments at 31 December

-300.000

0

Carrying amount at 31 December

273.116

529.867

Cost at 1 January

9

pwc

Other fixed asset investrnents
Receivables
from group
enterprises

Other
investments

TDKK

TDKK

Cost at 1 January

83.018

1.866

Additions for the year

11.565

1.883

Transfers for the year

0

-3.749

Cost at 31 December

94.583

0

Carrying amount at 31 December

94.583

0
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Notes to the Financial Statements
10 Equity
The share capital consists of 50,142,100 shares of a nominal value of TDKK 100. No shares carry any special
rights.

n

Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial obligations

Charges and security
The following assets have been placed as security with credit institutions:
Shares in subsidiaries, with a carrying value of DKK 269 millions have been
pledged as security in connection with the bond financing in the parent
company BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and the credit institutions in the
Company.
Contingent liabilities
The group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc of the Group. The
total amount of corporation tax payable is disclosed in the Annual Report of P-RelyOn Nutec A/S, which is the
management company of the joint taxation purposes. Moreover, the group companies are jointly and severally
liable for Danish withholding taxes by way of dividend tax, tax on royalty payments and tax on unearned income.
Any subsequent adjustments of corporation taxes and withholding taxes may increase the Company's liability.
The Company has provided a bank guarantee of DKK 4.5 million related to its subsidiaries.
The Group is currently involved in pending litigations, claims and investigations arising out of the normal course
of business. Management does not expect any pending claims or investigations to have a material impact on the
Groups financial position, operating profit or cash flows.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.

12

Related parties
Basis
Controlling interest
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S

_R
pwc

Immediate Parent
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Notes to the Financial Statements
12

Related parties (continued)
Transactions
Transactions with related parties have been carried out on arms length terms.

Consolidated Financial Statements
The company is included in the consolidated report for the parent company
Name

Place of registered office

BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S

Copenhagen

The Group Annua! Report of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S may be obtained at the following address:
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Kalvebod Brygge45, 3.
DK-1560 Copenhagen V

pwc

15

Notes to the Financial Statements
13 Accounting Policies
The Annual Report of RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S for 2018 has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Danish Financial Statements Act applying to enterprises of reporting class B as well as
selected rules applying to reporting class C.
The accounting policies applied remain unchanged from last year.
The Financial Statements for 2018 are presented in TDICK.

Consolidated financial statements
With reference to section 112 of the Danish Financial Statements Act and to the consolidated financial
statements of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, the Company has not prepared consolidated financial statements.

Recognition and measurement
Revenues are recognised in the income statement as earned. Furthermore, value adjustments of financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value or amortised cost are recognised. Moreover, all expenses
incurred to achieve the eamings for the year are recognised in the income statement, including depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and provisions as well as reversals due to changed accounting estimates of amounts that have previously been recognised in the income statement.
Assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company, and the value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
out of the Company, and the value of the liability can be measured reliably.
Assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, assets and liabilities are measured as
described for each item below.

Translation policies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of transaction.
Exchange differences arising due to differences between the transaction date rates and the rates at the
dates of payment are recognised in financial income and expenses in the income statement. Where
foreign exchange transactions are considered hedging of future cash flows, the value adjustments are
recognised directly in equity.
Receivables, payables and other monetary items in foreign currencies that have not been settled at the
balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Any differences between
the exchange rates at the balance sheet date and the rates at the time when the receivable or the debt

pwc

16

Notes to the Financial Statements
13 Accounting Policies (continued)
arose are recognised in financial income and expenses in the income statement.
Fixed assets acquired in foreign currencies are measured at the transaction date rates.

Income Statement
Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the risks and rewards relating to the goods sold have
been transferred to the purchaser, the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits relating to the sale will flow to the Company.
Revenue is measured at the consideration received and is recognised exclusive of VAT and net of
discounts relating to sales.

Other external expenses
Other external expenses comprise expenses for premises, consultants, office expenses, etc.

Gross profit/loss
With reference to section 32 of the Danish Financial Statements Act, gross profit/loss is calculated as a
summary of revenue and other external expenses.

Staff expenses
Staff expenses comprise wages and salaries as well as payroll expenses.

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses comprise amortisation, depreciation and impairment
of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.

Other operating income and expenses
Other operating income and other operating expenses comprise items of a secondary nature to the main
activities of the Company, including gains and losses on the sale of intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment.

Income from investments in subsidiaries
Dividends from subsidiaries are recognised as income in the income statement when adopted at the
General Meeting of the subsidiary.

pwc
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Notes to the Financial Statements
13 Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses are recognised in the income statement at the amounts relating to the financial year.

Tax on profit/loss for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and changes in deferred tax for the year. The tax
attributable to the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement, whereas the tax attributable
to equity transactions is recognised directly in equity.
The Company is jointly taxed with Danish subsidiaries. The tax effect of the joint taxation is allocated to
enterprises in proportion to their taxable incomes.

Balance Sheet
Intangible assets
Patents and licences are measured at the lower of cost less accumulated amortisation and recoverable
amount. Patents are amortised over the remaining patent period, and licences are amortised over the
licence period, however not exceeding 3-5 years.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and less any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises the cost of acquisition and expenses directly related to the acquisition up until the time
when the asset is ready for use.
Interest expenses on loans raised directly for financing the construction of property, plant and equipment
are recognised in cost over the period of construction. All indirectly attributable borrowing expenses are
recognised in the income statement.
Depreciation based on cost reduced by any residual value is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the assets, which are:
Other fixtures and fittings,
tools and equipment
Leasehold improvements

3-10 years
5 years

Depreciation period and residual value are reassessed annually.

pwc

18

Notes to the Financial Statements
13 Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of fixed assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual
basis to determine whether there is any indication of impairment other than that expressed by amortisation and depreciation.
If so, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. Where cost exceeds the recoverable amount, writedown is made to this lower value.

Other fixed asset investments
Other fixed asset investments consist of investments which are not traded in an active market and are
measured at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Receivables
Receivables are measured in the balance sheet at the lower of amortised cost and net realisable value,
which corresponds to nominal value less provisions for bad debts.

Prepayrnents
Prepayments comprise prepaid expenses concerning rent, insurance premiums, subscriptions and interest.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when - in consequence of an event occurred before or on the balance sheet date
- the Company has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that economic benefits must be
given up to settle the obligation.
Other provisions include warranty obligations in respect of repair work within the warranty period of.
Provisions are measured and recognised based on experience with guarantee work.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability, respectively.
Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realised, either by elimi-

pwc
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Notes to the Financial Statements
13

Accounting Policies (continued)

nation in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same legal tax
entity.
Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallise as current tax. Any changes
in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement or in equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognised in equity.

Current tax receivables and liabilities
Current tax liabilities and receivables are recognised in the balance sheet as the expected taxable income
for the year adjusted for tax on taxable incomes for prior years and tax paid on account. Extra payments
and repayment under the on-account taxation scheme are recognised in the income statement in financial income and expenses.

Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortised cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.

pwc
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Management’s Statement
The Executive Board and Board of Directors have today considered and adopted the Annual Report of
RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2018.
The Annual Report is prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
In our opinion the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position at 31 December
2018 of the Company and of the results of the Company operations for 2018.
We recommend that the Annual Report be adopted at the Annual General Meeting.

Esbjerg, 5 July 2019
Executive Board

Claus Nexø Hansen
CEO

Board of Directors

Torben Peder Korsgaard
Chairman

Torben Harring

Jesper René Daugbjerg

Rene Kjer Petersen

Søren Strøm
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S
Opinion
In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2018 and of the results of the Company’s operations for the financial year 1 January
- 31 December 2018 in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
We have audited the Financial Statements of RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S for the financial year 1 January
- 31 December 2018, which comprise income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity
and notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies (”the Financial Statements”).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements
are further described in the ”Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Management’s responsibilities for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in
Denmark, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
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Independent Auditor’s Report
audit. We also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that gives a true and fair view.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup, 5 July 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 77 12 31

Bo Schou-Jacobsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne28703
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Company Information
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note

Gross profit/loss
Staff expenses

2

2018

2017

DKK

DKK

41,137,151

30,401,330

(28,560,796)

(26,615,569)

(3,022,928)

(4,589,534)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment
Profit/loss before financial income and expenses

9,553,427

Financial income

3

96,086

Financial expenses

4

(193,480)

Profit/loss before tax
Tax on profit/loss for the year
Net profit/loss for the year

9,456,033
5

(2,171,382)

(803,773)
3,895
(261,645)
(1,061,523)
(197,844)

7,284,651

(1,259,367)

7,284,651

(1,259,367)

7,284,651

(1,259,367)

Distribution of profit
Proposed distribution of profit
Retained earnings
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Balance Sheet 31 December
Assets
Note

Land and buildings

2018

2017

DKK

DKK

593,419

593,419

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

8,968,644

9,386,484

Leasehold improvements

2,888,872

2,816,772

352,687

161,990

12,803,622

12,958,665

Other receivables

0

694,888

Fixed asset investments

0

694,888

Fixed assets

12,803,622

13,653,553

Trade receivables

10,688,267

8,242,738

Receivables from group enterprises

9,623,199

2,160,814

Other receivables

2,623,002

2,776,816

Deferred tax asset

1,540,437

891,035

Corporation tax

1,132,685

368,824

Prepayments

1,588,796

428,268

Receivables

27,196,386

14,868,495

379,708

2,565,403

Currents assets

27,576,094

17,433,898

Assets

40,379,716

31,087,451

Property, plant and equipment in progress
Property, plant and equipment

Cash at bank and in hand

6
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Balance Sheet 31 December
Liabilities and equity
Note

Share capital
Retained earnings
Equity
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Lease obligations

2018

2017

DKK

DKK

2,010,000

2,010,000

25,428,046

18,090,040

27,438,046

20,100,040

802,726

857,086

Long-term debt

8

802,726

857,086

Lease obligations

8

54,360

45,074

Trade payables

3,848,635

2,778,805

Payables to group enterprises

1,109,760

2,058,824

Corporation tax

1,438,118

0

Other payables

5,688,071

5,247,622

Short-term debt

12,138,944

10,130,325

Debt

12,941,670

10,987,411

Liabilities and equity

40,379,716

31,087,451

Key activities

1

Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial obligations

9

Related parties

10

Subsequent events

11

Accounting Policies

12
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity at 1 January

Share capital

Retained
earnings

Total

DKK

DKK

DKK

2,010,000

18,090,040

20,100,040

Exchange adjustments

0

53,355

53,355

Net profit/loss for the year

0

7,284,651

7,284,651

2,010,000

25,428,046

27,438,046

Equity at 31 December
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1

Key activities
The Entity's primary activity is to provide safety training and consultancy services to relevant high-risk industries,
from facilities in Denmark and the branch in Germany.

2

23,920,733

2,318,450

2,694,836

28,560,796

26,615,569

57

53

Other financial income

53,786

3,895

Exchange gains

42,300

0

96,086

3,895

193,480

223,173

0

38,472

193,480

261,645

2,800,254

582,114

Average number of employees

Financial income

Financial expenses
Other financial expenses
Exchange loss

5

DKK

26,242,346

Pensions

4

2017

DKK

Staff expenses
Wages and salaries

3

2018

Tax on profit/loss for the year
Current tax for the year
Deferred tax for the year

(437,940)

(383,695)

Adjustment of tax concerning previous years

(190,932)

(575)

2,171,382

197,844
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6

Property, plant and equipment

Cost at 1 January

Land and
buildings

Other fixtures
and fittings,
tools and
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

Property, plant
and equipment
in progress

DKK

DKK

DKK

DKK

2,952,694

38,523,068

5,260,756

161,990

Additions for the year

0

2,441,564

73,634

352,687

Transfers for the year

0

0

161,990

(161,990)

Cost at 31 December

2,952,694

40,964,632

5,496,380

352,687

2,359,275

29,136,584

2,443,984

0

0

2,859,404

163,524

0

2,359,275

31,995,988

2,607,508

0

593,419

8,968,644

2,888,872

352,687

0

770,000

0

0

Impairment losses and depreciation at
1 January
Depreciation for the year
Impairment losses and depreciation at
31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December
Including assets under finance leases
amounting to

7

Equity
The share capital consists of 2,010,000 shares of a nominal value of DKK 2,010,000. No shares carry any
special rights.
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8

Long-term debt
Payments due within 1 year are recognised in short-term debt. Other debt is recognised in long-term debt.
The debt falls due for payment as specified below:

2018

2017

DKK

DKK

Lease obligations
After 5 years

447,776

562,763

Between 1 and 5 years

354,950

294,323

Long-term part

802,726

857,086

54,360

45,074

857,086

902,160

Within 1 year

9

Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial obligations
Contingent liabilities
The Company has signed an interminable rental agreement effective until 30 September 2036 for its buildings.
Annual rent totals DKK 2,587k.
The Company has also signed a rental agreement for other premises effective until 31 October 2020. Annual
rent amounts to DKK 1,546k
The Danish group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc of the
Group. The total amount of corporation tax payable is disclosed in the Annual Report of P-RelyOn Nutec A/S,
which is the management company of the joint taxation purposes. Moreover, the Danish group companies are
jointly and severally liable for Danish withholding taxes by way of dividend tax, tax on royalty payments and tax
on unearned income. Any subsequent adjustments of corporation taxes and withholding taxes may increase the
Company’s liability.
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10 Related parties
Basis
Transactions
The Company has chosen only to disclose transactions which have not been made on an arm’s length basis in
accordance with section 98(c)(7) of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Consolidated Financial Statements
The company is included in the consolidated report for the parent company
Name

Place of registered office

BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S

Copenhagen

The Group Annual Report of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S may be obtained at the following address:
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S
Kalvebod Brygge 45,3.
DK-1560 København V
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Subsequent events
No events materially affecting the assessment of the Annual Report have occurred after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
12 Accounting Policies
The Annual Report of RelyOn Nutec Denmark A/S for 2018 has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Danish Financial Statements Act applying to enterprises of reporting class B.
The accounting policies applied remain unchanged from last year.
The Financial Statements for 2018 are presented in DKK.
Recognition and measurement
Assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company, and the value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
out of the Company, and the value of the liability can be measured reliably.
Assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, assets and liabilities are measured as
described for each item below.
Leases
Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
(finance leases) are recognised in the balance sheet at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the net present value of the lease payments computed by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease or
an alternative borrowing rate as the discount rate. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
and written down for impairment under the same policy as determined for the other fixed assets of the
Company.
The remaining lease obligation is capitalised and recognised in the balance sheet under debt, and the interest element on the lease payments is charged over the lease term to the income statement.
All other leases are considered operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Translation policies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of transaction.
Exchange differences arising due to differences between the transaction date rates and the rates at the
dates of payment are recognised in financial income and expenses in the income statement. Where
foreign exchange transactions are considered hedging of future cash flows, the value adjustments are
recognised directly in equity.
Receivables, payables and other monetary items in foreign currencies that have not been settled at the
balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Any differences between
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Notes to the Financial Statements
12 Accounting Policies (continued)
the exchange rates at the balance sheet date and the rates at the time when the receivable or the debt
arose are recognised in financial income and expenses in the income statement.
Fixed assets acquired in foreign currencies are measured at the transaction date rates.
On recognition of foreign subsidiaries where operations are independent from the parent compay, profit
and loss accounts are translated at monthly average exchange rates, and balance sheet items are
translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on
translation of the opening equity of foreign subsidiaries at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date and on translation of profit and loss accounts from average exchange rates to the rates ruling at the
balance sheet date are recognised directly in equity.

Income Statement
Revenue
Revenue from the sale of services is recognised when the risks and rewards relating to the services sold
have been transferred to the purchaser.
Revenue is measured at the consideration received and is recognised exclusive of VAT and net of
discounts relating to sales.
Other external expenses
Other external expenses comprise expenses for premises and sales as well as office expenses, etc.
Gross profit/loss
With reference to section 32 of the Danish Financial Statements Act, gross profit/loss is calculated as a
summary of revenue, other operating income and other external expenses.
Staff expenses
Staff expenses comprise wages and salaries as well as payroll expenses.
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses comprise amortisation, depreciation and impairment
of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
12 Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses are recognised in the income statement at the amounts relating to the financial year.
Tax on profit/loss for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and changes in deferred tax for the year. The tax
attributable to the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement, whereas the tax attributable
to equity transactions is recognised directly in equity.
The Company is jointly taxed with with Danish Group enterprises. The tax effect of the joint taxation is
allocated to enterprises in proportion to their taxable incomes.

Balance Sheet
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and less any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises the cost of acquisition and expenses directly related to the acquisition up until the time
when the asset is ready for use.
Depreciation based on cost reduced by any residual value is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the assets, which are:
Buildings
20 years
Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment
Leasehold improvements
10 years

3-10

years

Depreciation period and residual value are reassessed annually.
Impairment of fixed assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual
basis to determine whether there is any indication of impairment other than that expressed by amortisation and depreciation.
If so, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
12 Accounting Policies (continued)
Receivables
Receivables are measured in the balance sheet at the lower of amortised cost and net realisable value,
which corresponds to nominal value less provisions for bad debts.
Prepayments
Prepayments comprise prepaid expenses concerning incurred costs relating to subsequent financial
years.
Equity
Dividend
Dividend distribution proposed by Management for the year is disclosed as a separate equity item.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability, respectively.
Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realised, either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same legal tax
entity.
Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallise as current tax. Any changes
in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement or in equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognised in equity.
Current tax receivables and liabilities
Current tax liabilities and receivables are recognised in the balance sheet as the expected taxable income
for the year adjusted for tax on taxable incomes for prior years and tax paid on account. Extra payments
and repayment under the on-account taxation scheme are recognised in the income statement in financial income and expenses.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortised cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
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Statement by Management on the annual report
Statement by Ma nage ment o n the a nnua l report

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board have today considered and approved the annual report
of Falck Safety Services A/S for the financial year 01.01.2017 - 31.12.2017.
The annual report is presented in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Entity’s financial position at
31.12.2017 and of the results of its operations for the financial year 01.01.2017 - 31.12.2017.
We believe that the management commentary contains a fair review of the affairs and conditions referred
to therein.
We recommend the annual report for adoption at the Annual General Meeting.
Esbjerg, 04.05.2018
Executive Board

Claus Nexø Hansen
Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors

Torben Peder Korsgaard

Lizette Kjellerup

Chairman

Rene Kjer Petersen

Jesper René Daugbjerg

Torben Harring
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Independent auditor's report
Independent a uditor's report

To the shareholders of Falck Safety Services A/S
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Falck Safety Services A/S for the financial year 01.01.2017
- 31.12.2017, which comprise the income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Entity’s financial position at
31.12.2017 and of the results of its operations for the financial year 01.01.2017 - 31.12.2017 in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and additional
requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this
auditor’s report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board of Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Management's responsibilities for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and for using
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements unless Management either
intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Independent auditor's report
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in
Denmark, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements, and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures in the notes, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Independent auditor's report
Statement on the management commentary
Management is responsible for the management commentary.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the management commentary, and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the management
commentary and, in doing so, consider whether the management commentary is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether the management commentary provides the
information required under the Danish Financial Statements Act.
Based on the work we have performed, we conclude that the management commentary is in accordance
with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish
Financial Statements Act. We did not identify any material misstatement of the management
commentary.
Esbjerg, 04.05.2018

Deloitte
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
Central Business Registration No (CVR) 33963556

Jørn Jepsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
Identification No (MNE) mne24824

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Management commentary
Manage ment co mmentary

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

DKK'000

DKK'000

DKK'000

DKK'000

DKK'000

30,401

33,105

36,368

47,878

47,657

4,016

546

11,256

12,628

Financial highlights
Key figures
Gross profit
Operating profit/loss

(804)

Net financials

(258)

(193)

Profit/loss for the year

(1,259)

Total assets

31,087

36,329

2,155
20,100

Investments in property,
plant and equipment
Equity

2,924

(299)
(724)

(259)

(385)

7,835

9,167

36,121

39,234

34,770

494

3,649

4,705

2,931

27,359

24,865

14,554

16,133

Ratios
Return on equity (%)

(5.3)

11.2

(3.7)

51.1

63.4

Equity ratio (%)

64.7

75.3

68.8

37.1

46.4

Financial highlights are defined and calculated in accordance with "Recommendations & Ratios 2015" issued by the Danish Society of Financial
Analysts.

Ratios

Return on equity (%)

Equity ratio (%)

Calculation formula
Profit/loss for the year x 100
Average equity
Equity x 100
Total assets

Calculation formula reflects
The entity's return on capital invested in
the entity by the owners.
The financial strength of the entity.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Management commentary
Primary activities
The Entity´s primary activity is to provide safety training and consultancy services to relevant high-risk
industries.
Development in activities and finances
Net loss for the year is DKK 1,259k, and equity is DKK 20,100k at 31.12.2017.
Ambitious 2018 growth targets had been set for revenue from the Danish activities and for further development of the training activities in Bremerhaven, Germany. The results achieved through the activities
in Denmark and Germany (branch) are considered unsatisfactory by Management.
Outlook
Intensified competition in the market for safety training is expected for 2018 as well as market restraints.
Expectations for training in the wind turbine manufacturing industry are still on the rise whereas demand
in the oil and gas industries is expected to be at a standstill.
Events after the balance sheet date
No events have occurred after the balance sheet date to this date, which would influence the evaluation
of this annual report.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Income statement for 2017
Inco me statement for 201 7

Notes

Gross profit
Staff costs

1

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses
Operating profit/loss

2017

2016

DKK

DKK

30,401,330

33,104,848

(26,615,569)

(25,363,608)

(4,589,534)

(3,725,376)

(803,773)

Other financial income

31,783

Financial expenses from group enterprises

0

Other financial expenses

(289,533)

Profit/loss before tax

(1,061,523)

Tax on profit/loss for the year

Profit/loss for the year

2

(197,844)

(1,259,367)

4,015,864

110,277
(2,644)
(300,321)
3,823,176

(898,893)

2,924,283

Proposed distribution of profit/loss
Ordinary dividend for the financial year
Retained earnings

0

6,000,000

(1,259,367)

(3,075,717)

(1,259,367)

2,924,283

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Balance sheet at 31.12.2017
Balance sheet at 31.12.2 017

2017

2016

DKK

DKK

0

0

0

0

593,419

1,985,048

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

9,386,484

11,150,571

Leasehold improvements

2,816,772

2,257,191

161,990

0

12,958,665

15,392,810

694,888

986,080

694,888

986,080

13,653,553

16,378,890

Trade receivables

8,242,738

7,764,444

Receivables from group enterprises

2,160,814

7,170,642

891,035

322,754

2,786,993

2,755,419

Income tax receivable

368,824

0

Prepayments

418,091

352,438

Receivables

14,868,495

18,365,697

2,565,403

1,584,693

Current assets

17,433,898

19,950,390

Assets

31,087,451

36,329,280

Notes

Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets

3

Land and buildings

Property, plant and equipment in progress
Property, plant and equipment

4

Other receivables
Fixed asset investments

Fixed assets

Deferred tax
Other receivables

Cash

5

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Balance sheet at 31.12.2017

2017

2016

Notes

DKK

DKK

6

2,010,000

2,010,000

Retained earnings

18,090,040

19,349,407

Proposed dividend

0

6,000,000

20,100,040

27,359,407

857,086

902,160

7

857,086

902,160

7

45,074

37,376

Trade payables

2,227,552

1,575,315

Payables to group enterprises

2,058,824

942,907

0

570,180

5,798,875

4,941,935

Current liabilities other than provisions

10,130,325

8,067,713

Liabilities other than provisions

10,987,411

8,969,873

Equity and liabilities

31,087,451

36,329,280

Contributed capital

Equity
Finance lease liabilities
Non-current liabilities other than provisions

Current portion of long-term liabilities other than
provisions

Income tax payable
Other payables

Unrecognised rental and lease commitments

8

Contingent liabilities

9

Related parties with controlling interest

10

Group relations

11
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Statement of changes in equity for 2017
Statement of c hanges in equity for 2017

Contributed

Retained

Proposed

capital

earnings

dividend

Total

DKK

DKK

DKK

DKK

2,010,000

19,349,407

6,000,000

27,359,407

0

0

Equity
beginning of
year
Ordinary
dividend paid
Profit/loss for
the year
Equity end
of year

0
2,010,000

(1,259,367)
18,090,040

(6,000,000)
0
0

(6,000,000)
(1,259,367)
20,100,040

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Notes
Notes

2017

2016

DKK

DKK

23,920,733

22,594,452

2,419,513

2,433,847

275,323

335,309

26,615,569

25,363,608

53

56

1. Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Pension costs
Other social security costs

Average number of employees

2017

2016

DKK

DKK

582,114

1,589,993

2. Tax on profit/loss for the year
Current tax
Change in deferred tax
Adjustment concerning previous years

(383,695)

(214,045)

(575)

(477,055)

197,844

898,893

Acquired
intangible
assets
DKK
3. Intangible assets
Cost beginning of year

736,329

Cost end of year

736,329

Amortisation and impairment losses beginning of year

(736,329)

Amortisation and impairment losses end of year

(736,329)

Carrying amount end of year

0

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Notes

Other
fixtures and

Property,

fittings, tools

Leasehold

plant and

Land and

and

improve-

equipment in

buildings

equipment

ments

progress

DKK

DKK

DKK

DKK

2,952,694

37,580,202

4,243,221

0

Additions

0

975,866

1,017,535

161,990

Disposals

0

(33,000)

0

0

38,523,068

5,260,756

161,990

(26,429,631)

(1,986,030)

4. Property, plant and
equipment
Cost beginning of year

Cost end of year

2,952,694

Depreciation and
impairment losses beginning

(967,646)

0

of year
Impairment losses for the
year
Depreciation for the year
Reversal regarding disposals

(1,268,893)
(122,736)
0

0
(2,739,953)
33,000

0
(457,954)
0

0
0
0

Depreciation and
impairment losses end of

(2,359,275)

(29,136,584)

(2,443,984)

0

year
Carrying amount end of
year
Recognised assets not
owned by entity

593,419

9,386,484

2,816,772

161,990

-

998,146

-

-

Other
receivables
DKK
5. Fixed asset investments
Cost beginning of year

986,080

Disposals

(291,192)

Cost end of year

694,888

Carrying amount end of year

694,888

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Notes

Nominal
Par value

value

Number

DKK

DKK

Shares

1

2000000

2,000,000

Shares

1

10000

10,000

6. Contributed capital

2

2,010,000

Due within 12

Due within 12

Due after more

months

months

than 12 months

Outstanding

2017

2016

2017

after 5 years

DKK

DKK

DKK

DKK

45,074

37,376

857,086

562,763

45,074

37,376

857,086

562,763

7. Liabilities
other than
provisions
Finance lease
liabilities

8. Unrecognised rental and lease commitments
The Entity has signed operating leases at average annual lease payments of DKK 415k. The remaining terms
of the leases range from 12 to 27 months with lease payments totaling DKK 1,033k.
9. Contingent liabilities
The Entity has signed an interminable rental agreement effective until 30 September 2036 for its buildings.
Annual rent totals DKK 2,587k.
The Entity has also signed a rental agreement for other premises effective until 31 October 2020. Annual
rent amounts to DKK 1,546k.
The Company participates in a Danish joint taxation arrangement in which Lundbeckfond Invest A/S serves
as the administration company. According to the joint taxation provisions of the Danish Corporation Tax Act,
the Company is therefore liable for income taxes etc. for the jointly taxed companies and also for obligations,
if any, relating to the withholding of tax on interest, royalties and dividend for the jointly taxed companies.
10. Related parties with controlling interest
Falck Safety Services Holding A/S, Uglviggårdsvej 3, Esbjerg.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Notes

11. Group relations
Name and registered office of the Parent preparing consolidated financial statements for the largest group:
Lundbeckfonden, Scherfigsvej, København Ø
Name and registered office of the Parent preparing consolidated financial statements for the smallest group:
Falck Holding A/S, Polititorvet, København V

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Accounting policies
Accounti ng policies

Reporting class
This annual report has been presented in accordance with the provisions of the Danish Financial Statements
Act governing reporting class B enterprises with addition of certain provisions for report-ing class C.
The accounting policies applied to these financial statements are consistent with those applied last year.
Recognition and measurement
Assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable as a result of a prior event that future economic
benefits will flow to the Entity, and the value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Entity has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a prior event, and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow out of the Entity, and the
value of the liability can be measured reliably.
On initial recognition, assets and liabilities are measured at cost. Measurement subsequent to initial recognition is effected as described below for each financial statement item.
Anticipated risks and losses that arise before the time of presentation of the annual report and that confirm
or invalidate affairs and conditions existing at the balance sheet date are considered at recognition and
measurement.
Income is recognised in the income statement when earned, whereas costs are recognised by the amounts
attributable to this financial year.
Foreign currency translation
On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated applying the exchange rate at the transaction date. Receivables, payables and other monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that have
not been settled at the balance sheet date are translated using the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences that arise between the rate at the transaction date and the rate in effect at the
payment date, or the rate at the balance sheet date, are recognised in the income statement as financial
income or financial expenses. Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and other nonmonetary assets that have been purchased in foreign currencies are translated using historical rates.
Income statement
Gross profit or loss
Gross profit or loss comprises revenue, other operating income and external expenses.
Revenue
Revenue from the sale of services is recognised in the income statement when delivery is made to the buyer.
Revenue is recognised net of VAT, duties and sales discounts and is measured at fair value of the consideration fixed.

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Accounting policies
Other operating income
Other operating income comprises income of a secondary nature as viewed in relation to the Entity’s primary
activities.
Other external expenses
Other external expenses include expenses relating to the Entity’s ordinary activities, including expenses for
premises, stationery and office supplies, marketing costs, etc. This item also includes writedowns of receivables recognised in current assets.
Staff costs
Staff costs comprise salaries and wages as well as social security contributions, pension contributions, etc
for entity staff.
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses relating to property, plant and equipment comprise depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses for the financial year, calculated on the basis of the residual
values and useful lives of the individual assets and impairment testing as well as gains and losses from the
sale of property, plant and equipment.
Other financial income
Other financial income comprises interest income, including interest income on receivables from group enterprises, net capital or exchange gains on securities, payables and transactions in foreign currencies, amortisation of financial assets as well as tax relief under the Danish Tax Prepayment Scheme etc.
Financial expenses from group enterprises
Financial expenses from group enterprises comprise interest expenses etc from payables to group enterprises.
Other financial expenses
Other financial expenses comprise interest expenses, including interest expenses on payables to group enterprises, net capital or exchange losses on securities, payables and transactions in foreign currencies, amortisation of financial liabilities as well as tax surcharge under the Danish Tax Prepayment Scheme etc.
Tax on profit/loss for the year
Tax for the year, which consists of current tax for the year and changes in deferred tax, is recognised in the
income statement by the portion attributable to the profit for the year and recognised directly in equity by
the portion attributable to entries directly in equity.
The Entity is jointly taxed with the parent and its all Danish subsidiaries. The current Danish income tax is
allocated among the jointly taxed entities proportionally to their taxable income (full allocation with a refund
concerning tax losses).

Falck Safety Services A/S
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Accounting policies
Balance sheet
Intellectual property rights etc
Intellectual property rights etc comprise development projects completed and intellectual property rights
acquired.
Intellectual property rights acquired are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation. Patents are amortised over their remaining duration, and licences are amortised over the term of the agreement.
Intellectual property rights etc are written down to the lower of recoverable amount and carrying amount.
Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings, plant and machinery as well as other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Land is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the acquisition price, costs directly attributable to the acquisition and preparation costs of
the asset until the time when it is ready to be put into operation. For assets held under finance leases, cost
is the lower of the asset’s fair value and present value of future lease payments.
The basis of depreciation is cost less estimated residual value after the end of useful life. Straight-line depreciation is made on the basis of the following estimated useful lives of the assets:
Buildings
Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment
Leasehold improvements

20 years
3-10 years
10 years

For leasehold improvements and assets subject to finance leases, the depreciation period cannot exceed the
contract period.
Estimated useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually.
Items of property, plant and equipment are written down to the lower of recoverable amount and carrying
amount.
Receivables
Receivables are measured at amortised cost, usually equalling nominal value less writedowns for bad and
doubtful debts.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax-based
value of assets and liabilities, for which the tax-based value is calculated based on the planned use of each
asset.
Deferred tax assets, including the tax base of tax loss carryforwards, are recognised in the balance sheet at
their estimated realisable value, either as a set-off against deferred tax liabilities or as net tax assets.
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Accounting policies
Income tax payable or receivable
Current tax payable or receivable is recognised in the balance sheet, stated as tax computed on this year's
taxable income, adjusted for prepaid tax.
Prepayments
Prepayments comprise incurred costs relating to subsequent financial years. Prepayments are measured at
cost.
Cash
Cash comprises cash in hand and bank deposits.
Dividend
Dividend is recognised as a liability at the time of adoption at the general meeting. Proposed dividend for
the financial year is disclosed as a separate item in equity. Extraordinary dividend adopted in the financial
year is recognised directly in equity when distributed and disclosed as a separate item in Management's
proposal for distribution of profit/loss.
Finance lease liabilities
Lease commitments relating to assets held under finance leases are recognised in the balance sheet as
liabilities other than provisions, and, at the time of inception of the lease, measured at the present value of
future lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, lease commitments are measured at amortised
cost. The difference between present value and nominal amount of the lease payments is recognised in the
income statement as a financial expense over the term of the leases.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, which usually corresponds to nominal value.
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Management's Statement on the Special Purpose Financial State
ments
The board of directors has today considered and adopted the Special Purpose Financial Statements of
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2018 and 1 January - 31 De
cember 2017, respectively.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 1. We consider the accounting policies applied appropriate and the accounting estimates reasona
ble.
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements have in all material respects been prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 and give a fair presentation of the financial posi
tion at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively, of the Company and of the results of the
Company's operations for 2018 and 2017, respectively.
No events have occurred after 31 December 2018 that have a material effect of the Company's financial po
sition at 31 December 2018.

ct.

September

2019

Board of directors

Torben Harring

S0ren Strn
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements of RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. (the Company) are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1.
We have audited
The Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company comprise:
•
•
•
•

income statement for the financial year 2018 and 2017, respectively,
balance sheet as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively,
statement of changes in equity for 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of accounting and Restriction on distribution and use
We draw attention to Note 1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis
of accounting and that the Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared by Management for the sole purpose of fulfilling BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S’, Denmark obligations towards the
Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements for
guarantors and may therefore not be suitable for any other purposes.
Our Report has been prepared solely for use by RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V. and the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway and should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our
opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.
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Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
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•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup,ct September 2019

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR
3 7 12 31

14i,
Bo Sc /k,e . -Jacobsen
State • uthorised Public Accountant
mne28703

Thomas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne30141
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note

Income from investments in subsidiaries
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
Other external expenses

6

Profit before financial items
Financial income
Financial expenses

4

Profit before tax
Tax on profit for the year
Profit/loss for the year

2018
EUR'000

2017
EUR'000

2.131
-13.717
-102

1.787
0
-838

-11.688

949

0
-49

97
-7

-11.737

1.040

0

-1.385

-11.737

-345
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 January - 31 December
2018
EUR'000
Profit/loss for the year
Comprehensive income

2017
EUR'000

-11.737

-345

-11.737

-345
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Assets
Note

Investment in subsidiaries

2017
EUR'000

32.825

34.339

Financial fixed assets

32.825

34.339

Non-current assets

32.825

34.339

Trade receivables

0

6

Receivables

0

6

Cash

412

113

Current assets

412

119

33.237

34.458

Assets

6

2018
EUR'000
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Equity and liabilities

Note

Equity

2018
EUR'000

2017
EUR'000

18.528

30.265

14.668
41
0

4.030
5
158

Current liabilities

14.709

4.193

Liabilities

14.709

4.193

Equity and liabilities

33.237

34.458

Payables from group companies
Trade payables
Income tax payable

Going Concern
Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Related parties
Subsequent events

2
7
8
9

8

Statement of Changes in Equity 1 January - 31 December

Retained
earnings
EUR'000
Equity at 1 January 2018
Comprehensive income for the year
Equity at 31 December 2018

Equity at 1 January 2017
Comprehensive income for the year
Equity at 31 December 2017

Total
EUR'000

30.265
-11.737

30.265
-11.737

18.528

18.528

30.610
-345

30.610
-345

30.265

30.265

No share capital is issued.
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Notes
1

Accounting Policies
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared for the sole purpose of fulfilling the requirement
from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (and the Oslo Stock Exchange) regarding the
application for admission to the listing of the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S`s bonds on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018, respectively, are prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies set out below. The disclosure and presentation requirements have been
established by the Management. The Special Purpose Financial Statements may therefore not be suitable
for any other purposes than the above listed.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are presented in EUR. The Company operates in EUR (‘the
functional currency’).
Consolidated Financial Statement
The Company has not prepared consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as the Company is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark.

Income statement
Income from investments in subsidiaries
Dividends from subsidiaries are recognised as income in the income statement when adopted at the
General Meeting of the subsidiary.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense determined on an effective
interest basis and realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses.
Tax on profit for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and deferred tax for the year. The tax attributable to
the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes
Balance sheet
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost or at a lower recoverable amount. If indications of
impairments are identified, an impairment test is prepared. If the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying amount, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortised cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability,
respectively. Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realized,
either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same
legal tax entity. Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective
under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallize as current
tax. Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognized in the income statement or in
equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognized in equity.
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Notes
2

Going Concern
The Company has received a Letter of Support and Subordination from its Parent Companies in Denmark,
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S insuring the required funding of its future
operation until 31 December 2020. Furthermore, the Parent Companies will subordinate their receivables
in favour of other creditors of the Company.
Management have on this basis prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.

3

4

5

Financial income
Interest income

Financial expenses
Exchange rate difference, net
Bank costs
Intercompany interests paid

Tax on profit for the year
Current tax on profit for the year

2018
USD '000

2017
USD '000
0

97

0

97

20
-4
-65

-5
-2
0

-49

-7

0

-1.385

0

-1.385
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2018
USD '000

Investment in subsidiaries
Cost at 1 January
Additions

2017
USD '000

34.339
12.202

22.217
12.122

Cost 31 December

46.542

34.339

Value adjustments at 1 January
Adjustments/impairment

0
-13.717

0
0

Value adjustments at 31 december

-13.717

0

32.825

34.339

Carrying amount at 31 December

Investments in subsidiaries are specified as follows:
Name
RelyOn Caspian Safe
Nutec Belgium Holding B.V.B.A.
RelyOn Safety Services Belgium
RelyOn Safety Services Canada Ltd.
RelyOn Nutec Ltd.
MSTS Asia Sdn Bhd
Karma Jaya Sdn. Bhd.
RelyOn Safety Services Nigeria Limited
Safety Training*
RelyOn Nutec B.V.
RelyOn Nutec AS
RelyOn Nutec Trinidad and Tobago
Limited

Ownership
100%
100%
100%
68%
100%
100%
100%
51%
49%
100%
100%
100%

Place of
registered office
Azerbaijan
Belgium
Belgium
Canada
United Kingdom
Malaysia
Malaysia
Nigeria
Nigeria
Netherlands
Norway
Trinidad and
Tobago

Equity interest in
tEUR**
-403
0
1.846
2.053
16.341
5.648
56
58
3.403
-2.292
3.088
3.027

* For this company, the Group holds an equity interest of less than 50%. However, due to rights arising
from shareholders' agreements, the Group has determined that it has control of the company, which is thus
classified as subsidiary.
** As reported for group consolidation for BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark at year-end 2018.
7

Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Charges and security
Some of the investments in subsidiaries are placed as security toward debt of a parent Company:
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark
Contingent liabilities
The Netherlands group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc of
the Group.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.
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Notes
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Related parties
The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:
Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark
Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, Denmark

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark.
The Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3rd floor, DK-1560 Copenhagen, Denmark

9

Subsequent events
There have been no material events after the balance sheet date.
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Falck Nutec Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2017

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Note

2017
£

2016
£

10
11

3,644,590
-

4,136,756
519,315

3,644,590

4,656,071

12,604,148
594,921

12,776,358
344,724

13,199,069

13,121,082

12

13

(2,253,217) (3,339,276)

Net current assets

10,945,852

9,781,806

Total assets less current liabilities

14,590,442

14,437,877

Provisions for liabilities

14

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds

15

(163,419)

(177,648)

14,427,023

14,260,229

950,245
13,476,778

950,245
13,309,984

14,427,023

14,260,229

The financial statements of Falck Nutec Limited (registered number 02786348) were approved by the board of
directors and authorised for issue on 1 March 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

Colin Leyden
Director
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Management's Statement on the Special Purpose Financial
Statements
The board of directors has today considered and adopted the Special Purpose Financial Statements
of RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V. for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2018.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1. We consider the accounting policies applied appropriate and the accounting esti
mates reasonable.
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements have in all material respects been pre
pared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 and give a fair presentation of the
financial position at 31 December 2018 of the Company and of the results of the Company's opera
tions for 2018.
No events have occurred after 31 December 2018 that have a material effect of the Company's fi
nancial position at 31 December 2018.

1., September 2019
Board of directors

Torben Harring
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.

S0re trnm
RelyOn Nutec Holding B.V.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of RelyOn Nutec Netherlands B.V.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 of RelyOn Nutec Netherlands
B.V. (the Company) are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.
We have audited
The Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company comprise:
•
•
•
•

income statement for the financial year 2018,
balance sheet as of 31 December 2018,
statement of changes in equity for 2018, and
notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of accounting and Restriction on distribution and use
We draw attention to note 1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis
of accounting and that the Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared by Management for
the sole purpose of fulfilling BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S’, Denmark obligations towards the Financial
Supervisory Authority of Norway to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements for guarantors
and may therefore not be suitable for any other purposes.
Our Report has been prepared solely for use by the Company and the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway and should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our opinion is not
modified in respect to this matter
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Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
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•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup,? September 2019

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab

CVR o 3 7 12 31
1.
Bo Sch./ acobsen
State i g. horised Public Accountant
m11e28703

m Wraae Holm
oas
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne3m4i
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note

2018
EUR '000

Revenue

8.017

Direct cost

-1.794

Gross profit

6.223

Employee costs
Other external expenses
Other operating income and expenses

3

Operating profit
Amortization and depreciation

-4.542
-2.655
0
-974

6,7,8

Profit before financial items
Financial expenses

-2.207
4

Profit before tax
Tax on profit for the year
Profit/loss for the year

-1.233

-615
-2.822

5

-416
-3.238

Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 January - 31 December
2018
EUR '000
Profit/loss for the year
Comprehensive income

-3.238
-3.238

6

Balance Sheet at 31 December

Assets
Note

2018
EUR '000

Competition right

2.013

Intangible fixed assets

6

2.013

Land and buildings

7

5.700

Equipment

7

2.106

Right-of-use assets

8

805

Property, plant and equipment

8.611

Non-current assets

Deferred tax
Receivables from group companies
Trade receivables
Other receivables prepayments
Receivables
Cash at bank and in hand
Current assets

Assets

10.624

9

194
2.130
2.025
256
4.606
419
5.025

15.649
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Balance Sheet at 31 December

Equity and liabilities
Note

2018
EUR '000

Equity

3.928

Long term lease liabilities (Due after 5 years: EUR 1.898 k)

3.624

Non-current liabilities

3.624

Short term lease liabilities

403

Payables to group companies

5.293

Trade payables

1.117

Payroll liabilities

496

Other payables

788

Current liabilities

8.097

Liabilities

11.721

Equity and liabilities

Going Concern
Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations

15.649

2
10

Related parties

11

Subsequent events

12

8

Statement of Changes in Equity 1 January - 31 December

Share capital
EUR '000

Retained
earnings
EUR '000

Total
EUR '000

Equity at 1 January
Adjustment*
Comprehensive income for the year

18
0
0

8.476
-1.328
-3.238

8.494
-1.328
-3.238

Equity at 31 December

18

3.911

3.928

*Adjustment to group policy regarding competition right and leased assets/liabilities.
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Notes
1

Accounting Policies
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared for the sole purpose of fulfilling the requirement
from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (and the Oslo Stock Exchange) regarding the
application for admission to the listing of the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S`s bonds on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 are prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies set out below. The disclosure and presentation requirements have been established by the
Management. The Special Purpose Financial Statements may therefore not be suitable for any other
purposes than the above listed.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 are presented in EUR, which is the functional
currency of the Company. The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared on a historical cost
basis.

Income statement
Revenue
The Company generates revenue from delivering of safety training services to its customers within the oil
and gas, wind and maritime industry globally.
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
The activity is pay-per-use, and the payment terms for customers are 30-60 days, and invoicing is shortly
after completion of courses.
If the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the payments exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is recognized. A receivable is recognized when the receipt of
payment is conditional on passage of time only.
Where another party is involved in providing the services to the customer, the Company assesses on a
contract by contract basis, whether the Company is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company is
acting as a principal when the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
services itself. On the contrary the Company is acting as an agent when it is arranging for the services to
be provided by the other party.
When the Company obtains control over the specified service before it is transferred to the customer, it is
a principal and thus recognizes revenue on a gross basis. When the Company is acting as an agent, the
commission rather than the gross income is recognized as revenue.
Direct costs
Cost of sales comprise expenses for related to course material and subcontractors.
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Notes
Employee costs
Employee costs comprise wages and salaries as well as expenses for payroll & pensions and other staff
related expenses.
Other external expenses
Other external costs comprise expenses for premises, marketing, external consultancy, office expenses etc.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense, realized and unrealized
exchange rate gains and losses and amortization related to financial assets and liabilities. Financials are
recognized at the amounts related to the year.
Tax on profit for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and deferred tax for the year. The tax attributable to
the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement.

Balance sheet
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Amortization are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Competition right

11 years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
Cost includes direct costs related to the asset and the initial estimate of the costs related to dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if the costs meet the definition of a
liability. Cost further includes borrowing costs from specific and general borrowings directly relating to
the acquisition, construction or development of the individual qualifying asset during the period that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items.
Depreciations are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Notes
Land and buildings:
Equipment:
Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements:
Land:

25 - 30 years
3 - 10 years
11 years
Term of lease
Not depreciated

The residual value and useful life is determined at the date of acquisition and revalued each year. Where
the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, the asset ceases to be depreciated.
Gains and losses on the disposal or scrapping of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the sales price less dismantling, selling and re-establishing costs and the carrying
amount. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement as other operating income and external
expenses, respectively.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful
life, as described above, or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
Each year, the assets are reviews in order to assess, whether there are any indicators of impairment.
Impairment of fixed assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual
basis to determine whether there is any indication of impairment other than that expressed by
amortisation and depreciation. If so, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.

Trade receivables
On initial recognition, receivables are measured at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortized cost.
Trade receivables and contract assets are written down for expected credit losses.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when, as a consequence of an event occurring before or on the balance sheet
date, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is Management’s best
estimate of the present value of expenses required to settle the obligation.
Provisions for restructuring are recognized when a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring has been
made before or on the balance sheet date and has been announced to the parties involved.
A provision for onerous contracts is made when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortised cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
12

Notes
Leases (Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities)
Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
(finance leases) are recognized in the balance sheet at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
net present value of the lease payments computed by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease or an
alternative borrowing rate as the discount rate. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated and
written down for impairment under the same policy as determined for the other fixed assets of the
Company. The remaining lease obligation is capitalized and recognized in the balance sheet under debt,
and the interest element on the lease payments is charged over the lease term to the income statement. All
other leases are considered operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability,
respectively. Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realized,
either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same
legal tax entity. Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective
under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to utilize as current tax.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognized in the income statement or in
equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognized in equity.
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Notes
2

Going Concern
The Company has received a Letter of Support and Subordination from its Parent Companies in
Denmark, BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S insuring the required funding of
its future operation until 31 December 2020. Furthermore, the Parent Companies will subordinate
their receivables in favour of other creditors of the Company.
Management has on this basis prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.

3

Employee costs

2018
EUR '000

Wages and salaries
Pension, insurance and other social expenses
Other staff expenses

3.816
726
0
4.542

Average number of full-time employees

4

61

Financial expenses
Interest expenses

615
615

5

Tax on profit for the year
Current tax on profit for the year

416
416

6

Intangible assets

Cost at 1 January
Adjustment to group policy

Competition
right
EUR '000

Total
EUR '000

0
2.215

0
2.215

2.215

2.215

Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation and writedown for the year

0
201

0
201

Depreciation at 31 December

201

201

2.013

2.013

Cost at 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December
Depreciated over

11 years
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Property, plant and equipment

Land and
buildings
EUR '000

8

Equipment

Land &
buildings
under
construction

EUR '000

EUR '000

Total
EUR '000

Cost at 1 January
Additions for the year
Disposals for the year
Transfer

4.266
3.756
-879
2.070

21.488
1.073
-1.621
0

2.070
0
0
-2.070

25.754
4.829
-2.499
0

Cost at 31 December

9.214

20.940

0

30.154

Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation and
Disposals for the year
Depreciation at 31
December

3.860
149
-495

19.297
802
-1.265

0
0
0

23.157
951
-1.760

3.513

18.834

0

22.348

Carrying amount
at 31 December

5.700

2.106

0

7.806

Depreciated over

25-30 years

3-10 years

N/A

Right-of-use assets
Equipment
EUR '000

Total
EUR '000

Cost at 1 January
Adjustment to group policy

0
886

0
886

Cost at 31 December

886

886

Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation and writedown for the year

0
81

0
81

Depreciation at 31 December

81

81

805

805

Carrying amount at 31 December
Depreciated over

11 years
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Notes
9

Deferred tax
The Company is part of a joint taxation in the Netherlands. The joint taxation has a recognised tax
asset of EUR 194k.

10 Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Charges and security
The are no assets which have been placed as security with credit institutions.
Contingent liabilities
The Netherlands group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes
etc of the Group.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.
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Related parties
The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:

RelyOn Nutec Holdings B.V., The Netherlands

Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, Denmark

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S,
Denmark. The Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Kalvebod Brygge 3rd, floor, DK1560 Copenhagen, Denmark.
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Subsequent events

The Company is expected to merge with RelyOn Nutec B.V. as of 1 January 2019. No other events have
occured after year-end 2018, which have a significant effect on the financial position of the Company.
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FULL LIST with surname, forenames, occupation, place of residence (address, number, postcode and locality) and position in the company
Leyden Colin
Kyle Crescent, Dunfermline 33, KY11 8G Fife, United Kingdom
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Beerts & Co Accountants Civil partnership in the form of a limited
liability company 0451.722.268
Koninklijkelaan 1A, 2600 Berchem (Antwerp), Belgium

Membership
number
2211004N94

Nature of the
assignment
(A, B, C and/or
D)
B

Position: External accountant
Represented by:
1. Beerts Bert

76672N59

Koninklijkelaan 1A , 2600 Berchem (Antwerp), Belgium

* Delete where not applicable.
** Optional.
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Nr.

VKT 3.1

0543.401.225

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

BALANCE SHEET AFTER ALLOCATION OF
PROFITS

Note

ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets..................................................

21/28
6.1.1

21

6.1.2

22/27

Tangible fixed assets......................................................
Installations, machinery and equipment.........................
Furniture and vehicles......................................

Receivables after more than one year. ............................
Trade receivables.....................................................
Other receivables....................................................
Stocks and orders in progress.........................
Stocks ....................................................................
Orders in progress..............................................
Receivables within one year..............................
Trade receivables.....................................................
Other receivables.....................................................
Cash investments..............................................................
Liquid assets..............................................................
Accruals..................................................

TOTAL ASSETS ...........................................

1,370,925.27

1,164,153.45

1,370,925.27

23

1,098,216.43

1,315,818.58

24

65,937.02

55,106.69

26

Other tangible fixed assets.....................................

CURRENT ASSETS ........................................................

1,394,153.45

25

Leasing and similar rights....................................

Financial fixed assets.....................................................

Previous financial year

22

Land and buildings...............................................

Assets under construction and prepayments .................

Financial year

20

INCORPORATION COSTS .................................................
FIXED ASSETS ..................................................................

Codes

27
6.1.3

28

230,000.00

29/58

541,876.65

482,470.55

29
290
291
3
30/36
37
40/41

353,254.10

374,298.54

40

352,783.73

340,865.75

41

470.37

33,432.79

50/53
54/58

172,365.38

97,084.50

490/1

16,257.17

11,087.51

20/58

1,936,030.10

1,853,395.82
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VKT 3.2

0543.401.225
Note

Codes

Financial year

Previous financial year

LIABILITIES
EQUITY CAPITAL
Capital

........................................................

............................................................................

Subscribed capital ........................................................
Uncalled capital 4..........................................

10/15

1,627,694.76

1,478,716.85

10

2,100,000.00

2,100,000.00

100

Issue premiums ..................................................................

11

Revaluation surpluses .........................................

12

Reserves ..........................................................................

13

Statutory reserve.........................................................

130

Unavailable reserves ..............................................

131

For own shares ..............................................

1310

Other ..................................................................

1311

Tax-free reserves .................................................

132

Available reserves ..................................................

133

Profit (loss) carried forward ................................. (+)/(-)

14

Capital subsidies ............................................................

15

Advances to partners on the distribution of the net
assets 5 ......................................................................

19

PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED PAYMENTS ..

16

Provisions for risks and costs...........................

160/5

Pensions and similar obligations
....................
Fiscal charges ...............................................................

160

Major repairs and maintenance....................

162

Environmental obligations......................................................

163

Other risks and costs............................................

164/5

Deferred taxes ...................................................

4 Amount to be deducted from the subscribed capital.
5 Amount to be deducted from the components of equity capital.

2,100,000.00

2,100,000.00

101

-472,305.24

-621,283.15

161

168
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VKT 3.2

0543.401.225
Note

DEBTS

...................................................................
....................................
Debts at more than one year

Codes
17/49

6.3

Financial debts....................................................

172/3
174/0

Trading debts ........................................................

175

Advance payments received on orders...............

176

374,678.97

308,129.90

374,678.97

178/9

Other debts .........................................................
6.3

42/48

Debts at more than one year that become due within
the year......................................................................

42

Financial debts.....................................................

43

Credit institutions ..................................................

430/8

Other loans ....................................................

439
44

Suppliers ..........................................................

440/4

Bills of exchange to be paid ...................................

441

Advance payments received on orders..............

46

Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social
charges..........................................................

45

Taxes ............................................................

450/3

Remuneration and social charges ...........................

454/9

Other debts .........................................................

308,335.34

170/4

Other loans ...................................................

Trading debts ..........................................................

Previous financial year

17

Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar
debts..................................................................

Debts due in one year or less..................................

Financial year

249,168.03
249,168.03

58,961.87
58,961.87

319,894.03
319,894.03

54,784.94
54,784.94

47/48

Accruals .................................................

492/3

205.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES ..............................................

10/49

1,936,030.10

1,853,395.82
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Nr.

VKT 4

0543.401.225

PROFIT-AND-LOSS ACCOUNT
Note

Codes

Financial year

Previous financial year

Operating revenue and company expenses
Gross margin ........................................................(+)/(-)

9900

Of which: non-recurrent operating revenue..........

76A

Turnover* ..................................................................
Goods for resale, raw materials and additives,
services and miscellaneous goods*
...............................................

70

2,385,351.22

1,856,589.77

60/61

1,498,032.04

1,454,848.72

Remuneration, social charges and pensions ......... (+)/(-)

6.4

Depreciation and writedowns on incorporation costs,
intangible and tangible fixed
assets...................................................................
Value reductions on stocks, orders in progress and on
trading receivables:
additions
(reversals) ............................................................ (+)/(-)

62

538,105.42

509,766.08

630

267,166.35

328,295.57

7,228.47

9,697.22

635/8
640/8
649

Non-recurrent operating costs...................................

66A

Operating profit (Operating loss) ............................. (+)/(-)

9901
6.4

75/76B
75

Recurrent financial revenue.................................

-438,478.22

436.57

3,045.64

436.57

3,045.64

76B

Non-recurrent financial costs...........................
6.4

65/66B

Recurrent financial costs ..........................................

65

Non-recurrent financial costs....................................

66B

Profit (Loss) for the financial year before tax ........ (+)/(-)

9903

Withdrawal to deferred.....................

780

Transfer to deferred taxes................

680

Tax on the result ..................................................... (+)/(-)

67/77

Profit (Loss) for the financial year .......................... (+)/(-)

9904

Withdrawal to the tax-free reserves.....................

789

Transfer to tax-free reserves ................

689

Profit (loss) for the financial year to be allocated .... (+)/(-)

9905

* Optional.

153,379.06

753

Of which: capital and interest subsidies ...................

Financial costs...............................................................

409,280.65

631/4

Provisions for risks and costs: additions (expenditure
and reversals) ....................................................... (+)/(-)
Other operating costs....................................................
Operating costs activated as restructuring charges…..(-)

Financial revenue .....................................................

965,879.30

4,837.72
4,837.72

148,977.91

25,539,.55
25,539.55

-460,972.13

325.03
148,977.91

-461,297.16

148,977.91

-461,297.16
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VKT 5

0543.401.225

PROCESSING OF THE RESULT
Codes Financial year
Profit (loss) to be allocated .......................................................... (+)/(-)

9906

Profit (loss) of the financial year to be allocated .......................... (+)/(-)

(9905)

Profit (loss) carried forward from the previous financial year ........(+)/(-)

14P

Withdrawal to equity capital .....................................................

791/2

Addition to equity capital......................................................

691/2

to the capital and to the issue premiums............................................

691

to the statutory reserve ......................................................................

6920

to the other reserves ........................................................................

6921

Profit (loss) to be transferred ........................................................(+)/(-)

(14)

Contribution from the partners in the loss

794

......................................

Profit to be paid out ......................................................................................

-472.305,24

Previous financial year
-1.903.283,15

148.977,91

-461.297,16

-621.283,15

-1.441.985,99
1.282.000,00

-472.305,24

-621.283,15

694/7

Payment of the capital ...................................................................

694

Directors or business managers ..................................................................

695

Employees ...........................................................................................

696

Other entitled parties .........................................................................

697
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VKT 6.1.1

0543.401.225

NOTES
STATUS OF THE FIXED ASSETS
Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year .................................

8059P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Purchases, including the fixed assets produced.......

8029

Transfers and retirements .............................................

8039

Transfers from one heading to another.............................(+)/(-)

8049

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.................................

8059

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year.

8129P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded ...............................................................................................

8079

Withdrawn ......................................................................................

8089

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8099

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements.........................

8109

Transfers from one heading to another ........................................ (+)/(-)

8119

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year.

8129

NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR .....................

(21)
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0543.401.225

Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8199P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2,434,732.84

Changes during the financial year
Purchases, including the fixed assets produced.......

8169

Transfers and retirements .............................................

8179

Transfers from one heading to another……..................................(+)/(-)

60,394.53

8189

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8199

Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8259P

2,495,127.37
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded .................................................................................................

8219

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8229

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements.........................

8239

Transfers from one heading to another..................................(+)/(-)

8249

Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8259

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year.....

8329P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

1,063,807.57

Changes during the financial year
Recorded ...............................................................................................

8279

Withdrawn ......................................................................................

8289

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8299

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements.........................

8309

Transferred from one heading to another.................................(+)/(-)
Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year....

267,166,.35

8319
8329

NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR........................ (22/27)

1,330,973.92
1,164,153.45

10/29
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VKT 6.1.3

0543.401.225

Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8395P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Purchases .......................................................................................

8365

Transfers and retirements .................................................................

8375

Transfers from one heading to another................................(+)/(-)

8385

Other changes ...............................................................................(+)/(-)

8386

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................
Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................
Changes during the financial year
Recorded .................................................................................................
Acquired from third parties..........................................................................
Withdrawn.................................................................................................
Transfers from one heading to another....................................(+)/(-)
Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................
Reductions in value at the end of the financial year ..................................
Changes during the financial year
Recorded...................................................................................................
Withdrawn.........................................................................................
Acquired from third parties.............................................................................
Withdrawn after transfers and retirements............................
Transfers from one heading to another ........................................... (+)/(-)
Reductions in value at the end of the financial year

..................

Uncalled amounts at the end of the financial year .........................
Changes during the financial year....................................................(+)/(-)
Uncalled amounts at the end of the financial year .........................
NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR .......................

8395
8455P

230.000,00

230.000,00
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

8415
8425
8435
8445
8455
8525P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

8475
8485
8495
8505
8515
8525
8555P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

8545
8555
(28)

230.000,00
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VKT 6.2

0543.401.225

STATUS OF THE CAPITAL

Codes

Financial year

Own shares
Retained by the company itself
Capital amount

..................................................................................................................................

Number of shares ..................................................................................................................................

8721
8722

Retained by its subsidiaries
..................................................................................................................................

8731

Number of shares..................................................................................................................................

Capital amount

8732
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VKT 6.3

0543.401.225

STATUS OF DEBTS
Codes

Financial year

BREAKDOWN OF DEBTS WITH AN ORIGINAL TERMS GREATER THAN ONE YEAR, BY REMAINING
TERM
Total debts at more than one year that fall due within the year

............................................

(42)

Total debts with a remaining terms of more than one year, but
5 years at most........................................................................................................................................

8912

Total debts with a remaining term of more than 5 years.................................................

8913

GUARANTEED DEBTS (included in items 17 and 42/48 of the assets)
Debts guaranteed by Belgian government institutions
Financial debts ................................................................................................................................

8921

Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar debts ........................................................

891

Other loans ...............................................................................................................................

901

Trading debts ....................................................................................................................................

8981

Suppliers ......................................................................................................................................

8991

Bills of exchange payable .............................................................................................................................
9001
Advance payments received on orders .........................................................................................

9011

Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social charges.................................................................

9021

Other debts ..................................................................................................................................

9051

Total debts guaranteed by Belgian government institutions ....................................
Debts guaranteed by business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged on the
company’s assets
Financial debts ................................................................................................................................
Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar debts ........................................................
Other loans ...............................................................................................................................
Trading debts ....................................................................................................................................
Suppliers ......................................................................................................................................

9061

8922
892
902
8982
8992

9002
Bills of exchange payable .............................................................................................................................
9012
Advance payments received on orders .........................................................................................
9022
Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social charges.............................................
9032
Taxes ......................................................................................................................................
9042
Remuneration and social charges ........................................................................................................
9052
Other debts ...................................................................................................................................
Total debts guaranteed by business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged on the company’s
9062
assets....................................................................................................
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VKT 6.3

0543.401.225

RESULTS
STAFF AND STAFFING COSTS

Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

Employees for whom the company has submitted a
DIMONA declaration or who are entered in the general
staff register
Average headcount calculated in full-time equivalents
................................................................................

9087

6,4

6,6

REVENUE AND COSTS OF EXCEPTIONAL SCOPE OR
EXCEPTIONAL EXTENT OF PREVENTION
Non-recurrent revenue ...........................................................
Non-recurrent operating revenue .............................................
Non-recurrent financial revenue ........................................
Non-recurrent costs .....................................................................
Non-recurrent operating costs ......................................................
Non-recurrent financial costs .................................................

76
(76A)
(76B)
66
(66A)
(66B)

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Activated interest.................................................................

6503
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0543.401.225

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Codes
SURETIES LODGED OR IRREVOCABLY PLEDGED BY THE COMPANY TO GUARANTEE THE DEBTS
OR OBLIGATIONS OF THIRD PARTIES..................

Financial year

9149

Of which
Trading securities in circulation endorsed by the company..............................................................

9150

BUSINESS SURETIES
Business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged by the company on its own assets to
guarantee the company’s debts and obligations
Mortgages
Book value of the encumbered assets ................................................................................................
Amount subscribed ...................................................................................................................
Pledge on goodwill – Amount subscribed .............................................................................
Pledge on other assets – Book value of the assets pledged ........................................................
Sureties on assets yet to be acquired by the company – Amount of the assets
in question .........................................................................................................................................................

9161
9171
9181
9191
9201

Business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged by the company on its own assets to
guarantee the debts and obligations of third parties
Mortgages
Book value of the encumbered assets ................................................................................................

9162

Amount subscribed ...................................................................................................................

9172

Pledge on goodwill – Amount subscribed .............................................................................

9182

Pledge on other assets – Book value of the assets pledged ........................................................

9192

Sureties on assets yet to be acquired by the company – Amount of the assets

9202

in question

Financial year
AMOUNT, NATURE AND FORM OF MAJOR DISPUTES PENDING AND OTHER IMPORTANT
OBLIGATIONS

SCHEME REGARDING THE SUPPLEMENTARY RETIREMENT OR SURVIVOR’S PENSION ON BEHALF OF STAFF OR
MANAGEMENT
Brief description
The company has pension plans of the fixed contribution type, which are financed through the group insurance plans. These plans are subject
to a minimum return guarantee by the employer, as defined by the Act of 28th April 2003, amended by the Act of 18th December 2015. As of
31st December 2018, the application of the minimum return guarantee had not resulted in a shortfall of the vested obligations in relation to the
reserves built up for these plans, based on an analysis of the difference between the statutory minimum return and the actual return
guaranteed by the insurance companies. As a result, no provision has been set aside in the annual accounts at 31st December 2018.
Measures taken to cover the associated costs

Code

Financial year

PENSIONS BORNE BY THE COMPANY ITSELF
Estimated amount of the obligations arising from work already carried out ...............................

9220

Base and manner in which this amount is calculated
15/29
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0543.401.225

VKT 6.5

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Financial year
NATURE AND BUSINESS PURPOSE OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET SCHEMES
Provided the risks or benefits associated with these schemes are of some significance and
insofar as the disclosure of such risks or benefits is necessary for assessing the company’s
financial position

Financial year
OTHER RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS IN THE BALANCE SHEET (including those for which
figures cannot be given)

16/29

Nr.

VKT 6.6

0543.401.225

RELATIONS WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, DIRECTORS,
BUSINESS MANAGERS AND AUDITOR(S)
Codes

Financial year

AFFILIATED OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Guarantees granted in their favour .....................................................................................................

9294

Other significant obligations entered into in their favour..........................................................

9295

DIRECTORS AND BUSINESS MANAGERS, NATURAL PERSONS OR LEGAL ENTITIES WHO/WHICH
CONTROL THE COMPANY DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY WITHOUT BEING AFFILIATED COMPANIES, OR
OTHER COMPANIES THAT ARE CONTROLLED DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY BY THESE PERSONS OR
ENTITIES
Outstanding claims on these persons or entities .................................................................................................9500
Main conditions regarding the claims, interest rate, term, any amounts repaid or written
off or any amounts waived
Guarantees granted in their favour......................................................................................................

9501

Other significant obligations entered into in their favour .............................................................

9502

Financial year
THE AUDITOR(S) AND PERSONS WITH WHICH HE/SHE/IT IS ASSOCIATED
The auditor’s fee for the audit is

7,765.56

Financial year
TRANSACTIONS OUTSIDE NORMAL MARKET CONDITIONS ENTERED INTO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
With persons who have a share in the company
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01

meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th August

0.01

2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with associated

0.01

parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be included in the VKT

0.01

6.6 statement.

0.01

With enterprises in which the company itself has a holding
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01

meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th August

0.01

2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with associated

0.01

parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be included in the VKT

0.01

6.6 statement.

0.01

With members of the company’s managerial, supervisory or governance bodies
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01

meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th August

0.01
17/29
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VKT 6.6

RELATIONS WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, DIRECTORS,
BUSINESS MANAGERS AND AUDITOR(S)
Financial year
TRANSACTIONS OUTSIDE NORMAL MARKET CONDITIONS ENTERED INTO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
With members of the company’s managerial, supervisory or governance bodies
Nature of the transaction
August 2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with

0.01

associated parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be

0.01

included in the VKT 6.6 statement.

0.01
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0543.401.225

VKT 6.7

STATEMENT REGARDING THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
INFORMATION THAT MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY IF IT IS A SUBSIDIARY OR JOINT SUBSIDIARY
Name, full address of the registered office and, if it is a company incorporated under Belgian law, the company number of the
parent company(ies) and an indication as to whether these parent company(ies) draw up and publish consolidated annual
accounts that include its/their consolidated annual accounts*:
Relyon Nutec Holding A/S
Kalvebod Brygge 45
1780 Copenhagen, Denmark
The parent company draws up and publishes consolidated annual accounts for the main part.
If the parent company(ies) is/are incorporated under foreign law, state the location where these consolidated annual accounts
are available*:
Relyon Nutec Holding A/S
Kalvebod Brygge 45
1780 Copenhagen, Denmark

* If the company’s annual accounts are consolidated on various levels, this information will be provided for the smallest group of companies
of which the company is a subsidiary and for which consolidated annual accounts are drawn up and published.
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VKT 6.8

0543.401.225

1. Principle
The valuation rules are established in accordance with the provisions of the Royal Decree of 30th January 2001 to implement the
Companies’ Code.
For the purpose of providing a true picture, the following exceptional cases differ from the valuation rules set out by this
Decree:

These differences are justified as follows:

These differences affect the company’s assets, financial position and pre-tax result as follows:

If the valuation rules have been (changed) (not changed) with regard to the previous financial year in terms of wording or
application, then any change relates to:
and has a

(positive) (negative)

effect on the result for the financial year before tax in the amount of

EUR.

If the profit-and-loss account (is) (is not) affected significantly by revenues and costs that need to be allocated to a previous financial year, then
this will relate to:
The figures for the financial year are not comparable with the figures for the previous financial year for the following reason:

(In order for them to be comparable, the figures for the previous financial year have been adjusted on the following points)
(In order for the annual accounts of both years to be compared, the following elements need to be taken into account):
In the absence of objective assessment criteria, the valuation of foreseeable risks, possible losses and depreciations dealt with
below unavoidably becomes random:
Other information required to enable the annual accounts to present a true picture of the company’s assets, financial position and result:

2. Fixed assets
Incorporation costs:
The incorporation costs are charged immediately, except for the following costs, which are capitalised:

Restructuring costs:
If the restructuring costs were (capitalised) (not capitalised) during the course of the financial year, this is justified as follows:
Intangible fixed assets:
The amount of intangible fixed assets includes costs of
EUR for research and development. The writedown term for these
costs and for goodwill is (more) (not more) than 5 years; if it is more than 5 years, this term is justified as follows:
Tangible fixed assets:
If during the course of the financial year, tangible
fixed assets (were) (were not) revalued, this is
justified as follows:
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0543.401.225

VALUATION RULES
Writedowns recorded during the financial year:

Assets

Method
L (linear)
D (degressive)
A (other)

Base
NG (not
revalued)
G (revalued)

Writedown percentages
Principal
Min. - Max.

Principal Min. Max.

1. Incorporation costs
2. Intangible fixed assets
intangible fixed assets
3. Industrial, administrative or
commercial buildings*
Buildings

L

NG

10.00 – 20.00

10.00 – 20.00

L

NG

3.00 – 4.00

3.00 – 4.00

L
L
L

NG
NG
NG

10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33

10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33

L

NG

20.00 – 20.00

20.00 – 20.00

L

NG

10.00 – 33.33

10.00 – 33.33

4. Installations, machinery and equipment*
Installations
Machinery
Equipment
5. Vehicles*
Vehicles
6. Office equipment and furniture*
Furniture
7. Other tangible fixed assets

* Including assets held in leasing; where applicable, these are stated on a separate line

Surplus of applied, tax-deductible, accelerated depreciation compared with economically justified depreciation:
- amount for the financial year:

EUR.

- combined amount for the fixed assets acquired from the financial year beginning after 31st December 1983:

EUR.

Financial fixed assets:
If during the course of the financial year holdings
(were) (were not) revalued, this revaluation is
justified as follows
3. Current assets
Stocks:
Stocks are valued at the acquisition value calculated using the (state)

method of average weighted prices,

Fifo, Lifo, individualisation of the price of each component or at the lower market value:
1. Raw materials and additives:

2. Goods in progress - finished product:

3. Trading goods:

4. Immovable property intended for sale:

Products:
- The manufacturing price of the products
(includes)

(does not include) indirect production costs.

- The manufacturing price of the products for which production covers more than one year,
(includes) (does not include) financial costs associated with the capital borrowed to
financial their production.
At the end of the financial year, the market value of total stocks was approximately

% more than their book value.

(This information is only required if the difference is significant).
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VALUATION RULES
Orders in progress:
Orders in progress are valued

(at their manufacturing price)

(at their manufacturing price, plus part of the profit, depending on the progress of the works).
4. Liabilities
Debts:
If the liabilities (include) (do not include) long-term debts, at zero interest rate or an abnormally low interest rate, then (a) (no) discount
is applied to these debts that is capitalised.
Foreign currency:
The conversion into EUR of assets, debts and commitments in foreign currency takes place on the following basis:
Assets and commitments in place at the end of the financial year, expressed in foreign currency, which are entered at various exchange
rates, are valued at the indicative rates published by the European Central Bank on the date the financial year ends. However, the
company may use an average of the rates for the last month of the financial year if this creates a more dependable picture.
The indicative rate used for each currency is the cash rate, even for assets and commitments that only come due later. The
revaluation at the indicative rate applies to all monetary items, except those that are the subject of specific hedging.
The results from the conversion of foreign currency are processed as follows in the annual accounts:
If the accruals for a specific currency:
a) only contain negative conversion results that correspond with latent losses, these are charged;
b) only contain positive conversion results that correspond with latent gains, these are included in the result;
c) contain negative and positive conversion results, these are dealt with as follows:
i) if the overall end result is negative, this is charged;
ii) if the overall end result is positive, this is included in the result.
If the conversion result is positive for some currencies and negative for others, no offsetting is applied. All conversion differences are
included in the result.
Leasing agreements:
For non-activated user rights from leasing agreements (article 102, §1 of the Royal Decree of 30th January 2001 implementing the Companies’
Code), payments and rental amounts for leasing immovable property during the financial year was: EUR.
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OTHER INFORMATION TO BE STATED IN THE NOTES
The Financial Fixed Assets relate to a loan made to an associated company, Falck Safety Holding A/S.
A general loan agreement has been reached between Relyon Nutec Belgium BVBA and Relyon Nutec Holding A/S for a maximum
amount of credit of €1,000,000.00. The interest rate is calculated at the Euribor 3-month rate plus 1%.
The loan has been granted for an indefinite period of time, with an ultimate repayment date of 31/12/2025. The borrower can make early
repayments.
The annual accounts for the past financial year show a loss carried forward. As a consequence, article 96, §1, 6° of the
Companies’ Code applies and maintenance of the valuation rules must be justified in the assumption of continuity.
Management is of the opinion that the continuity of the Company is not in danger and hence has decided to retain the
valuation rules on the assumption of continuity. This is for the following reasons:
- The losses were caused by exceptional circumstances, namely the fact that the Company is still in the start-up phase.
The Company benefits from the support of a group with powerful capital backing to which it belongs.
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OTHER DOCUMENTS TO BE LODGED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES’ CODE
INFORMATION ABOUT SHAREHOLDINGS
SHAREHOLDINGS AND CORPORATE RIGHTS IN OTHER COMPANIES
Below is a list of companies in which the company has a shareholding (stated in item 28 of the assets), as well as the other
companies in which the company owns corporate rights (stated in items 28 and 50/53 of the assets) up to a minimum of 10% of the
issued capital.
Corporate rights held
NAME, full address of the
REGISTERED OFFICE and, if it
is a company incorporated
under Belgian law,
the COMPANY NUMBER

Details taken from the most recent annual accounts
available

direct
Nature
Number

%

subsi
diari Annual
Muntes
account code
s at
%

Equity capital

Net result
(+) or (-)
(in units)
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LIST OF COMPANIES FOR WHICH THE COMPANY HAS UNLIMITED LIABILITY IN ITS CAPACITY AS UNLIMITED LIABLE
PARTNER OR MEMBER
The annual accounts of each of the companies for which the company has unlimited liability will be attached to the annual accounts
submitted and published with them, unless there is a reason stated in the second column as to why this is not the case; this
statement is made by reference to the applicable code (A, B or D) which is defined below.
The annual accounts of the company stated:
A. are published by this company through lodgement with the National Bank of Belgium;
B. are actually published by this company in another member state of the European Union, in accordance with article 3 of
directive 2009/101/EC;
D. relate to a partnership, a temporary trading company or a silent trading company.
NAME, full address of the REGISTERED OFFICE, LEGAL FORM and, if it is a company incorporated under Belgian law,
the COMPANY NUMBER

Any code
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THE COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE ON THE DATE OF THE YEAR-END
as seen from the notifications received by the company in accordance with the Companies’ Code, article 631 §2 last paragraph
and article 632 §2 last paragraph; the Act of 2nd May 2007 relative to the disclosure of major shareholdings, article 14 paragraph
four; and the Royal Decree of 21st August 2008 setting out more detailed rules regarding certain multilateral trading facilities,
article 5.
NAME of the persons who own corporate rights in the company, stating the
ADDRESS (of the registered office if it is a legal entity) and the COMPANY
NUMBER if it is a company under Belgian law

Corporate rights held
Number of voting rights
Nature

Not linked
to securities

Linked to
securities

%

Relyon Nutec Holding B.V.
Beerweg 101
3199LM Rotterdam
Netherlands
Registered shares

3.381.999

0

99.99

Registered shares

1

0

0.01

Relyon Nutec Holding A/S BO
Kalvebod Brygge 45
1780 Copenhagen
Denmark
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OTHER INFORMATION TO PROVIDE PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 100 OF THE COMPANIES’ CODE
Codes

Financial year

DEBTS RELATED TO TAXES, REMUNERATION AND SOCIAL CHARGES
(items 45 and 178/9 of the liabilities)
Tax debts due ...................................................................................................................

9072

Debts owed to the National Social Security Office.........................................

9076

AMOUNT OF THE CAPITAL AND INTEREST SUBSIDIES ALLOCATED OR CHARGED BY THE
GOVERNMENT OR BY GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS............................................................................

9078

27/29

Nr.

VKT 12

0543.401.225

SOCIAL BALANCE SHEET
Numbers of the joint representation committees acting for the company: 200

EMPLOYEES FOR WHOM THE COMPANY HAS LODGED A DIMONA DECLARATION OR WHO ARE ENTERED
IN THE GENERAL STAFF REGISTER
2. Part-time

1. Full-time

3. Total (T) or total in
Full-Time
Equivalents (FTE)

Codes
During the financial year and the
previous financial year

(financial year)

(financial year)

(financial year)

3P. Total (T) or total in
Full-Time
Equivalents (FTE)
(previous financial
year)

Average number of employees............

100

6.3

0.2

6.4 (FTE)

6.6 (FTE)

Actual number of hours worked

101

11,112

228

11,340 (T)

10,888 (T)

Staffing costs ...............................

102

527,286.37

10,819.05

538,105.42 (T)

509,766.08 (T)

Codes
On the closing date of the financial year
Number of employees ............................................................
According to the nature of the employment agreement
Open-ended agreement ..........................
Fixed-term

agreement

.............................

Agreement for a clearly described assignment ........
Replacement agreement ..............................................
According to gender and level of education
Men ..........................................................................
primary education ...........................................................
secondary education ...................................................
higher, non-university education ................................
university education .................................................
Women ..........................................................................
primary education ...........................................................
secondary education ...................................................
higher, non-university education ................................
university education .................................................
According to category of occupation
Management staff ...............................................................
White-collar employees ......................................................
Blue-collar workers .............................................................
Other...............................................................................

1. Full-time

2. Part-time

3. Total in Full-Time
Equivalents

105

7

7.0

110

7

7.0

3

3.0

1201

1

1.0

1202

1

1.0

1203

1

1.0

121

4

4.0

4

4.0

7

7.0

111
112
113

120
1200

1210
1211
1212
1213

130
134
132
133
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TABLE OF STAFF TURNOVER DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Codes

1. Full-time

2. Part-time

3. Total in Full-Time
Equivalents

ARRIVALS
Number of employees for whom the company lodged a
DIMONA declaration during the financial year or who were
entered in the general staff register during the financial
year.................................................................

205

1

1,0

DEPARTURES
Number of employees with a date indicated in the DIMONA
declaration or a date entered in the general staff register on
which their agreement came to an end during the financial
year........................................................

305

1

0,8

INFORMATION ABOUT THE TRAINING PROVIDED FOR EMPLOYEES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total of the formal continuing vocational training initiatives paid for
by the employer

Codes

Codes

Men

Women

Number of employees involved....................................................................... 5801

3

5811

3

Number of training hours attended....................................................................5802

132

5812

16

Net cost for the company ................................................................

6,034.65

5813

2,526.43

of which gross costs associated directly with the training ............ 58031

5803

5,933.99

58131

2,450.61

of which amounts paid and payments made to collective funds ....... 58032

100.66

58132

75.82

58033

58133

5821

5831

5822
Number of training hours attended....................................................................
5823
Net cost for the company................................................................

5832

of which allowances received (deducted) ..........................

Total of the less formal and informal continuing vocational
training initiatives paid for by the employer
Number of employees involved.......................................................................

Total of the initial vocational training initiatives paid for by the
employer

5833

5841

5851

Number of employees involved....................................................................... 5842

5852

Number of training hours attended....................................................................5843

5853

Net cost for the company................................................................

29/29

RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA
Report from the auditor to the general meeting about the financial year ending on
31st December 2018 – Annual accounts

Report from the auditor to the general meeting of RelyOn
Nutec Belgium BVBA about the financial year ending on 31st
December 2018 – Annual accounts
We hereby present our auditor’s report in the context of the statutory audit of the
annual financial statements of RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA (the “company”). It
contains our report about the annual accounts, as well as the other statutory and
regulatory requirements. This report constitutes a whole and is indivisible.
We were appointed in our capacity of auditors by the general meeting held on 2nd
June 2017, pursuant to the proposal made by the administrative body. Our mandate
expires on the date of the general meeting that deliberates on the annual financial
statements ending on 31st December 2019. We have conducted the statutory audit
of the annual accounts of RelyOn Nutec Belgium BVBA for five successive financial
years.
Report about the annual accounts
Opinion without reservation
We have conducted the statutory audit of the company’s annual accounts, which
include the balance sheet as of 31st December 2018, as well as the profit-and-loss
account for the financial year ending on that date and the notes, with a balance
sheet total of 1 936 (000) EUR and for which the profit-and-loss account ends with a
profit for the financial year of 149 (000) EUR.
In our opinion, the annual financial statements provide a faithful picture of the
assets and financial position of the company on 31st December 2018, as well as of its
results across the financial year ending on that date, in accordance with the
accounting reference system that applies in Belgium.
Basis for the opinion without reservation
We conducted our audit in line with the international standards on auditing (ISAs), as
they apply in Belgium. We also applied the international audit standards applied by
IAASB, which were in effect on the closing date and which have not yet been
approved on a national level. Our responsibilities under these standards are set out
in more detail in the section headed “Responsibilities of the auditor for auditing the
annual accounts” of our report. We have complied with all ethical requirements that
are relevant for auditing annual accounts in Belgium, including those that relate to
impartiality.
We received the clarifications and information required for our audit from the
administrative body and from the company’s officially appointed representatives.
We are of the opinion that the audit information received by us is sufficient and
appropriate as the basis for our assessment and opinion.

Responsibilities of the administrative body
The administrative body is responsible for drawing up the annual accounts, which
provide a faithful picture in accordance with the accounting reference system that
applies in Belgium, as well as for the internal control that the governing body deems
necessary for drawing up the annual accounts that contain no discrepancies of
material importance that are the result of fraud or errors.
In drawing up the annual accounts, the governing body is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue trading, as well as the explanation, if applicable, of
matters that relate to continuity and the use of the assumption of continuity, except
if the governing body has the intention to liquidate the company or to terminate
operating activities or if it does not have any realistic alternative other than to do so.
Responsibilities of the auditor for auditing the annual accounts
Our objective is to obtain a reasonable level of certainty regarding the question of
whether the annual accounts as a whole contain any discrepancies of material
importance that are the result of fraud or errors and the issue of an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. A reasonable level of certainty is a high level of certainty,
although it is no guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always uncover discrepancies of material importance should such discrepancies
exist. Discrepancies may occur as the result of fraud or errors and are considered to
be of material importance if it can be reasonably expected that they, individually or
collectively, may influence economic decisions taken by users based on the annual
accounts.
In conducting our audit, we comply with the statutory, regulatory and standardsbased framework that applies to the auditing of annual accounts in Belgium.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, we apply professional
assessments and opinions and maintain a professional and critical attitude
throughout the audit. We also carried out the following tasks:
•

•

the identification and assessment of the risks that the annual accounts
contain discrepancies of material importance that are the result of fraud or
errors, the definition and implementation of auditing work that anticipates
these risks, and the process of obtaining audit information that is sufficient
and appropriate to be used for the basis of our assessment and opinion. The
risk of not detecting discrepancies of material importance is greater if a
discrepancy is the result of fraud or is the result of errors. This is because in
the event of fraud, it may be a question of conspiracy, falsehood in the
records, the deliberate omission of recording transactions, the deliberate
incorrect presentation of business or the breach of internal controls;
obtaining an insight into the internal controls that are relevant for the audit,
for the purpose of putting audit works in place that are suitable in the given

•
•

•

circumstances, but which are not focused on providing an assessment of the
effectiveness of the internal control and management of the company;
evaluating the suitability of the bases used for financial reporting and
assessing the reasonable nature of the estimated made by the administrative
body and the explanations relating thereto;
reaching the conclusion that the assumption of continuity used by the
administrative body is acceptable, and concluding, based on the audit
information obtained, whether there is any uncertainty of material
importance with regard to the events or circumstances that might give rise to
significant doubt about the company’s ability to maintain its continuity. If we
conclude that there is any uncertainty of material importance, we are
required to draw attention to this in our auditor’s report in the relevant
notes in the annual accounts or, if these notes and explanations are
inadequate, to adjust our opinion accordingly. Our conclusions are based on
the audit information obtained up until the date of our auditor’s report.
However, events or circumstances in the future may result in the company
being unable to maintain its continuity;
evaluating the general presentation, structure and contents of the annual
accounts, as well as the question of whether the annual accounts reflect the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that results in a faithful
picture being given.

We communicate with the persons tasked with governance about the planned scope
and timing of the audit and about any major audit findings, including any significant
shortcomings in internal control processes that we identify during our audit.
Other statutory and regulatory requirements
Responsibilities of the administrative body
The administrative body is responsible for drawing up the annual report and its
contents. It is also responsible for complying with the statutory and administrative
law requirements that apply to keeping accounts, as well as complying with the
Companies’ Code and the company’s articles of association.
Responsibilities of the auditor
In the context of our mandate and in accordance with the additional Belgian
standard (reviewed in 2018) included in the international standards of auditing (ISAs)
that apply, it is our responsibility, taking account of all the insights of material
importance, to verify the annual report and compliance of the obligations stated in
the Companies’ Code and the articles of association, as well as to issue a report
about these matters.
Aspects regarding the annual report

After carrying out specific work on the annual report, we are of the opinion that this
annual report corresponds with the annual report for the same financial year and
that it has been drawn up in accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Companies’
Code.
In the context of our audit of the annual financial statements, we are also
responsible for considering, in particular based on the knowledge obtained during
the audit, whether the annual report contains any discrepancies of material
importance, either information that is stated incorrectly or that is misleading in any
other way. In the light of the work carried out by us, we do not have any
discrepancies of material importance to report.
Statement regarding the company balance sheet
The company balance sheet to the lodged with the National Bank of Belgium in
accordance with article 100, § 1, 6º/2 of the Companies’ Code, contains both in
terms of form and content all of the information prescribed by the Companies’ Code.
It does not contain any inconsistencies of material importance with regard to the
information obtained by us as part of our assignment.
Statement regarding impartiality
Our company auditing office and our network have not conducted any assignments
that are incompatible with the statutory audit of the annual accounts and during the
course of our mandate, our company auditing office remained impartial vis-à-vis the
company.
Other statements
•
•
•

Without prejudice to formal aspects of subsidiary importance, the accounting
was conducted in accordance with the statutory and administrative law
requirements that apply in Belgium.
The processing of the results that will be presented to the annual meeting
corresponds with legal and statutory provisions.
We have no transactions or decisions to report to you that have been
conducted or made in breach of the articles of association of Companies’
Code, except for the non-compliance of the statutory periods set out in
article 283 of the Companies’ Code in relation to making the necessary legal
documents available to the partners.

Antwerp, 24th May 2019
(signature)
Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren CVBA
Represented by Jurgen Kesselaers
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND OTHER STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO
DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO BE LODGED BY THE COMPANIES’ CODE
IDENTIFICATION DETAILS
NAME: Falck Safety Services Belgium
Legal form: BVBA
Addres Esplanadestraat
s:

Nº 1

Postcode: 8400

Ostend

Locality:

Country: Belgium
Register of Legal Entities (RLE) – Commercial Tribunal for
Internet address1:

Ghent, Ostend division

0543.401.225

Company number

24/03/2014
DATE
on which the deed of incorporation was lodged OR of the most recent document stating the date of the
publication of the deed of incorporation and the deed amending the articles of association.
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

IN EURO (to 2 decimal points) 2
2/06/2018

approved by the general meeting of
in relation to the financial year covering the period from

1/01/2017

to

31/12/2017

Previous financial year from

1/01/2016

to

31/12/2016

are / are not 3 identical to those published previously.

The amounts for the previous
financial year

Total number of pages lodged: 29
because they are not of any use:

Numbers of the sections of the standard model that have not been lodged

Signature (name
and job title)
Leyden Colin

Signature (name
and job title)

Business
Manager

1 Optional.
2 If necessary adjust the unit and currency in which the amounts are expressed.
3 Delete where not applicable.
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LIST OF DIRECTORS, BUSINESS MANAGERS AND
AUDITORS AND DECLARATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL
ASSIGNMENT FOR REVIEW OR ADJUSTMENT

LIST OF DIRECTORS, BUSINESS MANAGERS AND AUDITORS
FULL LIST with surname, forenames, occupation, place of residence (address, number, postcode and locality) and position in the company

Uggerhoj Bo
Holmbovej 34, 9900 Frederikshavn, Denmark
Position: Business Manager
Mandate: 29/09/2016- 13/03/2017
Leyden Colin
Kyle Crescent, Dunfermline 33, KY11 8G Fife, United Kingdom
Position: Business Manager
Mandate: 7/03/2014
Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren BV ovv CVBA

BV ovv BVBA

0429053863

Gateway Building - Luchthaven Nationaal 1, bus J, 1930 Zaventem, Belgium
Position: Auditors
Mandate: 2/06/2017- 2/06/2020
Represented by:
1. Kesselaers Jurgen
Lange Lozanastraat 270 , 2018 Antwerp 1, Belgium
Company Auditor

2/29

Nr.

VKT 2.2

0543.401.225

DECLARATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT FOR REVIEW OR ADJUSTMENT
The governing board hereby declares that no assignments for review or adjustment have been given to anyone not entitled thereto
pursuant to articles 34 and 37 of the Act of 22nd April 1999 relative to accountancy and tax professions.
The annual accounts
have /
auditor.

have not * been verified or adjusted by an external accountant or by a company auditor that is not the

If they have, the following must be stated: surname, forenames, occupation and place of residence of any external accountant
or company auditor and his/her membership number with his/her Institute, as well as the nature of his/her assignment:
A.
B.
C.
D.

Keeping the company’s accounts **,
Drawing up the annual accounts **,
Verifying the annual accounts and/or
Adjusting the annual accounts.

If the assignments listed under A. or B. are carried out by accredited accountants or by accredited accountants/tax specialists,
please state the following: surname, forenames, occupation and place of residence of each accredited accountant or accredited
accountant/tax specialist and his/her membership number at the Professional Institute of Accredited Accountants and Tax
Specialists, as well as the nature of his/her assignment.
Surname, forenames, occupation and place of residence

Beerts & Co Accountants Civil partnership in the form of a limited
liability company 0451.722.268
Koninklijkelaan 1A , 2600 Berchem (Antwerp), Belgium

Membership
number
2211004N94

Nature of the
assignment
(A, B, C and/or
D)
B

Position: External accountant
Represented by:
1. Beerts Bert
Koninklijkelaan 1A , 2600 Berchem (Antwerp), Belgium

* Delete where not applicable.
** Optional.
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

BALANCE SHEET AFTER ALLOCATION OF
PROFITS

Note

ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets ..................................................

21/28
6.1.1

21

6.1.2

22/27

Tangible fixed assets ......................................................
Installations, machinery and equipment ........................
Furniture and vehicles ......................................

Receivables after more than one year .............................
Trade receivables .....................................................
Other receivables ....................................................
Stocks and orders in progress .........................
Stocks ....................................................................
Orders in progress ..............................................
Receivables within one year ..............................
Trade receivables .....................................................
Other receivables .....................................................
Cash investments ..............................................................
Liquid assets ..............................................................
Accruals ..................................................

TOTAL ASSETS ...........................................

1,663,169.45

1,370,925.27

1,663,169.45

23

1,315,818.58

1,591,549.44

24

55,106.69

71,620.01

26

Other tangible fixed assets .....................................

CURRENT ASSETS ........................................................

1,370,925.27

25

Leasing and similar rights ....................................

Financial fixed assets.....................................................

Previous financial year

22

Land and buildings ...............................................

Assets under construction and prepayments ..............

Financial year

20

INCORPORATION COSTS .................................................
FIXED ASSETS ..................................................................

Codes

27
6.1.3

28
29/58

482,470.55

624,597.49

29
290
291
3
30/36
37
40/41

374,298.54

305,533.42

40

340,865.75

305,512.85

41

33,432.79

20.57

50/53
54/58

97,084.50

307,828.16

490/1

11,087.51

11,235.91

20/58

1,853,395.82

2,287,766.94
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Note

Codes

Financial year

Previous financial year

LIABILITIES
EQUITY CAPITAL
Capital

........................................................

............................................................................

Subscribed capital ........................................................
Uncalled capital 4..........................................

10/15

1,478,716.85

608,014.01

10

2,100,000.00

2,050,000.00

100

Issue premiums ..................................................................

11

Revaluation surpluses .........................................

12

Reserves ..........................................................................

13

Statutory reserve.........................................................

130

Unavailable reserves ..............................................

131

For own shares ..............................................

1310

Other ..................................................................

1311

Tax-free reserves .................................................

132

Available reserves ..................................................

133

Profit (loss) carried forward ................................(+)/(-)

14

Capital subsidies ............................................................

15

Advances to partners on the distribution of the net
assets 5 ......................................................................

19

PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED PAYMENTS ..

16

Provisions for risks and costs...........................

160/5

Pensions and similar obligations
....................
Fiscal charges ...............................................................

160

Major repairs and maintenance....................

162

Environmental obligations ............................................

163

Other risks and costs ............................................

164/5

Deferred taxes ...................................................

4 Amount to be deducted from the subscribed capital.
5 Amount to be deducted from the components of equity capital.

2,100,000.00

2,050,000.00

101

-621,283.15

-1,441,985.99

161

168
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Note
DEBTS

...................................................................

Debts at more than one year

....................................

Codes
17/49

6.3

Financial debts....................................................

Other loans ...................................................

174/0

Trading debts ........................................................

175

Advance payments received on orders ...............

176

1,679,752.93

374,678.97

1,675,548.03

178/9

Other debts .........................................................
6.3

42/48

Debts at more than one year that become due within
the year......................................................................

42

Financial debts.....................................................

43

Credit institutions ..................................................

430/8

Other loans ....................................................

439
44

Suppliers ..........................................................

440/4

Bills of exchange to be paid .....................................

441

Advance payments received on orders..............

46

Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social
charges ..........................................................

45

Taxes ............................................................

450/3

Remuneration and social charges ..........................

454/9

Other debts .........................................................

374,678.97

170/4
172/3

Trading debts ..........................................................

Previous financial year

17

Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar
debts..................................................................

Debts due in one year or less ..................................

Financial year

1,308,234.80
1,308,234.80
319,894.03
319,894.03

54,784.94

313,366.06
313,366.06

53,947.17
2,541.58

54,784.94

51,405.59

47/48

Accruals .................................................

492/3

TOTAL LIABILITIES ..............................................

10/49

4,204.90
1,853,395.82

2,287,766.94
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PROFIT-AND-LOSS ACCOUNT
Note

Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

Operating revenue and company expenses
9900

Gross margin ..........................................................(+)/(-)

409,280.65

1,222,131.97

62

509,766.08

582,458.31

630

328,295.57

341,275.00

9,697.22

4,679.88

Of which: non-recurrent operating revenue ..........

76A

Turnover* ..................................................................
Goods for resale, raw materials and additives,
services and miscellaneous goods* ......................

70

Remuneration, social charges and pensions .........(+)/(-)
Depreciation and writedowns on incorporation costs,
intangible and tangible fixed
assets ...................................................................
Value reductions on stocks, orders in progress and on
trading receivables:
additions
(reversals) ....................................................(+)/(-)

60/61
6.4

631/4

Provisions for risks and costs: additions (expenditure
and reversals) ...........................(+)/(-)
Other operating costs ....................................................
Operating costs activated as restructuring
charges ............................................................. (-)

635/8
640/8
649

Non-recurrent operating costs ...................................

66A

Operating profit (Operating loss) ...............................(+)/(-)

9901

Financial revenue.....................................................

6.4

75

Recurrent financial revenue ................................. Of

6.4

65/66B

Recurrent financial costs ..........................................

65

Non-recurrent financial costs ....................................

66B

Profit (Loss) for the financial year before tax .....(+)/(-)

9903

Withdrawal

to

780

Transfer

to

taxes

deferred

.............................

taxes

................

3,045.64

1,911.51

3,045.64

1,911.51

76B

Non-recurrent financial revenue...........................

deferred

293,718.78

753

which: capital and interest subsidies ...................

Financial costs ...............................................................

75/76B

-438,478.22

25,539.55
25,539.55

-460,972.13

58,968.09
58,968.09

236,662.20

680

Tax on the result ....................................(+)/(-)

67/77

325.03

Profit (Loss) for the financial year ..............................(+)/(-)

9904

-461,297.16

236,662.20

Withdrawal

to

Transfer

to

-461,297.16

236,662.20

the

tax-free

tax-free

reserves

.....................

789

reserves

................

689

Profit (loss) for the financial year to be allocated

9905

......(+)/(-)

* Optional.
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0543.401.225

PROCESSING OF THE RESULT
Codes
Profit (loss) to be allocated .......................................................(+)/(-)

9906

Profit (loss) of the financial year to be allocated ...........................(+)/(-)

(9905)

Profit (loss) carried forward from the previous financial year .........(+)/(-)

14P

Withdrawal to equity capital .....................................................

791/2

Addition to equity capital ......................................................

691/2

to the capital and to the issue premiums ............................................

691

to the statutory reserve ......................................................................

6920

to the other reserves ........................................................................

6921

Profit (loss) to be transferred ........................................................(+)/(-)

(14)

Contribution from the partners in the loss

794

......................................

Profit to be paid out ......................................................................................

Financial year
-1,903,283.15

Previous financial year
-1,441,985.99

-461,297.16

236,662.20

-1,441,985.99

-1,678,648.19

1,282,000.00

-621,283.15

-1,441,985.99

694/7

Payment of the capital ...................................................................

694

Directors or business managers ..................................................................

695

Employees ...........................................................................................

696

Other entitled parties .........................................................................

697

8/29

Nr.

VKT 6.1.1

0543.401.225

NOTES
STATUS OF THE FIXED ASSETS
Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year .................................

8059P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Purchases, including the fixed assets produced.......

8029

Transfers and retirements .............................................

8039

Transferred from one heading to another .............................(+)/(-)

8049

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.................................

8059

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year.

8129P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded ...............................................................................................

8079

Withdrawn ......................................................................................

8089

Acquired from third parties ..........................................................................

8099

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements .......................................

8109

Transferred from one heading to another.................................(+)/(-)

8119

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year.

8129

NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.....................

(21)
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Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8199P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

2,398,681.45

Changes during the financial year
Purchases, including the fixed assets produced.......

8169

Transfers and retirements .............................................

8179

Transferred from one heading to another……..................................(+)/(-)

8189

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8199

Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8259P

36,051.39

2,434,732.84
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded .................................................................................................

8219

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8229

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements.........................

8239

Transferred from one heading to another..................................(+)/(-)

8249

Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8259

Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year .....

8329P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

735,512.00

Changes during the financial year
Recorded ...............................................................................................

8279

Withdrawn ......................................................................................

8289

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8299

Withdrawn after transfers and retirements.........................

8309

Transferred from one heading to another.................................(+)/(-)
Depreciation and writedowns at the end of the financial year....

328,295.57

8319
8329

NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR........................ (22/27)

1,063,807.57
1,370,925.27
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Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS
Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................

8395P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Purchases .......................................................................................

8365

Transfers and retirements .................................................................

8375

Transfers from one heading to another................................(+)/(-)

8385

Other changes ...............................................................................(+)/(-)

8386

Purchase value at the end of the financial year.......................................
Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8395
8455P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded .................................................................................................

8415

Acquired from third parties..........................................................................

8425

Withdrawn.................................................................................................

8435

Transfers from one heading to another....................................(+)/(-)

8445

Gains at the end of the financial year ...................................................

8455

Reductions in value at the end of the financial year ..................................

8525P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Changes during the financial year
Recorded ...................................................................................................

8475

Withdrawn .........................................................................................

8485

Acquired from third parties ............................................................................. 8495
Withdrawn after transfers and retirements ............................

8505

Transfers from one heading to another....................................(+)/(-)

8515

Reductions in value at the end of the financial year

................

Uncalled amounts at the end of the financial year .........................
Changes during the financial year....................................................(+)/(-)

8525
8555P

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

8545

Uncalled amounts at the end of the financial year .........................

8555

NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR ....................

(28)
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STATUS OF THE CAPITAL

Codes

Financial year

Own shares
Retained by the company itself
Capital amount

..................................................................................................................................

Number of shares ..................................................................................................................................

8721
8722

Retained by its subsidiaries
Capital amount

..................................................................................................................................

Number of shares ..................................................................................................................................

8731
8732
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STATUS OF DEBTS
Codes

Financial year

BREAKDOWN OF DEBTS WITH AN ORIGINAL TERMS GREATER THAN ONE YEAR, BY REMAINING
TERM
Total debts at more than one year that fall due within the year

............................................

(42)

Total debts with a remaining terms of more than one year, but
5 years at most ........................................................................................................................................

8912

Total debts with a remaining term of more than 5 years.................................................

8913

GUARANTEED DEBTS (included in items 17 and 42/48 of the assets)
Debts guaranteed by Belgian government institutions
Financial debts ................................................................................................................................

8921

Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar debts ........................................................

891

Other loans ...............................................................................................................................

901

Trading debts ....................................................................................................................................

8981

Suppliers ......................................................................................................................................

8991

Bills of exchange payable .............................................................................................................................
9001
Advance payments received on orders .........................................................................................

9011

Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social charges.................................................................

9021

Other debts ..................................................................................................................................

9051

Total debts guaranteed by Belgian government institutions ....................................

9061

Debts guaranteed by business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged on the
company’s assets
Financial debts ................................................................................................................................

8922

Credit institutions, leasing debts and similar debts ........................................................

892

Other loans ...............................................................................................................................

902

Trading debts ....................................................................................................................................

8982

Suppliers ......................................................................................................................................

8992

9002
Bills of exchange payable .............................................................................................................................
Advance payments received on orders .........................................................................................

9012

Debts relating to taxes, remuneration and social charges.............................................

9022

Taxes ......................................................................................................................................

9032

Remuneration and social charges ........................................................................................................
Other debts ...................................................................................................................................
Total debts guaranteed by business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged on the company’s
assets....................................................................................................

9042
9052
9062
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RESULTS
Codes Financial year

Previous financial year

STAFF AND STAFFING COSTS
Employees for whom the company has submitted a
DIMONA declaration or who are entered in the general
staff register
Average headcount calculated in full-time equivalents
................................................................................

9087

6.6

7.3

REVENUE AND COSTS OF EXCEPTIONAL SCOPE OR
EXCEPTIONAL EXTENT OF PREVENTION
Non-recurrent revenue ...........................................................

76

Non-recurrent operating revenue .............................................

(76A)

Non-recurrent financial revenue ........................................

(76B)

Non-recurrent costs .....................................................................

66

Non-recurrent operating costs ......................................................

(66A)

Non-recurrent financial costs .................................................

(66B)

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Activated interest .................................................................

6503
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RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Codes
SURETIES LODGED OR IRREVOCABLY PLEDGED BY THE COMPANY TO GUARANTEE THE DEBTS
OR OBLIGATIONS OF THIRD PARTIES..................

Financial year

9149

Of which
Trading securities in circulation endorsed by the company..............................................................

9150

BUSINESS SURETIES
Business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged by the company on its own assets to
guarantee the company’s debts and obligations
Mortgages
Book value of the encumbered assets ................................................................................................

9161

Amount subscribed ...................................................................................................................

9171

Pledge on goodwill – Amount subscribed .............................................................................

9181

Pledge on other assets – Book value of the assets pledged ........................................................

9191

Sureties on assets yet to be acquired by the company – Amount of the assets
in question ......................................................................................................................................................... 9201
Business sureties lodged or irrevocably pledged by the company on its own assets to
guarantee the debts and obligations of third parties
Mortgages
Book value of the encumbered assets ................................................................................................

9162

Amount subscribed ...................................................................................................................

9172

Pledge on goodwill – Amount subscribed .............................................................................

9182

Pledge on other assets – Book value of the assets pledged ........................................................

9192

Sureties on assets yet to be acquired by the company – Amount of the assets
in question

9202

Financial year
AMOUNT, NATURE AND FORM OF MAJOR DISPUTES PENDING AND OTHER IMPORTANT
OBLIGATIONS

SCHEME REGARDING THE SUPPLEMENTARY RETIREMENT OR SURVIVOR’S PENSION ON BEHALF OF STAFF OR
MANAGEMENT
Brief description
The company has pension plans of the fixed contribution type, which are financed through the group insurance plans. These plans are subject
to a minimum return guarantee by the employer, as defined by the Act of 28th April 2003, amended by the Act of 18th December 2015. As of
31st December 2017, the application of the minimum return guarantee had not resulted in a shortfall of the vested obligations in relation to the
reserves built up for these plans, based on an analysis of the difference between the statutory minimum return and the actual return
guaranteed by the insurance companies. As a result, no provision has been set aside in the annual accounts at 31st December 2017.
Measures taken to cover the associated costs
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RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Code

Financial year

PENSIONS BORNE BY THE COMPANY ITSELF
Estimated amount of the obligations arising from work already carried out...............................

9220

Base and manner in which this amount is calculated

Financial year
NATURE AND BUSINESS PURPOSE OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET SCHEMES
Provided the risks or benefits associated with these schemes are of some significance and
insofar as the disclosure of such risks or benefits is necessary for assessing the company’s
financial position

Financial year
OTHER RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS IN THE BALANCE SHEET (including those for which
figures cannot be given)
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RELATIONS WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, DIRECTORS,
BUSINESS MANAGERS AND AUDITOR(S)
Codes

Financial year

AFFILIATED OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Guarantees granted in their favour .....................................................................................................

9294

Other significant obligations entered into in their favour..........................................................

9295

DIRECTORS AND BUSINESS MANAGERS, NATURAL PERSONS OR LEGAL ENTITIES WHO/WHICH
CONTROL THE COMPANY DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY WITHOUT BEING AFFILIATED COMPANIES, OR
OTHER COMPANIES THAT ARE CONTROLLED DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY BY THESE PERSONS OR
ENTITIES
Outstanding claims on these persons or entities .................................................................................................9500
Main conditions regarding the claims, interest rate, term, any amounts repaid or written
off or any amounts waived
Guarantees granted in their favour ......................................................................................................

9501

Other significant obligations entered into in their favour.............................................................

9502

Financial year
THE AUDITOR(S) AND PERSONS WITH WHICH HE/SHE/IT IS ASSOCIATED
The auditor’s fee for the capital increase is

3,500.00

The auditor’s fee for the audit is

7,380.00

Financial year
TRANSACTIONS OUTSIDE NORMAL MARKET CONDITIONS ENTERED INTO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
With persons who have a holding in the company
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01

meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th August

0.01

2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with associated

0.01

parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be included in the VKT

0.01

6.6 statement.

0.01

With enterprises in which the company itself has a holding
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01

meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th August

0.01

2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with associated

0.01

parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be included in the VKT

0.01

6.6 statement.

0.01

With members of the company’s managerial, supervisory or governance bodies
Nature of the transaction
The Board of Directors states that there are no objective or legal criteria that clearly describe what is

0.01
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VKT 6.6

RELATIONS WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, DIRECTORS,
BUSINESS MANAGERS AND AUDITOR(S)
Financial year
TRANSACTIONS OUTSIDE NORMAL MARKET CONDITIONS ENTERED INTO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
With members of the company’s managerial, supervisory or governance bodies
Nature of the transaction
meant by transactions outside normal market conditions, as set out in the Royal Decree of 10th

0.01

August 2009. As there are no such legal criteria that enable an inventory of transactions with

0.01

associated parties outside normal market conditions to be drawn up, no information could be

0.01

included in the VKT 6.6 statement.

0.01
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VKT 6.7

STATEMENT REGARDING THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
INFORMATION THAT MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY IF IT IS A SUBSIDIARY OR JOINT SUBSIDIARY
Name, full address of the registered office and, if it is a company incorporated under Belgian law, the company number of the
parent company(ies) and an indication as to whether these parent company(ies) draw up and publish consolidated annual
accounts that include its/their consolidated annual accounts*:
Falck Holding A/S
Polititorvet
1780 Copenhagen V, Denmark
The parent company draws up and publishes consolidated annual accounts for the main part.
If the parent company(ies) is/are incorporated under foreign law, state the location where these consolidated annual accounts
are available*:
Falck Holding A/S
Poltitorvet
1780 Copenhagen V, Denmark

* If the company’s annual accounts are consolidated on various levels, this information will be provided for the smallest group of companies
of which the company is a subsidiary and for which consolidated annual accounts are drawn up and published.

19/29

Nr.

VKT 6.8

0543.401.225

VALUATION RULES
1. Principle

The valuation rules are established in accordance with the provisions of the Royal Decree of 30th January 2001 to implement the
Companies’ Code.
For the purpose of providing a true picture, the following exceptional cases differ from the valuation rules set out by this
Decree:

These differences are justified as follows:

These differences affect the company’s assets, financial position and pre-tax result as follows:

If the valuation rules have been (changed) (not changed) with regard to the previous financial year in terms of wording or
application, then any change relates to:
and has a

(positive) (negative)

effect on the result for the financial year before tax in the amount of

EUR.

If the profit-and-loss account (is) (is not) affected significantly by revenues and costs that need to be allocated to a previous financial year, then
this will relate to:
The figures for the financial year are not comparable with the figures for the previous financial year for the following reason:

(In order for them to be comparable, the figures for the previous financial year have been adjusted on the following points)
(In order for the annual accounts of both years to be compared, the following elements need to be taken into account):
In the absence of objective assessment criteria, the valuation of foreseeable risks, possible losses and depreciations dealt with
below unavoidably becomes random:
Other information required to enable the annual accounts to present a true picture of the company’s assets, financial position and result:

2. Fixed assets
Incorporation costs:
The incorporation costs are charged immediately, except for the following costs, which are capitalised:

Restructuring costs:
If the restructuring costs were (capitalised) (not capitalised) during the course of the financial year, this is justified as follows:
Intangible fixed assets:
The amount of intangible fixed assets includes costs of
EUR for research and development. The writedown term for these
costs and for goodwill is (more) (not more) than 5 years; if it is more than 5 years, this term is justified as follows:
Tangible fixed assets:
If during the course of the financial year, tangible
fixed assets (were) (were not) revalued, this is
justified as follows:

20/29

Nr.

VKT 6.8

0543.401.225

VALUATION RULES
Writedowns recorded during the financial year:

Assets

Method
L (linear)
D (degressive)
A (other)

Base
NG (not
revalued)

Writedown percentages
Principal
Min. - Max.

G (revalued)

Additional costs
Min. - Max.

1. Incorporation costs
2. Intangible fixed assets
intangible fixed assets
3. Industrial, administrative or
commercial buildings*
Buildings

L

NG

10.00 – 20.00

10.00 – 20.00

L

NG

3.00 – 4.00

3.00 – 4.00

L
L
L

NG
NG
NG

10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33

10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33
10.00 – 33.33

L

NG

20.00 – 20.00

20.00 – 20.00

L

NG

10.00 – 33.33

10.00 – 33.33

4. Installations, machinery and equipment*
Installations
Machinery
Equipment
5. Vehicles*
Vehicles
6. Office equipment and furniture*
Furniture
7. Other tangible fixed assets

* Including assets held in leasing; where applicable, these are stated on a separate line

Surplus of applied, tax-deductible, accelerated depreciation compared with economically justified depreciation:
- amount for the financial year:

EUR.

- combined amount for the fixed assets acquired from the financial year beginning after 31st December 1983:

EUR.

Financial fixed assets:
If during the course of the financial year holdings
(were) (were not) revalued, this revaluation is
justified as follows
3. Current assets
Stocks:
Stocks are valued at the acquisition value calculated using the (state)

method of average weighted prices,

Fifo, Lifo, individualisation of the price of each component or at the lower market value:
1. Raw materials and additives:

2. Goods in progress - finished product:

3. Trading goods:

4. Immovable property intended for sale:

Products:
- The manufacturing price of the products
(includes)

(does not include) indirect production costs.

- The manufacturing price of the products for which production covers more than one year,

(

(includes) (does not include) financial costs associated with the capital borrowed to
financial their production.
At the end of the financial year, the market value of total stocks was approximately

% more than their book value.

(This information is only required if the difference is significant).
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VALUATION RULES
Orders in progress:
Orders in progress are valued

(at their manufacturing price)

(at their manufacturing price, plus part of the profit, depending on the progress of the works).
4. Liabilities
Debts:
If the liabilities (include) (do not include) long-term debts, at zero interest rate or an abnormally low interest rate, then (a) (no) discount
is applied to these debts that is capitalised.
Foreign currency:
The conversion into EUR of assets, debts and commitments in foreign currency takes place on the following basis:
Assets and commitments in place at the end of the financial year, expressed in foreign currency, which are entered at various exchange
rates, are valued at the indicative rates published by the European Central Bank on the date the financial year ends. However, the
company may use an average of the rates for the last month of the financial year if this creates a more dependable picture.
The indicative rate used for each currency is the cash rate, even for assets and commitments that only come due later. The
revaluation at the indicative rate applies to all monetary items, except those that are the subject of specific hedging.
The results from the conversion of foreign currency are processed as follows in the annual accounts:
If the accruals for a specific currency:
a) only contain negative conversion results that correspond with latent losses, these are charged;
b) only contain positive conversion results that correspond with latent gains, these are included in the result;
c) contain negative and positive conversion results, these are dealt with as follows:
i) if the overall end result is negative, this is charged;
ii) if the overall end result is positive, this is included in the result.
If the conversion result is positive for some currencies and negative for others, no offsetting is applied. All conversion differences are
included in the result.
Leasing agreements:
For non-activated user rights from leasing agreements (article 102, §1 of the Royal Decree of 30th January 2001 implementing the
Companies’ Code), payments and rental amounts for leasing immovable property during the financial year was:

EUR.
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VKT 6.9

OTHER INFORMATION TO BE STATED IN THE NOTES
The annual accounts for the past financial year show a loss for the financial year of EUR 461,297.16 € together with the loss from the
previous financial year of EUR 159,985.99 discharged by a reduction in capital.
As a consequence, article 96, §1, 6° of the Companies’ Code applies and maintenance of the valuation rules must be justified in the
assumption of continuity.
On 29th December 2017 a capital increase was implemented for an amount of 1,332,000 EUR through the introduction of a claim. The
losses of 1,282,000 EUR were discharged on 29th December 2017 by way of a reduction in capital.
Management is of the opinion that the continuity of the Company is not in danger and hence has decided to retain the
valuation rules on the assumption of continuity. This is for the following reasons:
- The losses were caused by exceptional circumstances, namely the fact that the Company is still in the start-up phase.
- The Company benefits from the support of a group with powerful capital backing to which it belongs. It can count on support that will
enable it to comply with its payment obligations when these payments fall due.
- The aim is to achieve a sale according to the budget set for 2018.
- The Company will take measures to adjust and streamline its overheads.
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OTHER DOCUMENTS TO BE LODGED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES’ CODE
INFORMATION ABOUT SHAREHOLDINGS
SHAREHOLDINGS AND CORPORATE RIGHTS IN OTHER COMPANIES
Below is a list of companies in which the company has a shareholding (stated in item 28 of the assets), as well as the other
companies in which the company owns corporate rights (stated in items 28 and 50/53 of the assets) up to a minimum of 10% of the
issued capital.
Corporate rights held
NAME, full address of the
REGISTERED OFFICE and, if it
is a company incorporated
under Belgian law,
the COMPANY NUMBER

Details taken from the most recent annual accounts
available

direct
Nature
Number

%

subsi
diari Annual
Curre
es
account ncy
s at
code
%

Equity capital

Net result
(+) or (-)
(in units)
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LIST OF COMPANIES FOR WHICH THE COMPANY HAS UNLIMITED LIABILITY IN ITS CAPACITY AS UNLIMITED LIABLE
PARTNER OR MEMBER
The annual accounts of each of the companies for which the company has unlimited liability will be attached to the annual accounts
submitted and published with them, unless there is a reason stated in the second column as to why this is not the case; this
statement is made by reference to the applicable code (A, B or D) which is defined below.
The annual accounts of the company stated:
A. are published by this company through lodgement with the National Bank of Belgium;
B. are actually published by this company in another member state of the European Union, in accordance with article 3 of
directive 2009/101/EC;
D. relate to a partnership, a temporary trading company or a silent trading company.
NAME, full address of the REGISTERED OFFICE, LEGAL FORM and, if it is a company incorporated under Belgian law,
the COMPANY NUMBER

Any code
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Nr.

VKT 8

0543.401.225

THE COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE ON THE DATE OF THE YEAR-END
as seen from the notifications received by the company in accordance with the Companies’ Code, article 631 §2 last paragraph and
article 632 §2 last paragraph; the Act of 2nd May 2007 relative to the disclosure of major shareholdings, article 14 paragraph four; and
the Royal Decree of 21st August 2008 setting out more detailed rules regarding certain multilateral trading facilities, article 5.
NAME of the persons who own corporate rights in the company, stating the
ADDRESS (of the registered office if it is a legal entity) and the COMPANY
NUMBER if it is a company under Belgian law

Falck Safety Services Holding BO

Corporate rights held
Number of voting rights
Natu
re

Not linked
to securities

Linked to
securities

%

0

0

0.00

0

0

0.00

Uglviggardsvej 3
6705 Esbjerg
Denmark

Falck Global Safety B.V.
Beerweg 101
3199LM Rotterdam
Netherlands
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Nr.

VKT 27

0543.401.225

OTHER INFORMATION TO PROVIDE PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 100 OF THE COMPANIES’ CODE

Codes

Financial year

DEBTS RELATED TO TAXES, REMUNERATION AND SOCIAL CHARGES
(items 45 and 178/9 of the liabilities)
Tax debts due ...................................................................................................................

9072

Debts owed to the National Social Security Office.........................................

9076

AMOUNT OF THE CAPITAL AND INTEREST SUBSIDIES ALLOCATED OR CHARGED BY THE
GOVERNMENT OR BY GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS............................................................................

9078
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Nr.

VKT 12

0543.401.225

SOCIAL BALANCE SHEET
Numbers of the joint representation committees acting for the company:

EMPLOYEES FOR WHOM THE COMPANY HAS LODGED A DIMONA DECLARATION OR WHO ARE ENTERED
IN THE GENERAL STAFF REGISTER
2. Part-time

1. Full-time
During the financial year and the
previous financial year
Average number of employees ............
Actual number of hours worked
Staffing costs ...............................

3. Total (T) or total in
Full-Time
Equivalents (FTE)

Codes
(financial year)

(financial year)

(financial year)

6.0

0.8

6.6 (FTE)

7.3 (FTE)

101

9,880

1,008

10,888 (T)

12,632 (T)

102

509,766.08

509,766.08 (T)

582,458.31 (T)

1. Full-time

2. Part-time

3. Total in Full-Time
Equivalents

On the closing date of the financial year
Number of employees ............................................................
According to the nature of the employment agreement
Open-ended agreement ..........................
agreement

(previous financial
year)

100

Codes

Fixed-term

3P. Total (T) or total in
Full-Time
Equivalents (FTE)

.............................

Agreement for a clearly described assignment ........
Replacement agreement ..............................................
According to gender and level of education
Men ..........................................................................

105

6

1

6.8

110

6

1

6.8

111
112
113

120

primary education ........................................................... 1200
1201
secondary education ...................................................
higher, non-university education ................................
university education .................................................

Women ..........................................................................

university education .................................................
According to category of occupation
Management staff ...............................................................
White-collar employees ......................................................
Blue-collar workers .............................................................
Other ...............................................................................

3.0

1

1.0

1202

1

1.0

1203

1

1.0

121

3

1

3.8

3

1

3.8

6

1

6.8

primary education ........................................................... 1210
1211
secondary education ...................................................
higher, non-university education ................................

3

1212
1213

130
134
132
133
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Nr.

VKT 12

0543.401.225

TABLE OF STAFF TURNOVER DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

ARRIVALS
Number of employees for whom the company lodged a
DIMONA declaration during the financial year or who were
entered in the general staff register during the financial
year.................................................................

Codes

1. Full-time

2. Part-time

3. Total in Full-Time
Equivalents

205

2

1

2.8

305

2

1

2.8

DEPARTURES
Number of employees with a date indicated in the DIMONA
declaration or a date entered in the general staff register on
which their agreement came to an end during the financial
year........................................................

INFORMATION ABOUT THE TRAINING PROVIDED FOR EMPLOYEES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total of the formal continuing vocational training initiatives paid for
by the employer

Codes

Codes

Men

Women

Number of employees involved....................................................................... 5801

3

5811

3

Number of training hours attended....................................................................5802

28

5812

16

Net cost for the company ................................................................

2,829.54

5813

503.36

of which gross costs associated directly with the training ............ 58031

2,731.19

58131

430.25

of which amounts paid and payments made to collective funds ....... 58032

98.35

58132

73.11

of which allowances received (deducted) ..........................

5803

58033

58133

Total of the less formal and informal continuing vocational
training initiatives paid for by the employer
Number of employees involved....................................................................... 5821

5831

Number of training hours attended....................................................................5822

5832

Net cost for the company................................................................

5823

5833

Number of employees involved....................................................................... 5841

5851

Number of training hours attended....................................................................5842

5852

Net cost for the company................................................................

5853

Total of the initial vocational training initiatives paid for by the
employer

5843
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Falck Safety Services Belgium BVBA
Report from the auditor to the general meeting about the financial year ending on
31st December 2017 – Annual accounts

Report from the auditor to the general meeting of Falck Safety
Services Belgium BVBA about the financial year ending on
31st December 2017 – Annual accounts
We hereby present our auditor’s report in the context of the statutory audit of the
annual financial statements of Falck Safety Services Belgium BVBA (the “company”).
It contains our report about the annual accounts, as well as the report regarding the
other statutory, regulatory and standards-based requirements. This report
constitutes a whole and is indivisible.
We were appointed in our capacity of auditors by the general meeting held on 11th
May 2017, pursuant to the proposal made by the administrative body. Our mandate
expires on the date of the general meeting that deliberates on the annual financial
statements ending on 31st December 2019. We have conducted the statutory audit
of the annual accounts of Falck Safety Services Belgium BVBA for five successive
financial years.
Report about the annual accounts
Opinion without reservation
We have conducted the statutory audit of the company’s annual accounts, which
include the balance sheet as of 31st December 2017, as well as the profit-and-loss
account for the financial year ending on that date and the notes, with a balance
sheet total of 1 853 (000) EUR and for which the profit-and-loss account ends with a
profit for the financial year of 461 (000) EUR.
In our opinion, the annual financial statements provide a faithful picture of the
assets and financial position of the company on 31st December 2017, as well as of its
results across the financial year ending on that date, in accordance with the
accounting reference system that applies in Belgium.
Basis for the opinion without reservation
We conducted our audit in line with the international standards on auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under these standards are set out in more detail in the section
headed “Responsibilities of the auditor for auditing the annual accounts” of our
report. We have complied with all ethical requirements that are relevant for auditing
annual accounts in Belgium, including those that relate to impartiality.
We received the clarifications and information required for our audit from the
administrative body and from the company’s officially appointed representatives.
We are of the opinion that the audit information received by us is sufficient and
appropriate as the basis for our assessment and opinion.
Responsibilities of the administrative body

The administrative body is responsible for drawing up the annual accounts, which
provide a faithful picture in accordance with the accounting reference system that
applies in Belgium, as well as for the internal control that the governing body deems
necessary for drawing up the annual accounts that contain no discrepancies of
material importance that are the result of fraud or errors.
In drawing up the annual accounts, the governing body is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue trading, as well as the explanation, if applicable, of
matters that relate to continuity and the use of the assumption of continuity, except
if the governing body has the intention to liquidate the company or to terminate
operating activities or if it does not have any realistic alternative other than to do so.
Responsibilities of the auditor for auditing the annual accounts
Our objective is to obtain a reasonable level of certainty regarding the question of
whether the annual accounts as a whole contain any discrepancies of material
importance that are the result of fraud or errors and the issue of an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. A reasonable level of certainty is a high level of certainty,
although it is no guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always uncover discrepancies of material importance should such discrepancies
exist. Discrepancies may occur as the result of fraud or errors and are considered to
be of material importance if it can be reasonably expected that they, individually or
collectively, may influence economic decisions taken by users based on the annual
accounts.
In conducting our audit, we comply with the statutory, regulatory and standardsbased framework that applies to the auditing of annual accounts in Belgium.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, we apply professional
assessments and opinions and maintain a professional and critical attitude
throughout the audit. We also carried out the following tasks:
•

•

the identification and assessment of the risks that the annual accounts
contain discrepancies of material importance that are the result of fraud or
errors, the definition and implementation of auditing work that anticipates
these risks, and the process of obtaining audit information that is sufficient
and appropriate to be used for the basis of our assessment and opinion. The
risk of not detecting discrepancies of material importance is greater if a
discrepancy is the result of fraud or is the result of errors. This is because in
the event of fraud, it may be a question of conspiracy, falsehood in the
records, the deliberate omission of recording transactions, the deliberate
incorrect presentation of business or the breach of internal controls;
obtaining an insight into the internal controls that are relevant for the audit,
for the purpose of putting audit works in place that are suitable in the given
circumstances, but which are not focused on providing an assessment of the
effectiveness of the internal control and management of the company;

•
•

•

evaluating the suitability of the bases used for financial reporting and
assessing the reasonable nature of the estimated made by the administrative
body and the explanations relating thereto;
reaching the conclusion that the assumption of continuity used by the
administrative body is acceptable, and concluding, based on the audit
information obtained, whether there is any uncertainty of material
importance with regard to the events or circumstances that might give rise to
significant doubt about the company’s ability to maintain its continuity. If we
conclude that there is any uncertainty of material importance, we are
required to draw attention to this in our auditor’s report in the relevant
notes in the annual accounts or, if these notes and explanations are
inadequate, to adjust our opinion accordingly. Our conclusions are based on
the audit information obtained up until the date of our auditor’s report.
However, events or circumstances in the future may result in the company
being unable to maintain its continuity;
evaluating the general presentation, structure and contents of the annual
accounts, as well as the question of whether the annual accounts reflect the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that results in a faithful
picture being given.

We communicate with the persons tasked with governance about the planned scope
and timing of the audit and about any major audit findings, including any significant
shortcomings in internal control processes that we identify during our audit.
*
*

*

Report regarding the other statutory, regulatory and standards-based
requirements
Responsibilities of the administrative body
The administrative body is responsible for drawing up the annual report and its
contents. It is also responsible for complying with the statutory and administrative
law requirements that apply to keeping accounts, as well as complying with the
Companies’ Code and the company’s articles of association.
Responsibilities of the auditor
In the context of our mandate and in accordance with the additional Belgian
standard (reviewed in 2018) included in the international standards of auditing (ISAs)
that apply, it is our responsibility, taking account of all the insights of material
importance, to verify the annual report and compliance of the obligations stated in
the Companies’ Code and the articles of association, as well as to issue a report
about these matters.

Aspects regarding the annual report
After carrying out specific work on the annual report, we are of the opinion that this
annual report corresponds with the annual report for the same financial year and
that it has been drawn up in accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Companies’
Code.
In the context of our audit of the annual financial statements, we are also
responsible for considering, in particular based on the knowledge obtained during
the audit, whether the annual report contains any discrepancies of material
importance, either information that is stated incorrectly or that is misleading in any
other way. In the light of the work carried out by us, we do not have any
discrepancies of material importance to report. We do not express any degree of
certainty about the annual report.
Statement regarding the company balance sheet
The company balance sheet to the lodged with the National Bank of Belgium in
accordance with article 100, § 1, 6º/2 of the Companies’ Code, contains both in
terms of form and content all of the information prescribed by the Companies’ Code.
It does not contain any inconsistencies of material importance with regard to the
information obtained by us as part of our assignment.
Statement regarding impartiality
•

•

Our company auditing office and our network have not conducted any
assignments that are incompatible with the statutory audit of the annual
accounts and during the course of our mandate, our company auditing office
remained impartial vis-à-vis the company.
The fees for the additional assignments that are compatible with the
statutory audit of the annual accounts stated in article 134 of the Companies’
Code have been stated correctly and are broken down in the notes to the
annual accounts.

Other statements
•
•
•

Without prejudice to formal aspects of subsidiary importance, the accounting
was conducted in accordance with the statutory and administrative law
requirements that apply in Belgium.
The processing of the results that will be presented to the annual meeting
corresponds with legal and statutory provisions.
We have no transactions or decisions to report to you that have been
conducted or made in breach of the articles of association of Companies’
Code.

Antwerp, 14th May 2018

(signature)
Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren BV o.v.v.e. CVBA
Represented by Jurgen Kesselaers

RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC.
Registration number 4515417
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1

Management’s Statement on the Special Purpose Financial Statements
The board of directors has today considered and adopted the Special Purpose Financial Statements of
RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC. for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2018 and 1 January –
31 December 2017, respectively.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1. We consider the accounting policies applied appropriate and the accounting estimates
reasonable.
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements have in all material respects been prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 and give a fair presentation of the financial position at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively, of the Company and of the results of
the Company’s operations for 2018 and 2017, respectively.
No events have occurred after 31 December 2018 that have a material effect of the Company’s financial
position at 31 December 2018.

Houma,

September 2019

Board of directors

Torben Harring

Søren Strøm

2

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 and 2017 of RelyOn Nutec USA
Holdings, LLC. (the Company) are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.
We have audited
The Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company comprise:
•
•
•
•

income statement for the financial year 2018 and 2017, respectively,
balance sheet as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively,
statement of changes in equity for 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of accounting and Restriction on distribution and use
We draw attention to note 1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis
of accounting and that the Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared by Management for
the sole purpose of fulfilling BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S’, Denmark obligations towards the Financial
Supervisory Authority of Norway to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements for guarantors
and may therefore not be suitable for any other purposes.
Our Report has been prepared solely for use by the Company and the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway and should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our opinion is not
modified in respect to this matter

3

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence ob-

tained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

4

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup, September 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 77 12 31

Bo Schou-Jacobsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne28703

Thomas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne30141
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note

Income from investments in subsidiaries
Financial expenses

4
3

Profit before tax

2018
USD
-165.905
-2.274.253

-1.207.774
-1.903.563

-2.440.158

-3.111.337

0

0

-2.440.158

-3.111.337

Tax on profit for the year
Profit/loss for the year

2017
USD

Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 January - 31 December
2018
USD
Profit/loss for the year

2017
USD

-2.440.158

-3.111.337

-2.440.158

-3.111.337

6

Balance Sheet at 31 December
Assets
Note

2018
USD

2017
USD

1.886.143

2.052.048

1.886.143

2.052.048

0

0

0

0

Non-current assets

1.886.143

2.052.048

Assets

1.886.143

2.052.048

Investments in subsidiaries

4

Financial fixed assets

Deferred tax asset
Financial fixed assets

5

7

Balance Sheet at 31 December
Equity and liabilities
Note

2018
USD

2017
USD

-40.729.761

-38.289.603

42.615.904

40.341.651

Current liabilities

42.615.904

40.341.651

Liabilities

42.615.904

40.341.651

1.886.143

2.052.048

Equity

Payables to group companies

Equity and liabilities

Going concern
Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Related parties
Subsequent events

2
6
7
8

8

Statement of Changes in Equity 1 January - 31 December
Retained
earnings
USD
Equity at 1 January 2018
Result for the year
Equity at 31 December 2018

Equity at 1 January 2017
Result for the year
Equity at 31 December 2017

Total
USD

-38.289.603
-2.440.158

-38.289.603
-2.440.158

-40.729.761

-40.729.761

-35.178.266
-3.111.337

-35.178.266
-3.111.337

-38.289.603

-38.289.603

The Company has no share capital.
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Notes
1

Accounting Policies
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared for the sole purpose of fulfilling the requirements
from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (and the Oslo Stock Exchange) regarding the
application for admission to the listing of the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S`s bonds on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018, respectively, are prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies set out below. The disclosure and presentation requirements have been
established by the Management. The Special Purpose Financial Statements may therefore not be suitable
for any other purposes than the above listed.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018 are presented in USD, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared on a
historical cost basis.
Consolidated Financial Statement
The Company has not prepared consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as the Company is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark.

Income statement
Income from investments in subsidiaries
The item "Income from investments in subsidiaries" in the income statement include the proportionate
share of the profit for the year.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense determined on an effective
interest basis and realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses.
Tax on profit for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and deferred tax for the year. The tax attributable to
the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement.

10

Notes
Balance sheet
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are recognised and measured under the equity method.
The item “Investments in subsidiaries” in the balance sheet include the proportionate ownership share of
the net asset value of the enterprises based on the carrying amount of the net assets in the financial
statements of the respective subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared on a
historical cost basis. The difference, if any, between the acquisition price and the carrying amount as of
the acquisition date is not accounted for.
The total net revaluation of investments in subsidiaries is transferred upon distribution of profit to
“Reserve for net revaluation under the equity method“ under equity. The reserve is reduced by dividend
distributed to the Parent Company and adjusted for other equity movements in the subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries with a negative net asset value are recognised at DKK 0. Any legal or constructive obligation
of the Company to cover the negative balance of the enterprise is recognised in provisions.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortised cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability,
respectively. Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realized,
either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same
legal tax entity. Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective
under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallize as current
tax. Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognized in the income statement or in
equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognized in equity.

11

Notes
2

Going Concern
At year-end, the Company has a negative equity. The Company has received a Letter of Support
and Subordination from its Parent Companies in Denmark, BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and RelyOn
Nutec Holding A/S insuring the required funding of its future operation until 31 December 2020.
Furthermore, the Parent Companies will subordinate their receivables in favour of other creditors
of the Company.
Management has on this basis prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.
2018
USD

3

Financial expenses
Intercompany interest

4

2017
USD

-2.274.253

-1.903.563

-2.274.253

-1.903.563

2.052.048
-165.905

3.259.822
-1.207.774

1.886.143

2.052.048

Place of
registered
office
Louisiana
Louisiana

Equity
1.886.143
-921.272

Net profit
-165.905
149.664

Place of
registered
office
Louisiana
Louisiana

Equity
2.052.048
-1.070.939

Net profit
-1.207.774
-5.901.315

Investments in subsidiaries
Equity value 1 January
Result for the year
Equity value 31 January 2018

Investments in subsidiaries are specified as follows:
2018 - USD

Name
RelOn Nutec Services Inc
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC
2017 - USD

Name
RelOn Nutec Services Inc
RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC

12

Notes
5

Deferred tax
The Company is part of a joint taxation in the US. The joint taxation has a unrecognised tax asset of
USD 5.6 million
The Company also has a unrecognised deferred tax asset of 13 mUSD relating to a entity specific prejoint taxation loss.

6

Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Charges and security
Investments in subsidiaries are placed as security toward debt of a parent Company:
BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark
Contingent liabilities
The US group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc of
the Group.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.

7

Related parties
The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:
Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark
Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, Denmark

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S,
Denmark. The Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3rd floor, DK-1560 Copenhagen, Denmark

8

Subsequent events
There have been no material events after the balance sheet date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc., the United States of America
Opinion
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 and 2017 of RelyOn Nutec Services, Inc. (the Company) are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1.
We have audited
The Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company comprise:
•
•
•
•

income statement for the financial year 2018 and 2017, respectively,
balance sheet as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively,
statement of changes in equity for 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of accounting and Restriction on distribution and use
We draw attention to note 1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis
of accounting and that the Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared by Management for
the sole purpose of fulfilling BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S’, Denmark obligations towards the Financial
Supervisory Authority of Norway to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements for guarantors
and may therefore not be suitable for any other purposes.
Our Report has been prepared solely for use by the Company and the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway and should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our opinion is not
modified in respect to this matter
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Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup, September 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 77 12 31

Bo Schou-Jacobsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne28703

Thomas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne30141
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note
Revenue
Direct cost

3

Operating profit
Amortization and depreciation
Profit before financial items
Financial expenses
Profit before tax
Tax on profit for the year
Profit/loss for the year

2017
USD

308.823
-8.744

1.421.265
-320.309

300.079

1.100.957

-298.976
-64.293
-2.544

-1.013.748
-1.131.357
0

7

-65.734
-98.985

-1.044.149
-90.560

5

-164.719
-25

-1.134.708
-2.536

6

-164.744
-1.161

-1.137.245
-70.529

-165.905

-1.207.774

Gross profit
Employee costs
Other external expenses
Other operating expenses

2018
USD
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 January - 31 December
2018
USD
Profit/loss for the year

2017
USD

-165.905

-1.207.774

-165.905

-1.207.774
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Assets
Note

Land and buildings
Equipment
Assets under construction
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Deferred tax

2018
USD

2017
USD

148.688
287.499

163.909
371.263

7

436.187

535.172

8
9

1
0

1
0

1

1

1.369.508
53.586
0

332.146
648.231
35.324

1.423.094

1.015.701

32.089

1.044.166

Current assets

1.455.183

2.059.867

Assets

1.891.371

2.595.040

Financial fixed assets

Receivables from group companies
Trade receivables
Prepayments
Receivables
Cash at bank and in hand
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Equity and liabilities
Note

Equity

2018
USD

2017
USD

1.886.143

2.052.048

5.125
103
0

531.944
1.442
9.606

Current liabilities

5.228

542.992

Liabilities

5.228

542.992

1.891.371

2.595.040

Trade payables
Income tax payable
Other payables

Equity and liabilities

Going concern
Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Related parties
Subsequent events

2
10
11
12
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Statement of Changes in Equity 1 January - 31 December

Share capital
USD

Retained
earnings
USD

Total
USD

Equity at 1 January 2018
Comprehensive income for the year

0
0

2.052.048
-165.905

2.052.048
-165.905

Equity at 31 December 2018

0

1.886.143

1.886.143

Equity at 1 January 2017
Comprehensive income for the year

0
0

3.259.821
-1.207.774

3.259.821
-1.207.774

Equity at 31 December 2017

0

2.052.048

2.052.048

The share capital consists of 90 shares of a nominal value of USD 0.
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Notes
1

Accounting Policies
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared for the sole purpose of fulfilling the requirements
from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (and the Oslo Stock Exchange) regarding the
application for admission to the listing of the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S`s bonds on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018, respectively, are prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies set out below. The disclosure and presentation requirements have been
established by the Management. The Special Purpose Financial Statements may therefore not be suitable
for any other purposes than the above listed.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018 are presented in USD, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared on a
historical cost basis.

Income statement
Revenue
The Company generates revenue from enclosures and warehouse storage and income by renting out
owned safety facilities.
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
If the value of the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the payments
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognized. A receivable is recognized when the receipt
of payment is conditional on passage of time only.
Where another party is involved in providing the services to the customer, the Company assesses on a
contract by contract basis, whether the Company is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company is
acting as a principal when the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
services itself. On the contrary the Company is acting as an agent when it is arranging for the services to
be provided by the other party.
When the Company obtains control over the specified service before it is transferred to the customer, it is
a principal and thus recognizes revenue on a gross basis. When the Company is acting as an agent, the
commission rather than the gross income is recognized as revenue.
Direct costs
Cost of sales comprise expenses for related to course material and subcontractors.
Employee costs
Employee costs comprise wages and salaries as well as expenses for payroll & pensions and other staff
related expenses.
Other external expenses
Other external costs comprise marketing, external consultancy, facilities etc.
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Notes
Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses comprise items of a secondary nature to the main activities of the Company,
including gains and losses on the sale of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense, realized and unrealized
exchange rate gains and losses and amortization related to financial assets and liabilities. Financials are
recognized at the amounts related to the year.
Tax on profit for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and deferred tax for the year. The tax attributable to
the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement. Any changes in deferred tax due to changes
to tax rates are recognised in the income statement.

Balance sheet
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
Cost includes direct costs related to the asset and the initial estimate of the costs related to dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if the costs meet the definition of a
liability. Cost further includes borrowing costs from specific and general borrowings directly relating to
the acquisition, construction or development of the individual qualifying asset during the period that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items.
Depreciations are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Land and buildings:
Equipment:
Leasehold improvements:
Land:

25 - 30 years
3 - 10 years
Term of lease
Not depreciated

The residual value and useful life is determined at the date of acquisition and revalued each year. Where
the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, the asset ceases to be depreciated.
Gains and losses on the disposal or scrapping of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the sales price less dismantling, selling and re-establishing costs and the carrying
amount. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement as other operating income and external
expenses, respectively.
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Notes
Impairment of fixed assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual
basis to determine whether there is any indication of impairment other than that expressed by
amortization and depreciation. If so, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost or at a lower recoverable amount. If indications of
impairments are identified, an impairment test is prepared. If the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying amount, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
Trade receivables
On initial recognition, receivables are measured at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortized cost. Trade receivables and contract assets are written down for expected credit losses.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when, as a consequence of an event occurring before or on the balance sheet
date, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is Management’s best
estimate of the present value of expenses required to settle the obligation.
Provisions for restructuring are recognized when a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring has been
made before or on the balance sheet date and has been announced to the parties involved.
A provision for onerous contracts is made when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortized cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability,
respectively. Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realized,
either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same
legal tax entity. Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective
under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to utilize as current tax.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognized in the income statement or in
equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognized in equity.
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Notes
2

Going concern
The Company has at year-end a negative equity. The Company has received a Letter of Support and
Subordination from its Parent Companies in Denmark, BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and RelyOn Nutec
Holding A/S insuring the required funding of its future operation uto 31 December 2020.
Furthermore, the Parent Companies will subordinate their receivables in favour of other creditors of
the Company.
Management has on this basis prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.

2018
USD
3

Revenue
Sale of services
Rental income

4

2017
USD

162.435
146.388

1.301.397
119.869

308.823

1.421.265

267.442
10.016
21.518

782.545
170.110
61.093

298.976

1.013.748

Employee costs
Wages and salaries
Pension, insurance and other social expenses
Other staff expenses

All employees are imployed in the group related company: RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC. Employee costs
therefore comprise invoicing from the group related company.

5

Financial expenses
Bank charges

6

25

2.536

25

2.536

1.161

70.529

1.161

70.529

Tax on profit for the year
Current tax on profit for the year
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Notes
7

Property, plant and equipment

Land and
buildings
USD

Equipment
USD

Total
USD

2018
Cost at 1 January
Disposals for the year

309.612
0

909.560
-377.707

1.219.172
-377.707

Cost at 31 December

309.612

531.853

841.465

Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year

145.702
15.221
0

538.298
83.764
-377.707

684.000
98.985
-377.707

Depreciation at 31 December

160.923

244.355

405.278

148.689

287.498

436.187

25-30 years

3-10 years

Carrying amount at 31 December
Depreciated over

Land and
buildings
USD

Equipment

Total

USD

USD

2017
Cost at 1 January
Additions for the year
Disposals for the year

313.146
0
-3.535

827.819
111.856
-30.116

1.140.966
111.856
-33.650

Cost at 31 December

309.612

909.560

1.219.172

Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year

132.920
16.319
-3.537

494.172
74.241
-30.116

627.092
90.560
-33.652

Depreciation at 31 December

145.702

538.298

684.000

163.910

371.262

535.172

25-30 years

3-10 years

Carrying amount at 31 December
Depreciated over
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Notes
8

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are specified as follows:

Name
Haztec Services Trinidad Limited

Place of
registered
office
Trinidad

Equity*
4.152.622

Net profit*
213.953

*According to local financial statements for 2018.

9

Deferred tax
The Company is part of a joint taxation in the US. The joint taxation has a unrecognised tax asset of
USD 5.6 million at year-end 2018.

10 Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Charges and security
The are no assets which have been placed as security with credit institutions.
Contingent liabilities
The US group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc of
the Group.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.

11

Related parties
The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:
P-Holding RelyOn Nutec A/S, Denmark
Ultimate parent entity and controlling party: Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, Denmark
All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S. The
Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Kalvebod Brygge 45, 3rd floor, DK-1560 Copenhagen, Denmark

12

Subsequent events
There have been no material events after the balance sheet date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of RelyOn Nutec USA, LLC.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2018 and 2017 of RelyOn Nutec USA,
LLC. (the Company) are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.
We have audited
The Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company comprise:
•
•
•
•

income statement for the financial year 2018 and 2017, respectively,
balance sheet as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively,
statement of changes in equity for 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of accounting and Restriction on distribution and use
We draw attention to note 1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements, which describes the basis
of accounting and that the Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared by Management for
the sole purpose of fulfilling BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S’, Denmark obligations towards the Financial
Supervisory Authority of Norway to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements for guarantors
and may therefore not be suitable for any other purposes.
Our Report has been prepared solely for use by the Company and the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway and should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our opinion is not
modified in respect to this matter
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Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.
As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Hellerup, September 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR No 33 77 12 31

Bo Schou-Jacobsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne28703

Thomas Wraae Holm
State Authorised Public Accountant
mne30141
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Income Statement 1 January - 31 December
Note

2018
USD

2017
USD

Revenue

16.169.533

16.712.011

Direct cost

-2.313.083

-3.498.877

13.856.450

13.213.134

-8.028.042
-4.531.632
-8.634

-7.647.594
-9.417.095
1.350

1.288.142

-3.850.205

-907.036

-1.816.814

381.106

-5.667.019

1.064
-161.806

0
-155.296

220.364

-5.822.315

-70.699

-79.000

149.665

-5.901.315

Gross profit
Employee costs
Other external expenses
Other operating income and expenses

3

Operating profit
Amortization, depreciation and impairment

7, 8

Profit before financial items
Financial income
Financial expenses

4
5

Profit before tax
Tax on profit for the year
Profit/loss for the year
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 January - 31 December
2018
USD
Profit/loss for the year
Comprehensive income

2017
USD

149.665

-5.901.315

149.665

-5.901.315
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Assets
Note

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Equipment
Assets under construction

2018
USD

2017
USD

742.885
941.612
1.330.579
199.406

1.056.715
1.081.595
1.398.167
193.994

Property, plant and equipment

7

3.214.482

3.730.471

Deferred tax

9

0

0

3.214.482

3.730.471

20.758

25.786

2.990.419
16.509
357.394

2.087.652
16.431
266.981

3.364.322

2.371.064

473.795

727.995

Current assets

3.858.875

3.124.845

Assets

7.073.357

6.855.316

Non-current assets

Inventory
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments
Receivables
Cash at bank and in hand
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Balance Sheet at 31 December
Equity and liabilities
Note

Equity

2018
USD

2017
USD

-921.274

-1.070.939

2.618.877

3.638.818

2.618.877

3.638.818

1.538.623
1.764.740
1.246.594
825.797

587.443
1.438.103
1.318.584
943.307

Current liabilities

5.375.754

4.287.437

Liabilities

7.994.631

7.926.255

Equity and liabilities

7.073.357

6.855.316

Long term provisions

10

Non-current liabilities

Payables to group companies
Trade payables
Short term provisions
Other payables

Going Concern
Special items
Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Related parties
Subsequent events

10

2
11
12
13
14
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Statement of Changes in Equity 1 January - 31 December

Retained
earnings
USD

Total
USD

-1.070.939
149.665

-1.070.939
149.665

Equity at 31 December 2018

-921.274

-921.274

Equity at 1 January 2017
Comprehensive
incomeitems
for the year
Profit before financial

4.830.376
-5.901.315

4.830.376
-5.901.315

-1.070.939

-1.070.939

Equity at 1 January 2018
Comprehensive income for the year

Equity at 31 December 2017
The Company has no share capital
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Notes
1

Accounting Policies
The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared for the sole purpose of fulfilling the requirements
from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (and the Oslo Stock Exchange) regarding the
application for admission to the listing of the BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S`s bonds on the Oslo Stock
Exchange.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018, respectively, are prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies set out below. The disclosure and presentation requirements have been
established by the Management. The Special Purpose Financial Statements may therefore not be suitable
for any other purposes than the above listed.
The Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2017 and 2018 are presented in USD, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Special Purpose Financial Statements are prepared on a
historical cost basis.

Income statement
Revenue
The Company generates revenue from delivering of safety training services to its customers within the oil
and gas, wind and maritime industries globally.
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
The activity is pay-per-use, and the payment terms for customers are 30-60 days, and invoicing is shortly
after completion of courses.
If the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the payments exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is recognized. A receivable is recognized when the receipt of
payment is conditional on passage of time only.
Where another party is involved in providing the services to the customer, the Company assesses on a
contract by contract basis, whether the Company is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company is
acting as a principal when the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
services itself. On the contrary the Company is acting as an agent when it is arranging for the services to
be provided by the other party.
When the Company obtains control over the specified service before it is transferred to the customer, it is
a principal and thus recognizes revenue on a gross basis. When the Company is acting as an agent, the
commission rather than the gross income is recognized as revenue.
Direct costs
Cost of sales comprise expenses for related to course material and subcontractors.
Employee costs
Employee costs comprise wages and salaries as well as expenses for payroll and pensions and other staff
related expenses.
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Other external expenses
Other external costs comprise expenses for premises, marketing, external consultancy, office expenses etc.
Other operating income and expenses
Other operating income and other expenses comprise items of a secondary nature to the main activities of
the Company, including gains and losses on the sale of intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment.
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses represent interest income and interest expense, realized and unrealized
exchange rate gains and losses and amortization related to financial assets and liabilities. Financials are
recognized at the amounts related to the year.
Tax on profit for the year
Tax for the year consists of current tax for the year and deferred tax for the year. The tax attributable to
the profit for the year is recognised in the income statement.
Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognised in the income statement.

Balance sheet
Intangible assets
Patents are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Amortization are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
Cost includes direct costs related to the asset and the initial estimate of the costs related to dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if the costs meet the definition of a
liability. Cost further includes borrowing costs from specific and general borrowings directly relating to
the acquisition, construction or development of the individual qualifying asset during the period that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items.
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Depreciations are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Land and buildings:
Equipment:
Leasehold improvements:
Land:

25 - 30 years
3 - 10 years
Term of lease
Not depreciated

The residual value and useful life is determined at the date of acquisition and revalued each year. Where
the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, the asset ceases to be depreciated.
Gains and losses on the disposal or scrapping of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the sales price less dismantling, selling and re-establishing costs and the carrying
amount. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement as other operating income and external
expenses, respectively.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful
life, as described above, or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
Each year, the assets are reviews in order to assess, whether there are any indicators of impairment.
Impairment of fixed assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual
basis to determine whether there is any indication of impairment other than that expressed by
amortization and depreciation. If so, the asset is written down to its lower recoverable amount.
Trade receivables
On initial recognition, receivables are measured at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortized cost.
Trade receivables and contract assets are written down for expected credit losses.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when, as a consequence of an event occurring before or on the balance sheet
date, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is Management’s best
estimate of the present value of expenses required to settle the obligation.
Provisions for restructuring are recognized when a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring has been
made before or on the balance sheet date and has been announced to the parties involved.
A provision for onerous contracts is made when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
Financial debts
Debts are measured at amortized cost, substantially corresponding to nominal value.
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Leases
Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
(finance leases) are recognized in the balance sheet at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
net present value of the lease payments computed by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease or an
alternative borrowing rate as the discount rate. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated and
written down for impairment under the same policy as determined for the other fixed assets of the
Company. The remaining lease obligation is capitalized and recognized in the balance sheet under debt,
and the interest element on the lease payments is charged over the lease term to the income statement. All
other leases are considered operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred income tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes on the basis of the intended use of the asset and settlement of the liability,
respectively. Deferred tax assets are measured at the value at which the asset is expected to be realized,
either by elimination in tax on future earnings or by set-off against deferred tax liabilities within the same
legal tax entity. Deferred tax is measured on the basis of the tax rules and tax rates that will be effective
under the legislation at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallize as current
tax. Any changes in deferred tax due to changes to tax rates are recognized in the income statement or in
equity if the deferred tax relates to items recognized in equity.
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Going Concern
The Company has at year-end a negative equity. The Company has received a Letter of Support and Subordination
from its Parent Companies in Denmark, BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S and RelyOn Nutec Holding A/S insuring the
required funding of its future operation until 31 December 2020. Furthermore, the Parent Companies will subordinate
their receivables in favour of other creditors of the Company.
Management has on this basis prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.

3

Employee costs

2018
USD

2017
USD

Wages and salaries
Pension, insurance and other social expenses
Other staff expenses

6.340.667
1.188.968
498.407

5.935.783
1.268.518
443.292

8.028.042

7.647.593

127

144

1.063

0

1.063

0

160.294
1.512

154.681
614

161.806

155.295

70.699

79.000

70.699

79.000

Average number of full-time employees

4

5

6

Financial income
Other financial income

Financial expenses
Bank charges
Exchange rate

Tax on profit for the year
Current tax on profit for the year

14

Notes

Land and
buildings
USD
7

Leasehold
Improvements
USD

Equipment
USD

Assets under
construction
USD

Total
USD

Property, plant and equipment
2018
Cost at 1 January
Additions for the year
Disposals for the year
Transfer

1.339.081
0
-31.781
0

2.754.181
0
-61.804
14.650

7.626.021
27.667
-2.217.682
343.317

193.993
363.379
0
-357.967

11.913.277
391.046
-2.311.267
0

1.307.300

2.707.027

5.779.323

199.406

9.993.056

Depreciation at 1 January
282.366
Depreciation and writedown for the 313.830
year
Disposals for the year
-31.781
Depreciation at 31
December
564.415

1.672.587
144.867
-61.804

6.227.853
448.339
-2.217.682

0
0
0

8.182.806
907.036
-2.311.267

1.755.650

4.458.510

0

6.778.574

199.406

3.214.482

Cost at 31 December

Carrying amount
at 31 December

742.885

951.378

1.320.813

Depreciated over

25-30 years

Term of
lease years

3-10 years

Land and
buildings
USD

Leasehold
Improvements
USD

Equipment
USD

Assets under
construction
USD

Total
USD

2017
Cost at 1 January
Additions for the year
Disposals for the year
Transfer

-15.845
18.165

7.460.641
43.938
-60.456
181.898

-200.063

11.573.753
415.824
-76.301
0

1.339.081

2.754.181

7.626.021

193.993

11.913.277

263.383
18.983

1.534.135
154.297
-15.845

5.794.076
494.234
-60.458

0
0
0

7.591.594
667.515
-76.303

282.366

1.672.587

6.227.853

0

8.182.806

Carrying amount
at 31 December

1.056.714

1.081.594

1.398.169

193.993

3.730.471

Depreciated over

25-30 years

Term of
lease years

3-10 years

Cost at 31 December
Depreciation at 1 January
Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year
Depreciation at 31 December

1.339.081

2.751.861

22.170
371.886
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Intangible assets

Patent
USD

2017
Cost at 1 January

3.006.441

Cost at 31 December

3.006.441

Amortization and Impairment at 1 January
Impairment for the year

1.857.142
1.149.298

Amortization and Impairment at 31 December

3.006.441

Carrying amount at 31 December

9

0

Deferred tax
The Company is part of a joint taxation in the US. The joint taxation has a unrecognised tax asset of USD 5.6 million

2018
USD

2017
USD

2.618.877

3.638.818

2.618.877
1.246.594

3.638.818
1.318.584

3.865.471

4.957.402

10 Provisions
The provisions falls due for payment as specified below:
Betweem 1 and 5 years
Long-term part
Within 1 year

Provisions consist mainly of amounts recognised relating to onerous contract of leased buildings, which is not used by
the Company.
11

Special items
The profit/loss for 2017 have been negatively effected by one-off costs in connection with provision for onerous
contracts on leased buildings. One-off costs amount to USD 4.8 milllion (included in Other external expenses).
Further, the the profit/loss for 2017 have been effected by impairment of intangible assets of USD 1.1 million.
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Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations
Charges and security
The are no assets which have been placed as security with credit institutions.
Contingent liabilities
The US group companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on the jointly taxed incomes etc. of the Group.
There are no other material security and contingent liabilitites at 31 December 2018.
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Related parties
The Group is controlled by the following entities:
Immediate parent entity:

RelyOn Nutec USA Holdings, LLC., USA

Ultimate parent entity and controlling party:

Polaris Private Equity IV K/S, Denmark

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on arm’s length terms.
The Company is included in the Consolidated Financial Statement of BidCo RelyOn Nutec A/S,
Denmark. The Consolidated Financial Statements can be obtained on the following addresses:
Kalvebod brygge 3rd, floor, DK1560 Copenhagen, Denmark.
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Subsequent events
There have been no material events after the balance sheet date.
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